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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1K-contains, and other periodic and current repqntsss releases and other public stockholder coriwation:
of BankFinancial Corporation may contain, forwdodking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 2f the Securities Exchange Acl
1934, as amended, that involve significant riskd ancertainties. Forwarkboking statements may include statements relatngur futur
plans, strategies and expectations, as well afuture revenues, earnings, losses, financial perdoce, financial condition, asset que
metrics and future prospects. Forward looking stetes are generally identifiable by use of the wdfioelieve,” “may,” “will,” “should,”
“could,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” “anticipa,” “project,” “plan,” or similar expressions. Forward looking statemeptsak only as of tl
date made. They are frequently based on assumptiabsnay or may not materialize, and are subjeaiumerous uncertainties that cc
cause actual results to differ materially from #hasticipated in the forward looking statements. ivfend all forwardooking statements to
covered by the safe harbor provisions for forwlmmking statements contained in the Private Seaesrltitigation Reform Act of 1995, and
including this statement for the purpose of invgkinese safe harbor provisions.

Factors that could cause actual results to diffatenially from the results anticipated or projectad which could materially and adver:
affect our operating results, financial conditionfature prospects include, but are not limited (ip:the failure of the real estate marke
recover or further declines in real estate valbas adversely impact the value of our loan colitand other real estate owned ("OREQ"), ¢
dispositions and the level of borrower equity ieithnvestments; (ii) the persistence or worseroh@dverse economic conditions in gen
and in the Chicago metropolitan area in particulacluding high or increasing unemployment levetlsat could result in increas
delinquencies in our loan portfolio or a declinetire value of our investment securities and thdatmtal for our loans; (iii) results

supervisory monitoring or examinations by regubataathorities, including the possibility that a uéafory authority could, among other thir
require us to increase our allowance for loan lesseadversely change our loan classificationstewdtown assets, reduce credit concentra
or maintain specific capital levels; (iv) intereate movements and their impact on customer behawid our net interest margin; (v) less 1
anticipated loan growth due to a lack of demandsjoecific loan products, competitive pressures aearth of borrowers who meet

underwriting standards; (vi) changes, disruptiongliguidity in national or global financial markg (vii) the credit risks of lending activitit
including risks that could cause changes in thellemd direction of loan delinquencies and charffg-or changes in estimates relating tc
computation of our allowance for loan losses; viionetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Governtnancluding policies of the U.S. Treas
and Federal Reserve Board; (ix) factors affectingability to access deposits or cost-effectiveding, and the impact of competitogs'icing
initiatives on our deposit products; (x) the impa€tnew legislation or regulatory changes, inclgdthe DoddFrank Act, on our produc
services, operations and operating expenses; iftieh federal deposit insurance premiums; (xiihleigthan expected overhead, infrastruc
and compliance costs; (xiii) changes in accoungirigciples, policies or guidelines; and (xiv) ang dailure to achieve expected synergies
cost savings from acquisitions.

These risks and uncertainties, as well as the Réitors set forth in Item 1A below, should be cdestd in evaluating forwaroking
statements and undue reliance should not be placezlich statements. We do not undertake any oiolig&d update any forwarkboking
statement in the future, or to reflect circumstarmed events that occur after the date on whiclotfveard-looking statement was made.

BankFinancial Corporation

BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporaticradiquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Companyiecame the owner of all of 1
issued and outstanding capital stock of BankFiren€i.S.B. (the “Bank™pn June 23, 2005, when we consummated a plan ekcsion an
reorganization that the Bank and its predecessttirttp companies, BankFinancial MHC, Inc. and Bamldricial Corporation, a fede
corporation, adopted on August 25, 2004. BankFiiz@orporation, the Maryland corporation, was oiigad in 2004 to facilitate the mutual-
to-stock conversion and to become the holding compar the Bank upon its completion.

As part of the mutual-tstock conversion, BankFinancial Corporation, theWénd corporation, sold 24,466,250 shares of comstock in
subscription offering for $10.00 per share. Theasafe corporate existences of BankFinancial MHCBexakFinancial Corporation, the fede
corporation, ceased upon the completion of the alttistock conversion. For a further discussiothef mutual-tostock conversion, see ¢
Prospectus as filed on April 29, 2005 with the Sities and Exchange Commission (“SEQUirsuant to Rule 424(b)(3) of the Rules
Regulations of the Securities Act of 1933 (File Nngm333-119217).

We manage our operations as one unit, and thustdioave separate operating segments. Our chieatipgrdecisiormakers use consolidal
results to make operating and strategic decisions.
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BankFinancial, F.S.B.

The Bank is a full-service, communityiented federal savings bank principally engagethe business of commercial, family and pers
banking, and it offers our customers a broad rasfgean, deposit, and other financial products aadvices through 20 fuervice lllinois
based banking offices located in Cook, DuPage, laakeWill Counties, and through our Internet Bragngtvw.bankfinancial.com.

The Banks primary business is making loans and acceptipgsits. The Bank also offers our customers a waoéffinancial products ar
services that are related or ancillary to loans @egbsits, including cash management, funds tres)dfél payment and other online bank
transactions, automated teller machines, safe ddpmees, trust services, wealth management, andrgkinsurance agency services.

The Banks primary lending area consists of the countiesravlo@r branch offices are located, and contigu@usties in the State of Illino
We derive the most significant portion of our rewres from these geographic areas. Through our Wdlel€ommercial Lending and Natio
Commercial Leasing Departments, we also engageuiti-family lending activities in selected metropolitareas outside our primary lend
area and in commercial leasing activities on somatide basis.

We originate deposits predominantly from the amghsre our branch offices are located. We rely onfaworable locations, customer serv
competitive pricing, our Internet Branch and refatieposit services such as cash management totatrd retain these deposits. While
accept certificates of deposit in excess of theeRadDeposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIQIeposit insurance limits, we generally do
solicit such deposits because they are more diffiouretain than core deposits and at times areernostly than wholesale deposits.

Lending Activities

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmeartd business loans (muléimily, nonresidential real estate, commercial, starction an
land loans, and commercial leases), which reprede8.9% of our total loan portfolio of $1.030 loili at December 31, 2012 At
December 31, 2012 , $352.0 million , or 33.6% quff total loan portfolio consisted of multi-famityortgage loans; $264.7 million , or 25.3%
of our total loan portfolio consisted of nonresitighreal estate loans; $61.4 million , or 5.9%f our total loan portfolio consisted
commercial loans; $139.8 million , or 13.3% , of ¢otal loan portfolio consisted of commercial leg;sand $8.6 million or 0.8%of our tota
loan portfolio consisted of construction and landrs. $218.6 million , or 20.9% , of our total lgaortfolio consisted of one-tiwur family
residential mortgage loans (of which $58.3 millioar 5.6% were loans to investors in non-owner pi singlefamily homes), includin
home equity loans and lines of credit.

Deposit Activities

Our deposit accounts consist principally of saviagsounts, NOW accounts, checking accounts, morakehaccounts, certificates of depc
and IRAs and other retirement accounts. We proeim@mercial checking accounts and related servioek as cash management. We
provide low€ost checking account services. We rely on ourrie locations, customer service, competitiveipgcour Internet Branch a
related deposit services such as cash managematitatct and retain deposit accounts.

At December 31, 2012 , our deposits totaled $1128®n . Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.5b#on and noninteresbearing demar
deposits totaled $134.6 million , which included8#nillion in internal checking accounts such askbaashiers checks and money orde
Savings, money market and NOW account depositietb®842.5 million , and certificates of depostiated $305.3 million , of whic$212.¢
million had maturities of one year or less.

Related Products and Services

The Banks Wealth Management Group provides investmentnéirs planning and other wealth management sert@esir customers throu
arrangements with a third-party brolaaler. The Bank also provides trust and finangiahning services through the Trust Department
we acquired in the Downers Grove National Bank ga&tion. The Bank’s whollpwned subsidiary, Financial Assurance Services,
(“Financial Assurance”)sells property and casualty insurance and otharramee products on an agency basis. During the gpde!
December 31, 2012 , Financial Assurance reportédneeme of $69,000 . At December 31, 2012 , Fimnassurance had three fullne
employees. The Bank’s other wholbyvned subsidiary, BF Asset Recovery Corporatioim the business of holding title to and sellingtai
Bank-owned real estate acquired through colleditiion, and reported a loss of $5.3 million for ylear ended December 31, 2012 .

Website and Stockholder Information
The website for the Company and the Bank is wwwkbaancial.com. Information on this website doeg nonstitute part of this Annt
Report on Form 10-K.

The Company makes available, free of charge, ilsuahReport on Form 10-K, its Quarterly ReportsFamm 109, its Current Reports
Form 8-K and amendments to such reports filed miished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of theuSities
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Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange AetS)soon as reasonably practicable after such famngiled with or furnished to tl
SEC. Copies of these documents are available tckisbdders at BankFinancial's web site, www.bankficial.com, under Stockhold
Information, and at the SEC’s web site, www.sec.gov

Competition

We face significant competition in originating l@aand attracting deposits. The Chicago Metropolkesa and some other areas in whict
operate have a high concentration of financialitingbns, many of which are significantly largerstitutions that have greater finan
resources than we have, and many of which areaupetitors to varying degrees. Our competitionldans and leases comes principally f
commercial banks, savings banks, mortgage banlangpanies, the U.S. Government, credit unions, hgasompanies, insurance compar
real estate conduits and other companies that gedimancial services to businesses and individuails most direct competition for depo
has historically come from commercial banks, savibgnks and credit unions. We face additional caitigre for deposits from online financ
institutions and non-depository competitors sucthasmutual fund industry, securities and brokerfaiges and insurance companies.

We seek to meet this competition by emphasizinggraalized service and efficient decisimaking tailored to individual needs. In additiorg
reward longstanding relationships with preferred rates anch$ewn deposit products based on existing and petispdending business. We
not rely on any individual, group or entity for atarial portion of our loans or our deposits.

Employees

At December 31, 2012 , we had 332 full-time empésyand 34 patime employees. The employees are not representesl dollective
bargaining unit and we consider our working relasioip with our employees to be good.

Supervision and Regulation
General

As a federally chartered savings bank, the Bam&gsilated and supervised primarily by the Officehaf Comptroller of the Currency (“OCL”
The Bank is also subject to regulation by the FXGnore limited circumstances because the Baeposits are insured by the FDIC. -
regulatory and supervisory structure establishesmaprehensive framework of activities in which aaficial institution may engage, an
intended primarily for the protection of the FD#Cdeposit insurance fund, depositors and the bgnéystem. Under this system of fed
regulation, financial institutions are periodicatiyamined to ensure that they satisfy applicalaed#trds with respect to their capital adeqt
assets, management, earnings, liquidity and seitgito market interest rates. The OCC examinesBhek and prepares reports for
consideration of its Board of Directors on any iifeed deficiencies. After completing an examinatioghe OCC issues a report of examine
and assigns a rating (known as an institusdBAMELS rating). Under federal law and regulatioas institution may not disclose the cont
of its reports of examination or its CAMELS ratingsthe public.

The Bank is a member of, and owns stock in, theefeddHome Loan Bank of Chicago (“FHLBChich is one of the 12 regional banks in
Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank also islaegd by the Board of Governors of the FederabResSystem (“FRB"with regard t
reserves it must maintain against deposits, divddeand other matters. The Bask’elationship with its depositors and borrowersoai
regulated in some respects by both federal and ktats, especially in matters concerning the owniprsf deposit accounts, and the form
content of the Bank’s consumer loan documents.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ConsumereRtmn Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”)which was signed by the President on July 21, :
provided for the transfer of the authority for réaging and supervising federal savings banks froen@ffice of Thrift Supervision (“OTS"the
Bank’s previous regulator, to the OCC. The Ddéddnk Act also provided for the transfer of authyofor regulating and supervising savi
and loan holding companies and their non-deposgabsidiaries from the OTS to the FRB. The traisséecurred on July 21, 2011. The Dodd
Frank Act also created a new federal agency, thes@uer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPBEH%, an independent bureau within the |
system, to conduct ruleaking, supervision, and enforcement of federalkaarer financial protection and fair lending lawsl aagulation:
The CFPB has examination and primary enforcemetiitoaity in connection with these laws and regulagidor depository institutions wi
total assets of more than $10 billion. Depositostitutions with $10 billion or less in total assetuch as the Bank, continue to be examine
compliance with these laws and regulations by themary federal regulators, and remain subjethéir enforcement authority.

The DoddFrank Act also broadened the base for FDIC assegsnfier deposit insurance, permanently increasedntaximum amount

deposit insurance to $250,000 per depositor andiged noninterest bearing transaction accounts with unlichiieposit insurance throu
December 31, 2012 . The Do@idank Act increased shareholder influence overdmaf directors by requiring companies to give shatder
a non-binding vote on executive compensation arcbfied “golden parachutgfayments. The legislation directed the FRB to prigate rule
prohibiting excessive compensation paid to compacutives, regardless of whether the companyb$ghytraded. The Doddrrank Act als
provided for originators of certain securitizedriedo retain a percentage of the risk for transtkoredits, directed the FRB to regulate pri
of certain debit card interchange
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fees, repealed restrictions on paying interesth@mtking accounts and contained a number of refoetaged to mortgage origination.

There can be no assurance that laws, rules anthtiegns, and regulatory policies will not changethie future, which could make complia
more difficult or expensive or otherwise adversaffect our business, financial condition, resultoperations or prospects. Any chang
these laws or regulations, or in regulatory polighether by the OCC, the FDIC, the FRB, the CFPBanmgress, could have a material adv
impact on the Company, the Bank and their respeaperations. The following summary of laws andutations applicable to the Bank ¢
Company is not intended to be exhaustive and ififgpahin its entirety by reference to the actualk and regulations involved.

Federal Banking Regulation

Business ActivitiesAs a federal savings bank, the Bank derives itslitepand investment powers from the Home Ownéman Act, a
amended, and the regulations, pronouncements dagee of the OCC. Under these laws and regulatibesBank may invest in mortge
loans secured by residential and nonresidentidlestate, commercial business and consumer loansijrc types of securities and certain @
loans and assets. Specifically, the Bank may caitgininvest in, sell, or purchase unlimited loangh® security of residential real estate, w
loans on nonresidential real estate generally ntdyon a combined basis, exceed 400% of the Batdtal capital. In addition, secured
unsecured commercial loans and certain types ofrantial personal property leases may not exceed @0%e Banks assets; howewv
amounts in excess of 10% of assets may only befosexinall business loans. Further, the Bank maner@ly invest up to 35% of its asset
consumer loans, corporate debt securities and coomh@aper on a combined basis, and up to thetgred its capital or 5% of its asset:
unsecured construction loans. The Bank may invesbul0% of its assets in tangible personal prgpdor rental or sale. Certain leases
tangible personal property are not aggregated wittnmercial or consumer loans for the purposes oéroeéning compliance with tl
limitations set forth for those investment categsriThe Bank also may establish subsidiaries tlet emgage in activities not otherw
permissible for the Bank directly, including reatate investment and insurance agency activitiegiokation of the lending and investm
limitations may be subject to the same enforcemetthanisms of the primary federal regulator asrotiodations of a law or regulation.

Capital RequirementsFederal regulations require federal savings bamkadet three minimum capital standards: a ratitanfible capital t
adjusted total assets of 1.5%; a ratio of Tierdrg} capital to adjusted total assets of 4.0% (8f4rfstitutions receiving the highest rating
the CAMELS rating system); and a ratio of totalitato total riskadjusted assets of 8.0%. The prompt correctiv@madciandards discuss
below, in effect, establish a minimum 2% tangibpital standard. The OCC is also authorized tobésta individual minimum capit
requirements for federal savings banks in excesisesoAbove minimum capital standards.

The riskbased capital standard for federal savings bartjgnes the maintenance of Tier 1, or core capdtad] total capital (which is defined
core capital and supplementary capital) to riskglved assets of at least 4% and 8%, respectivelgetermining the amount of riskeightec
assets, all assets, including certain off-balarfees assets, are multiplied by a niskight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the cé
regulations based on the risks inherent in the offasset. Core capital is defined as common studkins’ equity (including retained earning
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock ratated surplus and minority interests in equitgaunts of consolidated subsidiaries,
intangibles other than certain mortgage servicights and credit card relationships. The componehssipplementary capital currently incl
cumulative perpetual preferred stock, long-termfggred stock, mandatory convertible securities,osdimated debt and intermediatr
preferred stock, allowance for loan and lease bspeto a maximum of 1.25% of riskeighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealizatsga
available-forsale equity securities with readily determinabie ffi@arket values. Overall, the amount of supplerasntapital included as part
total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capitaldifionally, a savings bank that retains credik iiis connection with an asset sale ma
required to maintain additional regulatory capittatause of the recourse back to the savings bank.

At December 31, 2012 , the Bank’s capital exceedegpplicable regulatory requirements and was wagfiitalized.

Proposed Capital RegulationThe federal banking agencies have proposed regotathat would substantially amend the capital legnns
currently applicable to us. The proposed regulatimould implement the “Basel llifegulatory capital reforms and changes requiredhk
Dodd-Frank Act. “Basel IllI'refers to various documents released by the BaseinGttee on Banking Supervision. As published,pghepose
regulations contemplated a general effective datganuary 1, 2013, and, for certain provisionsjotes phasen periods and later effecti
dates. However, the federal banking agencies hamewnced that the proposed regulations will notefiective on January 1, 2013. 7
agencies have not adopted final rules or publiskd modifications to the proposed regulations. ph@posed regulations as published
summarized below. It is not possible to predict wbein what form final regulations may be adopted.

The proposed regulations include new minimum chpétdos, to be phased in until fully effective danuary 1, 2015, and would refine
definitions of what constitutes “capital” for puigms of calculating those ratios. The proposed nawmmm capital
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ratios would be: (1) a new common equity Tier litzdpatio of 4.5%; (2) a Tier 1 capital ratio od¥6(increased from 4%); (3) a total car
ratio of 8% (unchanged from current rules); and évTier 1 leverage ratio of 4%. The proposed ra&ipms would also establish adpita
conservation buffertequirement of 2.5% above each of the new regylatonimum capital ratios to be phased in startinglanuary 1, 20:
and fully effective on January 1, 2019. An instiiatwould be subject to limitations on paying dedls, engaging in share repurchases
paying discretionary bonuses if any of its cafd#akls fell below the buffer amount.

The proposed regulations also implement other i@wsto the current capital rules, such as recagnivf all unrealized gains and losses
available for sale debt and equity securities, @odide that instruments that will no longer qualis capital would be phased out over time.

The federal banking agencies also proposed rewseffective January 1, 2015, to the prompt cowrecction framework, which is designet
place restrictions on insured depository institusiaf their capital levels show signs of weaknedsder the prompt corrective act
requirements, insured depository institutions wdoddrequired to meet the following in order to dfyahs “well capitalized:” {) a commo
equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.5%; &7Jier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8% (increaBed 6%); (3) a total riskased capital rat
of 10% (unchanged from current rules); and (4)ex Tileverage ratio of 5% (unchanged from the ciimeales).

The proposed regulations set forth certain charfigeshe calculation of riskveighted assets, effective January 1, 2015. Iniquéat, the
proposed regulations would establish nekighting categories generally ranging from 0% 8. government and agency securities to €
for certain equity exposures. Specifics includepagiothers:

» For residential mortgage exposures, changingtinent 50% risk weight for high-quality seasoneaitgages and 100% risk-weight
for all other mortgages to risk weights between 3% 200% depending upon the LTV ratio and othetiofa (but VA and FHA
guaranteed loans would have 0% risk weight).

» Applying a 150% risk weight instead of a 100%kniveight for certain high volatility commercialleestate acquisition, development
and construction loans.

« Assigning a 150% risk weight to exposures (othantresidential mortgage exposures) that are 90 mhestsdue

» Providing for a 20% credit conversion factor foe tinused portion of a commitment with an originakumity of one year or less tha
not unconditionally cancellable (currently set &&)0

» Certain increased capital requirements for cewpatrty credit risk relating to over-the-counteridgives, repos and securities
financing transactions.

The Company and the Bank have adopted Capital Phatsequire the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 leveraafio of at least 8% and a total risk
based capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipitahratios set forth in the Capital Plans will mereased and other minimum cag
requirements will be established if and as necggsacomply with the Basel Il requirements as suefuirements become applicable to
Company and the Bank. In accordance with the Capi@ns, neither the Company nor the Bank will per&ny acquisition or grow
opportunity, declare any dividend or conduct amycktrepurchase that would cause the Bank's tatkibased capital ratio and/or its Tie
leverage ratio to fall below the established minimcapital levels. In addition, the Company will tane to maintain its ability to serve a
source of financial strength to the Bank by holdideast $5.0 million of cash or liquid assetstfat purpose.

Loans-to-One-Borrower.A federal savings bank generally may not make a lmaextend credit to a single or related groufafrowers il
excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplusadditional amount may be loaned, equal to 10%nihpaired capital and surplus, if

loan is secured by readily marketable collaterdlictv generally does not include real estate. ADetember 31, 2012 the Bank was

compliance with the loans-to-one-borrower limitago

Qualified Thrift Lender Test.As a federal savings bank, the Bank is subject qoalified thrift lender (“QTL")test. Under the QTL test, 1
Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfoliesats” in “qualified thrift investments” in at leasine months of the most recent d@ntt
period. “Portfolio assetsjenerally means the total assets of a savingsutisti, less the sum of specified liquid asset$soup0% of total asse
goodwill and other intangible assets, and the vafymoperty used in the conduct of the federalrsgarbank’s business.

“Qualified thrift investments’include various types of loans made for residemtrad housing purposes, investments related to thogmse:
including certain mortgagkacked and related securities, and loans for patstamily, household and certain other purposesoug limit o
20% of portfolio assets. “Qualified thrift investnte” also include 100% of an institution’s credit
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card loans, education loans and small business.Iddre Bank also may satisfy the QTL test by quiag as a tiomestic building and loi
association” as defined in the Internal RevenueeCafd1986. At December 31, 201#he Bank satisfied the QTL test. A federal sasibgnl
that fails the QTL test must operate under spetifestrictions, including limits on growth, branefj new investment and dividends. A
result of the Dodd-Frank Act, noncompliance with TL test is subject to regulatory enforcemeribacas a violation of law.

Capital Distributions.The regulations of the OCC govern capital distiitmg by a federal savings bank, which include adistdends, stoc
repurchases and other transactions charged tmskitution’s capital account. A federal savings bank mustdileapplication for approval o
capital distribution if:

» the total capital distributions for the appli@balendar year exceed the sum of the institusioiet income for that year to date plus
federal savings bank’s retained net income foiptieeeding two years;

» the institution would not be at least adequatepitadized following the distributiol
» the distribution would violate any applicablatste, regulation, agreement or O@posed condition; ¢

« the institution is not eligible for expedited trnesmnt of its filings

Even if an application is not otherwise requireckrg federal savings bank that is a subsidiary leblaing company must still file a notice w
the FRB at least 30 days before the board of direadeclares a dividend or approves a capitalibligion. At December 31, 2012the Ban
would be required to file an application for appabef a capital distribution to the Company.

The FRB may disapprove a notice or application if:

» the federal savings bank would be undercapitaliabowing the distributior
» the proposed capital distribution raises safetysmdhdness concerns

» the capital distribution would violate a prohibiticontained in any statute, regulation or agreel

Liquidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintainficdant amount of liquid assets to ensure its safd sound operation.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Lawall federal savings banks have a responsibilityemtie Community Reinvestment ,
(“CRA") and related federal regulations to help meke credit needs of their communities, includitoyv- and moderateincome
neighborhoods. In connection with its examinatida éederal savings bank, the OCC is required tduate and rate the federal savings bank
record of compliance with the CRA. In addition, tEgual Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair HousiAgt prohibit lenders froi
discriminating in their lending practices basedtlom characteristics specified in those statutefed&ral savings bank’failure to comply wit
the provisions of the CRA could, at a minimum, keguregulatory restrictions on its activities. &lfailure to comply with the Equal Cre
Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could re$u enforcement actions by the OCC, as well é&eofederal regulatory agencies anc
Department of Justice. The Bank’s CRA performanas been rated as “Outstandinth& highest possible rating, in the CRA Perform
Evaluations of the Bank that have been conductezksi999.

Privacy StandardsFinancial institutions are subject to regulatiompliementing the privacy protection provisions of tBramm-LeactBliley
Act. These regulations require the Bank to discliaseprivacy policy, including identifying with whmo it shares fionpublic person
information” to customers at the time of establishing the custoralationship and annually thereafter. In additithe Bank is required
provide its customers with the ability to “opt-owf or consent to having the Bank share their nohpudersonal information with unaffiliat:
third parties before it can disclose such inforomtisubject to certain exceptions. The implemenatf these regulations did not hav
material adverse effect on the Bank. The Gramm-h&iitey Act also allows each state to enact legishatthat is more protective
consumers’ personal information.

The OCC and other federal banking agencies havetedoguidelines establishing standards for safetjugrcustomer information
implement certain provisions of the Gramm-LeacHeBli Act. The guidelines describe the agenciegpectations for the creati
implementation and maintenance of an informatiocuggy program, which would include administratitechnical and physical safegue
appropriate to the size and complexity of a finahizistitution and the nature and scope of itsviiets. The standards set forth in the guidel
are intended to ensure the security and confidégt@ customer records and information, to prétagainst any anticipated threats or haz
to the security or integrity of such records, angiotect against unauthorized access to or useaif records or other information that c«
result in substantial harm or inconvenience to @mtomer. The Bank has implemented these guidelmessuch implementation has not h
material adverse effect on our operations.

Transactions with Related PartiesA federal savings bank’s authority to engage imgextions with its “affiliates”is limited by OC(
regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the F@deeserve Act and its implementing regulationgtation W. The term “affiliatesfor
these purposes generally means any company thatololor is under common control with an insurecastory institution, althoug
subsidiaries of federal savings banks are genenaliyonsidered affiliates for the purposes of iBast23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve



The Company is an affiliate of the Bank. In gendrainsactions with affiliates
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must be on terms that are as favorable to the #deawvings bank as comparable transactions withafidiates. In addition, certain types
these transactions are restricted to an aggregateqpage of the federal savings bantapital. Collateral in specified amounts mustallgibe
provided by affiliates in order to receive loanenfr the federal savings bank. Federal regulatioss pfohibit a federal savings bank ft
lending to any of its affiliates that are engagedactivities that are not permissible for bank hadcompanies, and from purchasing
securities of any affiliate, other than a subsigiar

The Banks authority to extend credit to its directors, exee officers and 10% stockholders, as well asritities controlled by such persc
is currently governed by the requirements of Sestia2(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act aeguRtion O of the Federal Rese
Board. Among other things, these provisions reqthiat extensions of credit to insiders be madesoms that are substantially the same as
follow credit underwriting procedures that are lests stringent than, those prevailing for compaafsinsactions with unaffiliated persons
that do not involve more than the normal risk gfagment or present other unfavorable features,nadexceed certain limitations on

amount of credit extended to such persons, indallgdand in the aggregate, which limits are bagegart, on the amount of the Baslcapital
In addition, extensions of credit in excess ofaertimits must receive the prior approval of thenk’s Board of Directors.

Enforcement.The OCC has primary enforcement responsibility dederal savings banks, and this includes the aityhio bring enforceme
action against the Bank and all “institution-afftied parties,including stockholders, attorneys, appraisers awbuntants who knowingly
recklessly participate in wrongful action likely bave an adverse effect on an insured institui@mmmal enforcement action may range f
the issuance of a capital directive or cease amsistderder to the removal of officers and/or diogst receivership, conservatorship or
termination of deposit insurance. Civil monetarypaléies cover a wide range of violations and agj@nd range up to $25,000 per day, ul
a finding of reckless disregard is made, in whidsec penalties may be as high as $1 million per @hg. FDIC also has the authority
recommend to the OCC that an enforcement actidaksn with respect to a particular savings insttutlf action is not taken by the OCC,
FDIC has authority to take action under specifiedurnstances.

Standards for Safety and Soundneederal law requires each federal banking agengydscribe certain standards for all insured depry
institutions. These standards relate to, amongr dltiegs, internal controls, information systemsl audit systems, loan documentation, ¢
underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, assewtii, compensation and other operational and maisgagandards as the agency de
appropriate. The federal banking agencies adoptddgency Guidelines Prescribing Standards foet$afnd Soundness to implement
safety and soundness standards required underfdder The guidelines set forth the safety anchsloess standards that the federal bar
agencies use to identify and address problemssated depository institutions before capital becomgaired. The guidelines address inte
controls and information systems, internal auditems, credit underwriting, loan documentationer@st rate risk exposure, asset gro
compensation, fees and benefits. If the appropféteral banking agency determines that an institufails to meet any standard prescribe
the guidelines, the agency may require the ingtituio submit to the agency an acceptable plachéese compliance with the standard.

Prompt Corrective Action Regulatior. Under the prompt corrective action regulations,@&C is required and authorized to take superv
actions against undercapitalized federal saving&da-or this purpose, a federal savings bankaseaal in one of the following five categol
based on the federal savings bank’s capital:

» well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capitéh tier 1 risk-based capital and 10% total itisised capital

* adequately capitalized (at least 4% leveragé@alap% tier 1 risk-based capital and 8% totaklimsed capital

» undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capitaltier 1 risk-based capital or 8% total risksed capital

» significantly undercapitalized (less than 3%eage capital, 3% tier 1 risk-based capital or 64l riskbased capital); ai
» critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangitégital)

Generally, the banking regulator is required tocappa receiver or conservator for a federal savibgnk that is “critically undercapitalized.”
The regulations also provide that a capital resimmgplan must be filed with the OCC within 45 dafghe date a bank receives notice that
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZedr “critically undercapitalized.’A parent holding company for the institution inved/mus
guarantee performance under the capital restoratemup to the lesser of the institutisrcapital deficiency when deemed undercapitaliz
5% of the institutiors assets. In addition, numerous mandatory supeyisgions become immediately applicable to theefabsavings ban
including, but not limited to, restrictions on grihwinvestment activities, capital distributiondaaffiliate transactions. The OCC may also
any one of a number of discretionary supervisoyoas against undercapitalized federal savings ®ainicluding the issuance of a cay
directive and individual minimum capital requirent®and the replacement of senior executive offiaes directors.

The recently proposed rules that would increasaula¢gry capital requirements would adjust the prbraprrective action categor
accordingly.
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At December 31, 2012 , the Bank met the criterieb&ing considered “well-capitalized” as definedtie prompt corrective action regulations.

Interest on DepositsFederal laws and regulations previously prohibidegository institutions from paying interest on eoercial checkin
accounts. The Dodd-Frank Act authorized the payragmiterest on commercial checking accounts, éffecluly 21, 2011.

Insurance of Deposit AccountsThe Banks deposits are insured up to applicable limitshgyDeposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Unde
FDIC's risk-based assessment system, insured institutions ssignad to one of four risk categories based orersigpry evaluation
regulatory capital levels and certain other factasih less risky institutions paying lower assesats. An institutiors assessment rate depe
upon the category to which it is assigned, sulifecertain adjustments specified by the FDIC. TBéG=may adjust the scale uniformly, exc
that no adjustment may deviate by more than twashasints from the base scale without notice anehroent. No institution may pay
dividend if it is in default of the federal deposisurance assessment.

Assessment rates previously ranged from seven.®a&is points of assessable deposits. The Boaltk Act required the FDIC to revise
procedures to base its assessments upon tota$ dssetangible equity instead of on deposits. HDEC issued a final rule, effective April
2011, that implemented that change. The FDIC asised the assessment schedule and certain obfiséhfe adjustments so that the ranc
assessments is now 2.5 basis points to 45 basitspafitotal assets less tangible equity.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target Deposit fasce Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated insuredodiégs to 1.35% ¢
estimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seekhi@ae the 1.35% ratio by September 30, 2020. &tsunstitutions with assets of $10 bill
or more are supposed to fund the increase. The PBoaltk Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratiostead leaving the ratio to -
discretion of the FDIC. The FDIC recently exercisiealt discretion by establishing a long-range frat of 2%.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance agss#s. A significant increase in insurance premiwosld be likely have an adverse ef
on the operating expenses and results of operatibtise Bank. The Bank cannot predict what its iasge assessment rates will be in
future.

An insured institutiors deposit insurance may be terminated by the Fpidhwa finding that the institution has engagedreafe or unsout
practices, is in an unsafe or unsound conditionaictinue operations or has violated any applicédle regulation, rule, order or regulat
condition imposed in writing. The management of Bamk does not know of any practice, condition iotation that might lead to terminati
of deposit insurance.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the Finan€iagporation (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the appl®f the FDIC
assessments for anticipated payments, issuance angdtcustodial fees on bonds issued by the FICRer9805 to recapitalize the formr
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporationbodhes issued by the FICO are due to mature in #xbrgh 2019.

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangement. Federal savings banks are prohibited, subject mesexceptions, from extending credit tc
offering any other service, or fixing or varyingethonsideration for such extension of credit oviser on the condition that the customer ot
some additional service from the institution oraffiliates or not obtain services of a competibthe institution.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerithe Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Eysitem, which consists of 12 regional Federal F
Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System gesva central credit facility primarily for membestitutions. As a member of t
FHLBC, the Bank is required to acquire and holdretaf capital stock in the FHLBC in specified amisu As of December 31, 2012he
Bank was in compliance with this requirement.

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act requinancial institutions to develop programs toedétind report monelgundering an
terrorist activities, as well as suspicious adtgt The USA PATRIOT Act also gives the federal gmwment powers to address terrorist thi
through enhanced domestic security measures, egpdasdrveillance powers, increased information siga@énd broadened amtione)
laundering requirements. The federal banking agsnare required to take into consideration thectffeness of controls designed to con
moneylaundering activities in determining whether to mgy@ a merger or other acquisition application af@mnber institution. Accordingly,
we engage in a merger or other acquisition, outrotsdesigned to combat money laundering wouladiesidered as part of the applica
process. In addition, notempliance with these laws and regulations coutdltén fines, penalties and other enforcement nmegs We hay
developed policies, procedures and systems destgraaimply with these laws and regulations.
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Federal Reserve System

The FRB'’s regulations require federal savings battkgnaintain noninterestarning reserves against their transaction accosnish a
negotiable order of withdrawal and regular checkamgounts. At December 31, 2012he Bank was in compliance with these res
requirements. The balances maintained to meetaberve requirements imposed by the FRB may be wsedtisfy liquidity requiremen
imposed by the federal regulation.

Holding Company Regulation

The Company is a unitary savings and loan holdoygany and is subject to regulation and supervisiothe FRB. The FRB has enforcen
authority over the Company and its nssvings institution subsidiaries. Among other tBinthis authority permits the FRB to restric
prohibit activities that are determined to be & tsthe Bank. The Dod&rank Act provided for the transfer of the authofidr supervising ar
regulating savings and loan holding companies hait hondepository subsidiaries from the OTS to the FRBe fransfer occurred on July
2011.

The Company's activities are limited to the adtdgitpermissible for financial holding companiesfar multiple savings and loan holdi
companies. A financial holding company may engageadtivities that are financial in nature, incluglinnderwriting equity securities &
insurance, incidental to financial activities omg@ementary to a financial activity. The Do#fdank Act specifies that a savings and
holding company may only engage in financial hajdoompany activities if it meets the qualitativétenia necessary for a bank hold
company to engage in such activities. A multipleirsgs and loan holding company is generally limitedactivities permissible for ba
holding companies under Section 4(c) (8) of thekBHbIding Company Act, subject to the prior approohthe FRB, and certain additiol
activities authorized by FRB regulations.

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holdingngany, directly or indirectly, or through one ormsubsidiaries, from acquiring contro
another savings institution or holding company ¢oérwithout prior written approval of the FRB.dlso prohibits the acquisition or retent
of, with specified exceptions, more than 5% of élagity securities of a company engaged in actwitiet are not closely related to bankin
financial in nature or acquiring or retaining cahtof an institution that is not federally insuréd.evaluating applications by holding compa
to acquire savings institutions, the FRB must abeisthe financial and managerial resources anadiyitospects of the savings institution,
effect of the acquisition on the risk to the insw@& fund, the convenience and needs of the comynanit competitive factors.

Capital. Savings and loan holding companies are not cugresubject to specific regulatory capital requiretserThe Dodd-rank Act
however, requires the FRB to promulgate consoliiaapital requirements for depository institutioolding companies that are no |
stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of camgnts of capital, than those applicable to thais&liary depository institutions. Instrume
such as cumulative preferred stock and tprsferred securities, which are currently incluéawithin Tier 1 capital by bank holding comp:
within certain limits, will no longer be includabkes Tier 1 capital. However, instruments issuedMay 19, 2010 will be grandfathered
holding companies with assets of $15 billion osle€Bhere is a five-year transition period from fhy 21, 2010 effective date of the Dodd
Frank Act before the capital requirements will gpjgl savings and loan holding companies. As nobexve, the recently proposed capital r
would implement the consolidated capital requiretsdor savings and loan holding companies. Howeretwithstanding the DodBrank
statutory language, the proposed rules did notrpurate the referenced grandfather for instrumissised before May 19, 2010 or the trans
period, and it is uncertain whether any final nwi# do so.

Source of Strength DoctrineThe “source of strength doctrinegquires bank holding companies to provide findnassistance to the
subsidiary depository institutions in the event sbsidiary depository institution experiences fiicial distress. The Doderank Act extenc
the source of strength doctrine to savings and hadding companies. The applicable regulatory agsnmust issue regulations requiring
all bank holding companies and savings and loadihglcompanies serve as a source of strength toghlesidiary depository institutions
providing capital, liquidity and other support imes of financial distress.

The FRB has issued a policy statement regardingdyenent of dividends by bank holding companies ithhas made applicable to savi
and loan holding companies as well. In general piblecy provides that dividends should be paid omly of current earnings and only if
prospective rate of earnings retention by the iImgldiompany appears consistent with the organiZaticapital needs, asset quality and ov
financial condition. Regulatory guidance provides frior regulatory review of capital distributiomscertain circumstances such as wher
companys net income for the past four quarters, net afiéivds previously paid over that period, is insufint to fully fund the dividend or t
company’s overall rate of earnings retention ioirsistent with the compars/capital needs and overall financial conditione Eility of ¢
holding company to pay dividends may be restrictedsubsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. &megulatory policies could affect
ability of the Company to pay dividends or otheevngage in capital distributions.

Change in Control Regulations

Under the Change in Bank Control Act, no person a@yuire control of a savings and loan holding canypsuch as the Company unless
FRB has been given 60 days’ prior written noticd has not issued a notice disapproving the propaseqdisition,






Table of Contents

taking into consideration certain factors, inclugithe financial and managerial resources of thaliemgand the competitive effects of
acquisition. Control, as defined under federal laveans ownership, control of or holding irrevocatlexies representing more than 259
any class of voting stock, control in any mannethef election of a majority of the compasylirectors, or a determination by the regulatal
the acquiror has the power to direct, or directtyirairectly to exercise a controlling influence esy the management or policies of
institution. Acquisition of more than 10% of anyss$ of a savings and loan holding compamgting stock constitutes a rebuttable presum
of control under the regulations under certainwitstances including where, as is the case witiCtmpany, the issuer has registered sect
under Section 12 of the Exchange Act.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbane®xley Act of 2002 was enacted in response to putiiccerns regarding corporate accountability inneation with certai
accounting scandals. The stated goals of the Sasliaxiey Act are to increase corporate responsibitibyprovide for enhanced penalties
accounting and auditing improprieties at publialgded companies, and to protect investors by inipgothe accuracy and reliability
corporate disclosures pursuant to the securitigs.ldhe Sarbanedxley Act generally applies to all companies thia ér are required to fi
periodic reports with the SEC, under the Exchange A

The Sarbane®xley Act includes specific additional disclosueguirements, requires the SEC and national sessirékchanges to ad
extensive additional disclosure, corporate govestaand other related rules, and mandates furthdiest of certain issues by the SEC.

Federal Securities Laws

The Companys common stock is registered with the SEC underBkehange Act. The Company is subject to the infgiom, prox
solicitation, insider trading restrictions and athequirements of the Exchange Act.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities is subject to rigkserent in our business and the industry in whighoperate. Before making an investn
decision, you should carefully consider the riskd ancertainties described below and all otherrmtdion included in this report. The ri
described below may adversely affect our businf@sancial condition and operating results. In aidditto these risks and the other risks
uncertainties described in Item 1, “Business-FodMaooking Statements,” and Item Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fina
Condition and Results of Operationsiiere may be additional risks and uncertaintie$ d@in@ not currently known to us or that we curry
deem to be immaterial that could materially andeasely affect our business, financial conditioroperating results. The value or market
of our securities could decline due to any of thesatified or other risks. Past financial perfomoa may not be a reliable indicator of fur
performance, and historical trends should not leel tis anticipate results or trends in future peviod

Since our business is concentrated in the Chicagoditopolitan Area, local economic, market and compdive conditions can adversel
affect our business

Although we make certain types of loans and ledaselsorrowers located in other states, our lendind deposit gathering activities

concentrated primarily in the Chicago MetropolitArea. Our success can be affected by the geneoaloedc conditions of this area ¢
surrounding areas. In addition, many of the loansur loan portfolio are secured by real estatatkxt in the Chicago Metropolitan Ar
Negative conditions in the real estate markets wiwetlateral for a mortgage loan is located couwdeasely affect the borrower's ability
repay the loan and the value of the collateral seguhe loan. Real estate values are affected byynother factors beyond our cont
including real estate supply and demand, the imp&anortgage foreclosures and short sales, chamgegneral or regional econor
conditions and unemployment rates, interest rg@gernmental rules or policies and natural disastEne value of real estate located in n
segments of the Chicago Metropolitan Area has laeeincontinues to be adversely impacted by maniesfg factors, and this has had, and
continue to have, a negative impact on our loamvtrpour ability to collect certain loans accorditegtheir terms and market other real e:
loans at appraised values, and our results of tpesa

The commercial, multiamily and residential real estate markets in thec&@yo area continue to experience a variety dicdifies, including a
oversupply of properties in some market segments tdueconomic conditions, high unemployment rated a high level of foreclos
properties and properties in the process of forerta These adverse conditions have had a vafietgverse consequences for both lender:
borrowers, including a reduction in the value dilrestate collateral and OREO, an increase in foaralue ratios, higher vacancy rates
lower rents, a reduction of the borrowing capacityeal estate borrowers and an increase in sicatigaults resulting from the reductior
elimination of the equity that borrowers once hathieir real estate investments.

We face substantial competition in all phases af @perations from a variety of different compestoOur future growth and success
depend on our ability to compete effectively irsthighly competitive environment. To date, our cefitjve strategies
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have focused on attracting deposits in our localketa, and growing our loan and lease portfolioelyphasizing specific loan product:
which we have significant experience and experidentifying and targeting markets in which we beé we can effectively compete w
larger institutions and other competitors, and rirfiie highly competitive pricing to commercial bowers with low risk profiles. We compt
for loans, deposits and other financial serviceth wiher commercial banks, thrifts, credit uniongpkerage houses, mutual funds, insur
companies, real estate conduits, mortgage broketspecialized finance companies. Many of our cditgee offer products and services |
we do not offer, and many have substantially gretssources and lending limits, name recognitiod amarket presence that benefit ther
attracting business. In addition, larger compegitoray be able to price loans and deposits moreeagigely than we do, and because of
larger capital bases, their underwriting practitmssmaller loans may be subject to less regulasarytiny than they would be for sma
banks. Newer competitors may be more aggressiypeiding loans and deposits in order to increase tharket share. Some of the finan
institutions and financial services organizatiorithwhich we compete are not subject to the extensegulations imposed on federal sav
banks and their holding companies. As a resultsegheonbank competitors have certain advantages wveén accessing funding and
providing various financial services.

Repayment of our commercial and commercial real eate loans typically depends on the cash flows of@hborrower. If a borrower's
cash flows weaken or become uncertain, the loan manged to be classified and the collateral securirte loan may decline in value

We underwrite our commercial and commercial reshtesloans primarily based on the historical andeeted cash flow of the borrow
Although we consider collateral in the underwritimgpcess, it is a secondary consideration thatrgéimeelates to the risk of loss in the ey
of a borrower default. We have also adopted the ®@ablished guidance for assigning ristings to loans, and it emphasizes the strenc
the borrower's cash flow. Specifically, the OC®@anl risk-rating guidance provides that the primaogsideration in assigning risktings t
commercial and commercial real estate loans istieagth of the primary source of repayment, wilsctiefined as a sustainable source of
under the borrower's control that is reserved,ieitlyl or implicitly, to cover the debt obligatiomhe OCC's loan riskating guidance typical
does not consider secondary repayment sourcesthatitrength of the primary repayment source weskand collateral values typically
not have a significant impact on a loan's risknggi until a loan is classified. Consequently, barower's cash flows weaken or beci
uncertain, the loan may need to be classified, dredr not the loan is performing or fully securbdaddition, real estate appraisers typic
place significant weight on the cash flows genefdty incomeproducing real estate and the reliability of thehcdlows in performin
valuations. Thus, economic or borrowsgrecific conditions that cause a decline in bormgash flows could cause our loan classificatiam
increase and the appraised value of the collasex@lring our loans to decline.

Historically low interest rates could continue to aversely affect our net interest income and profithility

Our consolidated operating results are largelyeddpnt on our net interest income. Net interestrime is the difference between inte
earned on loans and investments and interest expecigred on deposits and other borrowings. Ouimterest income is impacted by char
in market rates of interest, changes in credit &se changes in the shape of the yield curve, itexeist rate sensitivity of our assets
liabilities, prepayments on our loans and investisieand the mix of our funding sources and asaeteng other things.

In recent years it has been the policy of the Badit@overnors of the Federal Reserve System totaiaimterest rates at historically low lev
through its targeted federal funds rate and thehmage of securities. As a result, the interessratenew loans we have originated, the int
rates on maturing loans that we have renewed angigids on securities we have purchased durirgpbiiod have been at historically |
levels. Our ability to offset this by lowering tiwterest rates that we pay on deposits is sevdirelied because interest rates on deposit
already at historic lows. These factors contributed 23 basis points decline in our net interpstad in 2012. The Board of Governors ol
Federal Reserve System has indicated its intemdionaintain low interest rates for an additionaliqe: of time. Accordingly, our net inter
income (the difference between interest incomeezhon assets and interest expense paid on liab)lithay continue to decrease, which
have an adverse effect on our profitability.

Changes in market interest rates could adversely &fct our financial condition and results of operatbns

Our financial condition and results of operations significantly affected by changes in marketri@st rates because our assets, primarily |
and our liabilities, primarily deposits, are momgta nature. Our results of operations depend tautiglly on our net interest income, whic
the difference between the interest income tha¢ara on our interest-earning assets and the intexpsnse that we pay on our interesaring
liabilities. Market interest rates are affectedrbginy factors beyond our control, including inflatjigecession, unemployment, money suj
domestic and international events, and changdseitunited States and other financial markets. @tiinterest income is affected not only
the level and direction of interest rates, but dgdhe shape of the yield curve and relationsbgtsveen interest sensitive instruments anc
driver rates, including credit risk spreads, andhalance sheet growth, customer loan and depaditnences and the timing of changes in t
variables which
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themselves are impacted by changes in market siteates. As a result, changes in market inteegssrcan significantly affect our net inte
income as well as the fair market valuation of assets and liabilities.

While we take measures intended to manage the frisks changes in market interest rates, we canowtral or accurately predict change:
market rates of interest or be sure our protectieasures are adequate. If the interest rates pai@mosits and other interest bearing liabil
increase at a faster rate than the interest rat=sved on loans and other interest earning assatsiet interest income, and therefore earn
could be adversely affected. We would also inchigher cost of funds to retain our deposits ifisang interest rate environment. While
higher payment amounts we would receive on adjiestalbe loans in a rising interest rate environnmeay increase our interest income, s
borrowers may be unable to afford the higher payraerounts, and this could result in a higher rdtdaefault. Rising interest rates also r
reduce the demand for loans and the value of fia¢elinvestment securities.

Our business may be adversely affected by the newgulatory environment in which we operate

The DoddFrank Act, which was signed by the President oty Al, 2010, provided for the transfer of the autiyofor regulating an
supervising federal savings banks from the OTSh® ®CC, and the authority for regulating and sugery savings and loan holdi
companies and their natepository subsidiaries from the OTS to the FRBe Tansfer occurred on July 21, 2011, and on thtt,dhe OC
became the primary federal regulator of the Bank i@ FRB became the primary federal regulatorhef Company. The transition of
Company and the Bank to this new supervisory agdla¢ory structure presents risks, potential litotas and adjustments that were
present when the Company and the Bank were supdraisd regulated exclusively by the OTS. For exairile OCC's published guida
and practices for assigning risk ratings to comimatéfoans focuses more heavily on cash flows ttmenldan risk rating guidance and pract
of the OTS, and requires that a performing loanclassified if it exhibits weldefined weaknesses, even if the loan does not mre
probability of default or loss. The OCC's morergjant loan riskating practices have contributed to the increashé Bank's classified loz
and have increased the Bank's risk of being sudgletd supervisory measures. In addition, the FédReserve Board takes a m
comprehensive approach than the OTS did to holdimgpany supervision and regulation. For exampke Gbmpany is now subject to Fed
Reserve Board Supervisory Letter SR 9)9which has the effect of imposing restrictions dimidends and stock repurchases in ce
circumstances. The Company does not have sufficienincome for the past four quarters net of diwids previously paid to declare a divid
without first consulting with and seeking the apgloof the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago. The @ow's ability to pay dividends on
common stock could be further limited by the apiien of the Federal Reserve Board's source ofgtinedoctrine, which requires hold
companies to provide financial support to theirssdiary depository institutions if the subsidiasyin financial distress, or by regulatory or
These regulatory changes have affected, and wilirmee to affect, the regulatory environment in efhive operate.

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiernto cover actual loan losses, our earnings would laelversely impacted

In the event that our loan customers do not repaly toans according to their terms, and the ceditsecuring the repayment of these loa
insufficient to cover any remaining loan balance, @ould experience significant loan losses or @®eeour provision for loan losses or b
which could have a material adverse effect on @arating results. At December 31, 2012, our allaeafor loan losses was $18.0 milli
representing 1.72% of total loans and 64.39% ofpediorming loans as of that date. In determining &mount of our allowance for Ic
losses, we rely on our loan quality reviews, oupegience and our evaluation of economic conditi@mpng other factors. In addition,
make various estimates and assumptions about tleetebility of our loan portfolio, including thereditworthiness of our borrowers and
value of the real estate and other assets, if s@yjng as collateral for the repayment of our odiWe also make judgments concerning
legal positions and the priority of our interestontested legal or bankruptcy proceedings, atichats, we may lack sufficient information
establish adequate specific reserves for loandvadan such proceedings. We base these estimaesmptions and judgments on informe
that we consider reliable, but if an estimate, agstion or judgment that we make ultimately prowe®¢ incorrect, additional provisions to
allowance for loan losses may become necessagnddition, as an integral part of their supervisang/or examination process, our regula
agencies periodically review the methodology anffidency of the allowance for loan losses. Thegereies may require us to recog!
additions to the allowance based on their incluséelusion or modification of risk factors or difences in judgments of information avail:
to them at the time of their examination.

A substantial portion of our loan portfolio is secued by real estate. Deterioration in the real esta markets could lead to additione
losses, which could have a material negative effemh our financial condition and results of operatims.

A substantial portion of our loan portfolio is seed by real estate. At December 31, 2012, our fmatfolio included $352.0 million in multi-
family mortgage loans, or 33.6% of total loans, 4Z6million in nonresidential real estate loans26r3% of total loans, $218.6 million in one:
to four family residential real estate loans, or92@ of total loans (which includes $80.6 million mon-owner occupied orte-four family
residential real estate loans, or 6.4% of totah&)and $8.6 million in construction and land lqaors0.8% of total loans. Adverse condition
the real estate markets, particularly in the Chicagga, have been a significant factor behind thleen than normal chargeffs and provisior
for loan losses we have experienced in recent years
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As a result of these and other factors, we haver@pced higher levels of chargés, loan classifications and provisions for ldasses on o1
real estate loans and writlwns on our other real estate owned. The persistehthese adverse conditions could result intenidil defaults
charge-offs, provisions for loan losses and loasgifications.

Our sources of funds are limited because of our hding company structure

The Company is a separate legal entity from itssislidries and does not have significant operatwings own. Dividends from the Ba
provide a significant source of cash for the Conypdiine availability of dividends from the Bank imlted by various statutes and regulati
Under these statutes and regulations, the Ban&tipermitted to pay dividends on its capital sttwkhe Company, its sole stockholder, if
dividend would reduce the stockholders' equityhef Bank below the amount of the liquidation accoestablished in connection with

mutual-tostock conversion. Federal savings banks may pagetids without the approval of its primary fedemedulator only if they me
applicable regulatory capital requirements befare after the payment of the dividends and totaidéinds do not exceed net income to

over the calendar year plus its retained net incower the preceding two years. Although the Bankjsital exceeded applicable regula
requirements at December 31, 2012, the Bank dichaed sufficient net income over the preceding years to pay a dividend to the Comp
without receiving prior regulatory approval. Ifthe future, the Company utilizes its available cistother purposes and the Bank is unak
pay dividends to the Company, the Company may aet lsufficient funds to pay dividends.

New or changing tax, accounting, and regulatory riés and interpretations could have a significant imact on our strategic initiatives
results of operations, cash flows, and financial cwlition

The banking services industry is extensively refgulaand the degree of regulation is increasing tdudgne DoddFrank Act and regulato
initiatives precipitated by the Dodgkank Act and the economic downturn and the rewmylidisruptions that certain financial marl
experienced. These regulations, along with theegtiy existing tax, accounting, securities, insegnand monetary laws, regulations, rt
standards, policies and interpretations, contmlnttethods by which financial institutions and tHetding companies conduct business, en
in strategic and tax planning and implement stiatégtiatives, and govern financial reporting adidclosures. These laws, regulations,
standards, policies and interpretations are cotigtavolving and may change significantly over time

Trading activity in the Company's common stock cou result in material price fluctuations

It is possible that trading activity in the Compangommon stock, including shaelling or significant sales by our larger stocktess, coul
result in material price fluctuations of the priger share of the Company's common stock. In addisach trading activity and the resul
volatility could make it more difficult for the Camany to sell equity or equitselated securities in the future at a time andepifcdeem
appropriate, or to use its stock as consideratomf acquisition.

Various factors may make takeover attempts that youmight want to succeed more difficult to achieve, hich may affect the value ¢
shares of our common stock

Provisions of our articles of incorporation anddws, federal regulations, Maryland law and variotier factors may make it more difficult
companies or persons to acquire control of the Gampwithout the consent of our board of directdfsu may want a takeover attemp
succeed because, for example, a potential acqoineld offer a premium over the then prevailing eriaf our shares of common stc
Provisions of our articles of incorporation anddws$ also may make it difficult to remove our cutrbaard of directors or management if
board of directors opposes the removal. We hawesldo be subject to the Maryland Business ContioimaAct, which places restrictions
mergers and other business combinations with Istagkholders. In addition, our articles of incomun provide that certain mergers and ¢
similar transactions, as well as amendments tadigles of incorporation, must be approved by ldhotders owning at least twibvirds of ou
shares of common stock entitled to vote on the enaithless first approved by at least tthords of the number of our authorized direct
assuming no vacancies. If approved by at leastthivds of the number of our authorized directossueming no vacancies, the action must
be approved by a majority of our shares entitledai® on the matter. In addition, a director carrdsaoved from office, but only for cause
such removal is approved by stockholders ownirlgagt twothirds of our shares of common stock entitled ttevam the matter. However, i
least twothirds of the number of our authorized directossuening no vacancies, approves the removal ofegtdir, the removal may be w
or without cause, but must still be approved by aomity of our voting shares entitled to vote o tmatter. Additional provisions inclu
limitations on the voting rights of any benefic@iners of more than 10% of our common stock. Odawey, which can only be amended
the board of directors, also contain provisionsarding the timing, content and procedural requingsi€or stockholder proposals ¢
nominations.

FDIC deposit insurance costs have increased and macrease further in the future
FDIC insurance rates have increased significarglyd we may pay higher FDIC deposit premiums in fitere. The Dodd-rank Ac

established 1.35% as the minimum Designated Re$tatie (“DRR”) for the deposit insurance fund. The FDIC has deterchthat the DR
should be 2.0% and has adopted a plan under wihigh meet the statutory minimum DRR of 1.35% Imetstatutory
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deadline of September 30, 2020. The Dé&ddnk Act requires the FDIC to offset the effectimstitutions with assets less than $10 billiorite
increase in the statutory minimum DRR to 1.35% fritv@ former statutory minimum of 1.15%. The FDIGsheot announced how it w
implement this offset. The Dod&rank Act also requires the FDIC to base depositri@nce premium on an institution's total assetsimit:
tangible equity instead of its deposits. The FD&S hdopted regulations that base assessmentsiks aad thrifts with total assets of less
$10 billion on a combination of financial ratiosdaregulatory ratings. This new method has caused-BUC deposit insurance premiums
increase and presents a risk that they will in@eaghe future. If circumstances require the FDd@mpose additional special assessmer
further increase its quarterly assessment ratisscdluld also have an adverse impact on our restitiperations.

The Bank is required to maintain a significant perentage of its total assets in residential mortgageans and investments secured |
residential mortgage loans, which restricts our ality to diversify our loan portfolio

A federal savings bank or thrift differs from a cmercial bank in that it is required to maintairestst 65% of its total assets iqualified thrifi
investmentswhich generally include loans and investmentsttierpurchase, refinance, construction, improvenmantepair of residential re
estate, as well as home equity loans, educatiamslead small business loans. To maintain our fédandngs bank charter we have to |
“qualified thrift lender” or “QTL"in nine out of each 12 immediately preceding monttne QTL requirement limits the extent to which ea
grow our commercial loan portfolio, and as a resfithe DoddFrank Act, failing the QTL test can result in arf@nement action. Howewt
multi-family mortgage loans as well as certain loans exateeding $2 million (including a group of loans doe borrower) that are 1
commercial, corporate, business, or agriculturappses are included in our qualified thrift investits. Because of the QTL requirement
may be limited in our ability to change our asset and increase the yield on our earning assetgdmying our commercial loan portfolio.

We continually encounter technological change, anthay have fewer resources than many of our competite to continue to invest ir
technological improvements

The financial services industry is undergoing raggichnological changes, with frequent introductioh:mew technologyriven products ar
services. The effective use of technology increa$iisiency and enables financial institutions titbr serve customers and to reduce costs
future success will depend, in part, upon our gbit address the needs of our customers by usittgnblogy to provide products and serv
that will satisfy customer demands for convenierasewell as to create additional efficiencies in operations. Many of our competitors h
substantially greater resources to invest in teldgical improvements. We also may not be able fectively implement new technology-
driven products and services or be successful iketiag these products and services to our custamer

We are subject to security and operational risks riating to our use of technology

We depend on the secure processing, storage amgiission of confidential and other informationour data processing systems, compt
networks and communications systems. Although Wwe taumerous protective measures and otherwise eodéa protect and maintain 1
privacy and security of confidential data, thes&tems may be vulnerable to unauthorized accesgyutemviruses or other malicious code,
other events that could have a security impaabné or more of such events were to occur, thisntiatéy could jeopardize confidential a
other information processed and stored in, andsimdtted through, our systems or otherwise causgrimitions or malfunctions in our or «
customers' operations. We may be required to expardficant additional resources to modify our teaive measures or to investigate
remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, aadnay be subject to litigation and financial losked are not fully covered by our insurai
Security breaches in our internet banking actisitieuld expose us to possible liability and detest@mers from using our systems. We rel
standard internet security systems to provide doairsty and authentication necessary to effectrgetransmission of data. These precau
may not fully protect our systems from compromisedreaches of our security measures that couldtri@sdamage to our reputation and
business. Although we perform most data proceshingtions internally, we outsource certain servitegshird parties. If our third par
providers encounter operational difficulties or @y breaches, it could affect our ability to adately process and account for custc
transactions, which could significantly affect dwsiness operations.

Our operations rely on numerous external vendors.

We rely on numerous external vendors to providevitis products and services necessary to maintairday-today operations. According
our operations are exposed to risk that these wenddl not perform in accordance with the conteattarrangements under service |
agreements. The failure of an external vendor tdopm in accordance with the contracted arrangememider service level agreeme
because of changes in the vendor's organizationadtgre, financial condition, support for existipgoducts and services or strategic foct
for any other reason, could be disruptive to owrapons, which in turn could have a material negaimpact on our financial condition &
results of operations. We also could be adverdédgimd to the extent such an agreement is nowweddy the third party vendor or is rene
on terms less favorable to us.
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New lines of business or new products and servicemy subject us to additional risks.

From time to time, we may seek to implement newdiof business or offer new products and servid#snaexisting lines of business in ¢
current markets or new markets. There are subataigks and uncertainties associated with thefmtef particularly in instances where
markets are not fully developed. In developing aratketing new lines of business and/or new prodaictsservices, we may invest signific
time and resources. Initial timetables for theddtrction and development of new lines of busineska new products or services may nc
achieved and price and profitability targets mayprove feasible, which could in turn have a malaregative effect on our operating results.

Non-Compliance with USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy At, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Truth-kbending Act or other
laws and regulations could result in fines or san@ins

Financial institutions are required under the USATRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts to develop programpr&vent financial institutions fro
being used for monelaundering and terrorist activities. Financial ingtons are also obligated to file suspicious\attireports with the U.¢
Treasury Department's Office of Financial CrimedoEtement Network if such activities are detect&@tese rules also require finan
institutions to establish procedures for identifysnd verifying the identity of customers seekiogpen new financial accounts. Failure ot
inability to comply with these regulations couldué in fines or penalties, curtailment of expansipportunities, intervention or sanctions
regulators and costly litigation or expensive addél controls and systems. During the last fewgeseveral banking institutions have rece
large fines for norcompliance with these laws and regulations. In taatdithe U.S. Government imposed and will contitmexpand laws al
regulations relating to residential and consumadileg activities that create significant new coraptie burdens and financial risks. We t
developed policies and continue to augment proasdamd systems designed to assist in complianbethdse laws and regulations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We conduct our business at 20 banking offices &mt@t the Chicago metropolitan area. We own a ritgjof our banking center facilitie
except for our Chicago-Lincoln Park, NorthbrookdahicagoHyde Park East offices, which are leased. We ghwvate two satellite natior
commercial leasing offices and two remote ATMs drsswhere we do not have a fslrvice banking office. We believe that all of
properties and equipment are well maintained, mdgaperating condition and adequate for all ofpmasent and anticipated needs.

We believe our facilities in the aggregate areaflé and adequate to operate our banking and debatsiness. Additional information w
respect to premises and equipment is presentedtim ®Nof "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statewsieinttem 8 of the Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject tiowsitegal actions arising in the normal coursbusiness. In the opinion of management,
based on currently available information, the resoh of these legal actions is not expected tetmmaterial adverse effect on the Company’
results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NAS[BA@al Select Market under the symbol “BFINChe approximate number of hold
of record of the Company’s common stock as of D31, 2012 was 1,638. Certain shares of the Coyipa&ommon stock are held
“nominee” or “street” name, and accordingly, thenier of beneficial owners of such shares is notmor included in the foregoing number.
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The following table presents quarterly market infation provided by the NASDAQ Stock Market for tiempanys common stock and ce
dividends paid for the periods ended December 312 2nd 2011 .

Cash
Dividends

2011 and 2012 Quarterly Periods High Low Close Paid
Quarter ended December 31, 2012 $ 88t % 6.6z $ 7.4z % —
Quarter ended September 30, 2012 9.24 7.31 8.7¢ 0.01
Quarter ended June 30, 2012 7.5€ 5.6¢€ 7.53 0.01
Quarter ended March 31, 2012 7.0t 5.2t 6.62 0.01
Quarter ended December 31, 2011 $ 8.8¢ $ 52¢ $ 552 $ 0.01
Quarter ended September 30, 2011 8.62 6.51 6.6 0.07
Quarter ended June 30, 2011 9.5t 8.1(C 8.47 0.07
Quarter ended March 31, 2011 10.1¢ 8.4z 9.1¢ 0.07

As a result of the regulatory restructuring occasibby the Dodd-Frank Act, the Company is subjeétdderal Reserve Board Supervisory
Letter SR 094, which provides that a holding company shouldo@agnother things, notify and make a submissiorméoRederal Reserve Be
prior to declaring a dividend if its net income fitre current quarter is not sufficient to fully flithe dividend, and consider eliminati
deferring or significantly reducing its dividenddts net income for the current quarter is noffisignt to fully fund the dividends, or if its r
income for the past four quarters, net of dividepdssiously paid during that period, is not sufici to fully fund the dividends. The Compi
will continue to consult with, and seek the prippeoval of, the Federal Reserve Bank prior to déajgany dividends.

The Company is also subject to state law limitation the payment of dividends. Maryland law gemgiahits dividends to an amount equa
the excess of our capital surplus over paymentsvibald be owed upon dissolution to stockholder®senpreferential rights upon dissolur
are superior to those receiving the dividend, andrt amount that would not make us insolvent predjdowever, that even if the Company’
assets are less than the amount necessary toy shtesfrequirement set forth above, the Company make a distribution from: (1)t
Company’s net earnings for the fiscal year in which distribution is made; (2) the Compagyiet earnings for the preceding fiscal yea
(3) the sum of the Comparsyhet earnings for the preceding eight fiscal quartDividends from the Bank provide a significaatrce of cas
for the Company. The availability of dividends frahe Bank is limited by various statutes and retipias. For a discussion of the Bask’
ability to pay dividends, see Part I, Item 1, “Bweds — Supervision and Regulation — Federal BanRiegulation — Capital Distributions.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
The Company had no sales of unregistered stockgltine quarter ended December 31, 2012 .
Repurchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors had authorized the repurehasup to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock. r€purchase authorization expirec
November 15, 2012. The authorization permittedesh#w be repurchased in open market or negotiededéctions, and pursuant to any tra
plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rulebd0of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thboaation was utilized
management's discretion, subject to the limitatiseisforth in Rule 1048 of the Securities and Exchange Commission aher atpplicabl
legal requirements, and to price and other intelingtations established by the Board of Directoks. of December 31, 201,2the Compan
had repurchased 4,239,134 shares of its commoR staicof the 5,047,423 shares that had been auttbffior repurchase. Federal Res
Board Supervisory Letter SR @Bprovides that holding companies experiencingriinea weaknesses such as operating losses shatiflyl arwo
make a submission to the Federal Reserve Bankéedoieeming or repurchasing common stock. The Coynpas no plans to conduct s
discussions with the Federal Reserve supervisaff@t engage in stock repurchases at this time.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following line graph shows a comparison ofthenulative returns for the Company, the Russel020@dex, the NASDAQ Bank Index a
the America’s Community Bankers NASDAQ Index fortperiod beginning December 31, 2007 and endingember 31, 2012 The
information assumes that $100 was invested at lii&ng price on December 31, 2007 in the CommorckSand each index, and that

dividends were reinvested.
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12/31/2007  12/31/2008  12/31/2009  12/31/2010  12/31/2011  12/31/2012
BankFinancial Corporation 100.0¢ 65.6¢ 65.51 66.37 38.41 51.91
Russell 2000 Index 100.0( 66.21 84.2( 106.8: 102.3¢ 119.0¢
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0( 76.0¢ 62.0( 69.37 60.7¢ 70.3¢
America’'s Community Bankers NASDAQ Index 100.0¢ 80.4: 63.2¢ 69.0¢ 63.21 72.9(
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information is derived from the awatitconsolidated financial statements of the Compaayadditional information, reference
made to ltem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Arnsglg$ Financial Condition and Results of Operatiorad the Consolidated Financ
Statements of the Company and related notes indledewhere in this Annual Report.

At and For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Condition Data:

Total assets $ 148119 $ 156357 $ 1,530,65 $ 1,566,960 $  1,554,85!
Loans, net 1,030,46! 1,227,39. 1,050,76! 1,218,541 1,268,12;
Loans held-for-sale 2,16¢ 1,91¢ 2,71¢ — 872
Securities, at fair value 77,83: 92,83: 120,74 102,12t 124,91
Goodwill — — 22,56¢ 22,56¢ 22,56¢
Core deposit intangible 3,03¢ 3,671 2,70C 4,29t 5,98t
Deposits 1,282,35. 1,332,55; 1,235,37 1,233,39! 1,069,85!
Borrowings 5,567 9,32 23,74¢ 50,78« 200,35(
Equity 172,89( 199,85 253,28! 263,60: 266,79:

Selected Operating Data:

Interest and dividend income $ 60,727 $ 69,70¢ $ 64,93t $ 74,10¢ $ 77,96(
Interest expense 4,447 6,91¢ 13,18¢ 20,557 25,66
Net interest income 56,28( 62,79: 51,75( 53,55 52,29!
Provision for loan losses 31,52: 22,72 12,08 8,811 5,092
Net interest income after provision for loan
losses 24,75¢ 40,07( 39,66 44,74: 47,20:
Noninterest income 6,852 7,311 7,12¢ 7,23¢ 10,41¢
Noninterest expense (1) 58,71¢ 83,70¢ 53,84¢ 52,73: 89,05¢
Loss before income tax expense (27,109 (36,32)) (7,059 (751) (31,43)
Income tax expense (benefit) (2) — 12,37¢ (2,747 (13) (12,049
Net loss $ (27,109 $ (48,69¢) $ (4,307 $ (738) $ (19,389
Basic loss per common share $ (1.3 $ (2.46) $ 0.22) % (0.0 % (0.9¢)
Diluted loss per common share $ (2.3¢) $ (2.4¢) $ (0.22) $ (0.09) $ (0.9¢)

(footnotes on following pag
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At and For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:
Return on assets (ratio of net loss to averagé tota
assets) (1.79% (3.00% (0.28% (0.09% (1.39%
Return on equity (ratio of net loss to average ®jjui (13.3¢) (19.49) (1.69 (0.2¢) (6.89
Net interest rate spredtl 3.8¢ 4.0¢ 3.3¢ 3.3¢ 3.3t
Net interest margif? 3.92 4.2( 3.51 3.6¢ 3.8¢
Efficiency ratio ® 93.01 85.3¢ 91.4¢ 86.7¢ 142.0:
Noninterest expense to average total as@ets 3.817 3.6¢ 3.4F 3.3¢ 6.0¢
Average interest-earning assets to average intere:
bearing liabilities 123.1% 122.6¢ 122.5¢ 123.4: 127.8¢
Dividends declared per share $ 0.0z $ 0.22 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢
Dividend payout ratio N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M.
Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets to total asséts 2.5¢ % 6.31% 3.92% 3.42% 0.94%
Nonperforming loans to total loans 2.67 6.0t 4.2¢ 4.01 1.07
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 64.3¢ 41.6¢ 48.5¢ 37.6: 107.97
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.72 2.52 2.07 1.51 1.1¢
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 3.91 1.04 0.7t 0.3¢ 0.11
Capital Ratios:
Equity to total assets at end of period 11.67% 12.7¢ % 16.55 % 16.82 % 17.1€%
Average equity to average assets 13.3¢ 15.4% 16.7: 17.0Z 19.3¢
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Bank only) 9.6( 10.4¢ 12.4¢ 12.4¢ 12.0¢
Other Data:
Number of full-service offices 20 2C 18 18 18
Employees (full-time equivalents) 352 357 32¢ 372 39z
2) Noninterest expense for the year ended Decembe2(®1], includes a full goodwill impairment of $23xllion. Noninterest expense for the ye
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 includes $40&@d$35.9 million, respectively, of impairment lasssecurities.
2) Income tax expense for the year ended Decembeé¥(d1, includes a full valuation of the deferred &aset of $22.6 millio
3) The net interest rate spread represents fiieratice between the yield on average interestiegrassets and the cost of average intdyeatin(
liabilities for the period.
4) The net interest margin represents net intémesme divided by average total intereaining assets for the peri
5) The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expeess goodwill impairment, divided by the sum ef mterest income and noninterest incc
(6) The noninterest expense to average total assetgeptesents noninterest expense less goodwikimment, divided by average total ass
@) Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loarsather real estate own

N.M. Not Meaningful
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows focusetherfactors affecting our consolidated financiahdition at December 31, 2012 and 2Q11
and our consolidated results of operations forttinee years ended December 31, 2002ir consolidated financial statements, the rdlatee:
and the discussion of our critical accounting peficappearing elsewhere in this Annual Report shdad read in conjunction with tl
discussion and analysis.

Overview of 2012

Core Operating Earnings and Franchise Growth

Total loans declined in 2012 due to several factGmsistent with our practices in previous yeams,actively managed our loan portfolic
exit certain multifamily, commercial real estatedatommercial loan relationships based on our oversdessment of the borrowers,
industries in which they operate and future cotkdtgaluations. Given the growth we experiencedun multifamily and commercial real est
loan portfolios from the acquisitions that we cocteal in 2011, we did not emphasize the aggressigsation of multifamily and commerci
real estate loans in 2012; however, principally tumtensified competitive forces from larger ingions, the declines in our multifamily lo
portfolio and healthcare commercial loan portfoliere greater than planned. Lack of demand for taljles rate residential mortgage lo:
coupled with accelerating fixedte refinance activity as 2012 progressed, reduttea decline in our residential mortgage loantfpio. Out
commercial lease origination volumes were 19% highe2012 than 2011 and contributed to an increasthe commercial lease portfa
balances at the end of 2012.

We managed our deposit portfolio, including theas#{s acquired in the Downers Grove National Baakgaction, to retain the highest v
core deposit relationships and reduce our costradd to the lowest practicable levels. We ende@ 2€ith our highesever core deposit ratio
76.2% of total deposits and our lowest-ever costindls of 0.38% for the year.

Our noninterest income decreased in 2012 as ttenoes from the new Trust Department and mortgagkimg operations were offset by
declines in deposit-related fee income resultiognfiprovisions of the Dodd-Frank Act that becamedf¥e during 2011.

Our core noninterest expense remained wetitained in 2012, even with the addition of theMbers Grove National Bank operating exper
We continue to implement new processes and techmsdo reduce staffing needs where feasible vdhilleinvesting in business developme
customer service and marketing resources to foigtiere growth with existing and new customers.

Asset Quality & Cred-Related Expenses

We consider the total balances of nonperformingndoand repossessed assets to be an importantcasgity metric. Our creditelatec
expenses include any required provisions for laassés, writelowns of repossessed assets to current market, zaideexpenses related to
collection, management and sale of nonperformigdoand repossessed assets. Although we traclotiperiorming loans and reposse:
assets we acquired from Downers Grove National Baplarately for management and certain accountingpges, these nonperforming as
are included in our total balances for financigdaging and OCC regulatory purposes. At Decembe2812, nonperforming assets relate
Downers Grove National Bank were 31% of our totaiperforming assets.

We executed our plan to achieve a material redudticmonperforming assets and future nonperfornaisget expenses during 2012. Consi
with our previous disclosures, we utilized multipleset disposition techniques to implement this,glecluding two “bulk liquidationsand ths
designation of certain loans as “held-for-sg&@hding a third bulk sale. These actions, combingd the accelerated disposition of cer
OREO properties, writdowns that were taken on other OREO propertieatdithte their disposition and loan restructurirgmducted i
accordance with applicable regulatory and accognfimidance, reduced our nonperforming loans by $44illion, or 66%, and ol
nonperforming assets by $60.3 million, or 61%. @i of nonperforming assets to total assets wa8% at December 31, 2012, the lov
metric we have reported since June 2009.

We firmly believe the actions taken in 2012 weretfte Company's lonterm benefit, despite the substantial costs, gthan distressed as
sales in the Chicago Metropolitan Area continuedtominate valuation assessments and the consideexisless inventory of potent
dispositions remaining in the market. These actiwiisalso allow us to return our focus in 2013 t@mm normalized operations, with
emphasis on diversified and measured loan growthraving nonintereshcome, implementing additional expense control sness and takir
other steps that we believe should enhance shatehedlue.

The year 2012 ended with a materially reduced lef/plast due loans compared to 2011, and withapson of the gradual improvement in
asset quality trends resulting from our continuiegplutions of nonperforming assets on an ordeabish
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Objectives for 2013
Preservation and Expansion of Core Operating Eags

Subject to the execution of our loan portfolio gtbwbjectives, historically low market interestastand yields and everereasing competitiy
forces in the Chicago metropolitan area, we belibat some compression of our net interest masggossible in 2013 as the interest rate
maturing loans, or loans not subject to a prepaymenalty, change to current market interest rateaddition, we anticipate we may be abl
offset some of the effects of yield compressiorhwiitrther loan portfolio diversification, some matigrowth in noninterest income anc
necessary, further reductions of core operatinges@s. As we expect the present economic envirantmeontinue for a considerable pel
of time in the Chicago metropolitan area, we wilhtinue to accelerate the evolution of our loartfpbio towards a configuration that pern
better growth rates in multiple, independent segmeiith comparable riskdjusted yields. Through these actions, we hop@poove our cor
operating earnings in 2013 to the extent feasibteta continue developing the capabilities to expaore operating earnings in future periods.

Results of Operation
Net Income

Comparison of Year 2012 to 201We recorded a net loss of $27.1 million for theryeraded December 31, 2012ompared to a net loss
$48.7 million for 2011 . The net loss for 2012 vpmBnarily due to a $31.5 million provision for lodosses and $12.7 millioof expense fc
nonperforming asset management and operation$ef ctal estate owned. The $31.5 millmovision for loan losses included a $11.5 mil
charge relating to the consummation of two bulkilsales and a $5.9 million charge relating to thedfer of loans to the held for sale portf
in preparation for a bulk sale. The net loss fot P@vas primarily due to the recording of a goodwilpairment expense of $23.9 milligre
$22.6 million valuation allowance for deferred tassets, a $22.7 million provision for loan lossesl &10.8 million of expense fc
nonperforming asset management and operationdhef otal estate owned. Our loss per share of constumkfor the year ended Decem
31, 2012 was $1.36 per share, compared to $2.4¢haee for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Comparison of Year 2011 to 2018Ve recorded a net loss of $48.7 million for theryeraded December 31, 201tompared to a net loss
$4.3 million for 2010 . The net loss for 2011 wasrarily due to the recording of a goodwill impaienmt expense of $23.9 million ,$22.¢
million valuation allowance for deferred tax asset$22.7 million provision for loan losses and $lfillion of expense for nonperformi
asset management and operations of other reakestated. The net loss in 2010 was due in substg@rato our recording $12.1 millior
provision for loan losses, $7.3 millidor nonperforming asset management and operatibasher real estate owned. Our loss per sha
common stock for the year ended December 31, 2@K1$2.46 per share, compared to $0.22 per shatlkeefgear ended December 31, 2010.

Net Interest Incom

Net interest income is our primary source of rexerNet interest income equals the excess of iritéresme (including discount accretion
purchased impaired loans) plus fees earned oreBttearning assets over interest expense incurrédterestbearing liabilities. The level
interest rates and the volume and mix of interastiag assets and interdstaring liabilities impact net interest income ehetst rate spread
net interest margin are utilized to measure andagxjghanges in net interest income. Interest sptead is the difference between the yiel
interest-earning assets and the rate paid forestbearing liabilities that fund those assets. The intdtrest margin is expressed as
percentage of net interest income to average stt@@ning assets. The net interest margin exdbéedsterest rate spread because nonintere
bearing sources of funds, principally noninterestting demand deposits and stockholders' equéy,aalpport interest-earning assets.

The accounting policies underlying the recognitidrinterest income on loans, securities, and oifiterestearning assets are included in M
1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsitém 8 of this Form 10-K.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth average balance tshemverage yields and costs, and certain otharnmdtion. No taxequivalent yiel
adjustments were made, as the effect of thesetauuss would not be material. Average balanceslaily average balances. Nonaccrual I«
are included in the computation of average balarimgishave been reflected in the table as loanyiogra zero yield. The yields set forth be
include the effect of deferred fees and expenssspdnts and premiums, purchase accounting adjussnteat are amortized or accrete
interest income or expense.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Average Average Average
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Interest-earning Assets:

Loans $ 1,155,82 $ 58,71¢ 5.0 $ 1,261,70. $ 66,70¢ 52% $ 1,140,86! $ 60,92¢ 5.34%
Securities 80,03( 1,48t 1.8¢ 106,06( 2,66¢ 2.51 86,03: 3,48¢ 4.0t
Stock in FHLBC 10,72¢ 29 0.27 16,24: 1€ 0.1C 15,59¢ — —
Other 185,96 497 0.27 112,06: 321 0.2¢ 208,74: 522 0.2%
Total interest-earning

assets 1,432,54. 60,727 4.2¢4 1,496,07! 69,70¢ 4.6¢€ 1,451,23 64,93¢ 4.47
Noninterest-earning assets 86,19: 125,93 111,31

Total assets $ 1,518,73 $ 1,622,00 $ 1,562,55:

Interest-bearing Liabilities:

Savings deposits $ 144,68 14¢ 0.1C $ 135,12 211 0.1€ $ 98,33¢ 421 0.4z
Money market accounts 346,11¢ 1,262 0.3€ 350,22¢ 1,59: 0.4t 347,25( 3,25¢ 0.94
NOW accounts 335,55: 41€ 0.1z 323,29! 50C 0.1t 295,72( 1,441 0.4¢
Certificates of deposit 328,52¢ 2,517 0.77 398,05¢ 4,38¢ 1.1C 405,18t 7,21¢ 1.7¢
Total deposits 1,154,88: 4,34: 0.3¢ 1,206,70! 6,69: 0.5t 1,146,491 12,33 1.0¢€
Borrowings 8,16: 104 1.27 12,75¢ 222 1.74 37,65: 85: 2.27
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 1,163,04! 4,445 0.3¢ 1,219,46 6,91¢ 0.57 1,184,14! 13,18¢ 1.11
Noninterest-bearing deposit 134,80 131,69! 102,29:
Noninterest-bearing
liabilities 18,03¢ 20,69¢ 14,00t
Total liabilities 1,315,88: 1,371,85 1,300,441
Equity 202,84! 250,15( 262,10!
Total liabilities and
equity $ 1,518,73 $ 1,622,00 $ 1,562,55:
Net interest income $ 56,28( $ 62,79 $§ 51,75(
Net interest rate spre&d 3.8% 4.0% 3.3%
Net interest-earning asséts $  269,49° $ 276,60 $ 267,08t
Net interest margif? 3.92% 4.2(% 3.51%

Ratio of interest-earning
assets to interest-bearing
liabilities 123.1% 122.69% 122.5¢%

Q) Net interest rate spread represents the differbatgeen the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average intbessing liabilities

2) Net interes-earning assets represents total interest-earssetsless total interesearing liabilities
3 Net interest margin represents net interest incdivided by average total inter-earning asse!
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Comparison of Year 2012 to 201 Net interest income decreased by $6.5 million1@A% , to $56.3 milliofior the year ended December
2012 , from $62.8 million for the year ended Decentfil, 2011. Our net interest rate spread decre2@dyxhsis points to 3.86%r the yea
ended December 31, 2012 , compared to 4.09% fot 2@wur net interest margin decreased by 27 basiggpto 3.93%or the year ende
December 31, 2012 , from 4.20% for 2011 . Our ayeraterest-earning assets decreased $63.5 mibi®1.433 billionfor the year ende
December 31, 2012 , from $1.496 billion for 20Bhd our average interest-bearing liabilities desed#$56.4 million to $1.163 billioim 2012
from $1.219 billion in 2011.

Comparison of Year 2011 to 201(Net interest income increased by $11.0 million 20r3% , to $62.8 milliorior the year ended Decem
31, 2011 , from $51.8 million for the year endecc®mber 31, 2010. Our net interest rate spreadaserk73 basis points to 4.0986 the yea
ended December 31, 2011, compared to 3.8@%he year ended December 31, 2010. Our netdstenargin increased by 63 basis poin
4.20% for the year ended December 31, 2011 , fr&7i98 for the year ended December 31, 2010. Ouageenteresearning assets increa
$44.8 million to $1.496 billion for the year end2dl11, from $1.451 billion for the year ended Decentil, 2010, and our average interes
bearing liabilities increased $35.3 million to $192billion in 2011, from $1.184 billion in 2010. &hncreases in the average interstAing
assets and average interbstring liabilities were impacted by our acquisitio March 2011 of Downers Grove National Bank angbrtfolic
of performing Chicago area multi-family loans.

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the dollar amountludriges in interest income and interest expensdomajor categories of our interestrning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Infornmatis provided for each category of interest-earraggets and intereBearing liabilities witl
respect to changes attributable to changes in wl{i., changes in average balances multipliethbypriorperiod average rate), and char
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in averagematkiplied by priorperiod average balances). For purposes of thig,tabhlnges attributable
both rate and volume that cannot be segregateddemmreallocated proportionately to the change duelume and the change due to rate.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 vs. 2011 2011 vs. 2010
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Total Total
Increase Increase
Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans $ (5,429 $ (2,566 $ (7,990 $ 6,35¢ $ (579 $ 5,78(
Securities (5749 (60€) (1,180 694 (1,517 (823
Stock in FHLBC (7) 2C 13 — 1€ 16
Other 20C (24) 17€ (279 73 (201
Total interest-earning assets (5,805) (3,176 (8,98)) 6,77¢ (2,007 4,77:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits 16 (79) (63) 12C (330) (210
Money market accounts (18) (313 (331) 28 (1,687 (1,659
NOW accounts 18 (102) (84) 127 (1,06%) (941)
Certificates of deposit (689) (1,189 (1,872 (125) (2,705 (2,830
Borrowings (67) (52) (11¢) (46€) (16%5) (631)
Total interest-bearing liabilities (740) (1,72¢) (2,46¢) (316) (5,959 (6,277
Change in net interest income $ (5,065 $ (1,449 $ (6,519 $ 7,098 $ 3,94¢ % 11,04:
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Provision for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichciugrged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we con:
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit lasst® loan portfolio. In determining the level thie allowance for loan losses, we cons
past and current loss experience, evaluationsabiestate collateral, current economic conditimafyme and type of lending, adverse situat
that may affect a borrowes’ability to repay a loan and the levels of nonpening and other classified loans. The amount efdtlowance |
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfnaamysuch estimates as more information becomasadle or events change. We asses
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basisnaakle provisions for loan losses in order to mamthe allowance.

The provision for loan losses totaled $31.5 millfonthe year ended December 31, 2012 , compar8d2d million in 2011 an12.1 millior
in 2010. The provision for loan losses is a funttid the allowance for loan loss methodology we tasdetermine the appropriate level of
allowance for inherent loan losses after net chaffehave been deducted. Net charge-offs were2$dbllion in 2012, compared t$13.2
million in 2011 and $8.5 million in 2010. Net chargffs for 2012 included a $10.8 million chargié-relating to compliance with the OCi
regulatory transition guidance concerning the elmtion of special valuation allowances, as wellaa$17.4 million charge relating to -
consummation of two bulk loan sales and the trarefféoans to the held for sale portfolio in pregaon for a bulk sale. For further analysis
information on how we determine the appropriateldor the allowance for loan losses and analysiredit quality, seeCritical Accounting
Policies” and “Risk Classification of Loans and@lance for Loan Losses.”

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31, Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)

Deposit service charges and fees $ 2,17¢ 3 2,661 $ 3,02 % (491 $ (35%)
Other fee income 1,52 1,59¢ 1,86¢ (76) (270
Insurance commissions and annuities income 51C 65¢ 77t (149 (11€)
Gain on sale of loans, net 841 34C 501 501 (167)
Gain on sales of securities — — 31 — (3D
Loss on disposition of premises and equipment (15¢) (19 (19 (137) —
Loan servicing fees 48¢ 53¢ 604 (52 (66)
Amortization of servicing assets (26%) (252) (549 (13 297
Recovery (impairment) of servicing assets (55 (15) 74 (40) (89
Earnings on bank owned life insurance 43¢ 62€ 43( (18¢) 19¢
Trust income 735 67¢ 44 57 632
Other 622 49¢ 34¢ 12¢ 15C
Total noninterest income $ 6,852 §$ 7311 § 7,128 $ (465) $ 18¢

Comparison of Year 2012 to 201Dur noninterest income decreased by $465,000 ®$#lion for the year ended December 31, 204@m
$7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2@dposit service charges and fees decreased $4910004®B.4% , to $2.2 million , froi$2.7
million for 2011, primarily attributable to the irapt that the Doddrrank Act had on certain deposit service chargesfess. Gains on the s
of loans increased by $501,000 , to $841,000 , ewethbto $340,000 for 2011. We recorded an impaitrakservicing assets of $55,064F the
year ended December 31, 2Ccompared to an impairment of $15,0@02011, due to increased delinquency rates instrgiced portfolic
Bank-owned life insurance produced earnings of $BBfor 2012, a decrease of $188,000 , or 30.68tnpared to a $626,000r 2011 due t
decreased annualized policy returns.

Comparison of Year 2011 to 201@ur noninterest income increased by $189,000/8 fhillion for the year ended December 31, 2011, -
$7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2@lx. noninterest income for 2011 included trust diepent income of $676,008bmpared t
$44,000for 2010. The increase in trust department incoras due to the operation of the Trust Departmentiieed, in the Downers Gro
National Bank transaction on March 18, 20

Additional factors affecting the change in nonietrincome included a $353,000 , or 11.78fecrease in deposit service charges and fi

$2.7 million , from $3.0 million for 2010, primayilattributable to the impact that the DoBtank Act had on certain deposit service chargd
fees. Bank-owned life insurance produced earnif@$26,000 for 2011, an increase of 45.6% , comp&re $430,000 for 2010.
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Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31, Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)

Compensation and benefits $ 2575 $ 26,020 $ 26,33¢ $ (27¢) $ (312
Office occupancy and equipment 6,84( 7,31¢ 6,38( (479 93¢
Advertising and public relations 68¢ 89( 1,27 (201) (387)
Information technology 4,63¢ 4,18: 3,73: 45€ 44¢
Supplies, telephone and postage 1,68 1,69¢ 1,59¢ (11 10z
Amortization of intangibles 633 1,68¢ 1,59¢ (1,05¢) 94
Nonperforming asset management 5,211 4,431 3,34z 78C 1,08¢
Loss on sale other real estate owned 253 15 41F 23¢ (400
Valuation adjustments of other real estate owned 5,56( 3,97( 2,39¢ 1,59( 1,57¢
Operations of other real estate owned 1,67¢ 2,35( 1,165 (672) 1,18¢
FDIC insurance premiums 1,77¢ 1,441 2,12¢ 33¢ (68E)
Acquisition costs — 1,761 81 (1,767 1,68(
Goodwill impairment — 23,86: — (23,867) 23,86:
Other 4,00( 4,07: 3,40¢ (73) 665
Total noninterest expense $ 58,71¢ $ 83,70¢ $ 53,84¢ $ (24,989 $ 29,85¢

Comparison of Year 2012 to 201For the year ended December 31, 2012, nonintexpsinee decreased by $25.0 million , or 29.9%58.7
million , from $83.7 million for 2011. Noninteresixpense for 2011 included a $23.9 millignodwill impairment expense and expel
relating to the acquisitions of Downers Grove NadioBank and a portfolio of mulfamily loans from Citibank. Amortization of intarmes
decreased $1.1 million , or 62.5% , to $633,000nfi$1.7 millionin 2011. Noninterest expense for 2011 included awposit intangibl
amortization expenses relating to the acquisitibisuccess National Bank; the core deposit intaegibl Success National Bank was fi
amortized as of November 2011. Noninterest exp&rs2012 included $7.5 millioof nonperforming asset management and OREO exp
compared to $6.3 million for 2011. Nonperformingetsmanagement expenses increased $780,000 ton$kod for the year ended Decem
31, 2012 , compared to $4.4 million in 2011. ORB@eanses for the year ended December 31, 2012 mtlad$5.6 millionof valuatior
adjustment to OREO properties compared to a $4libmialuation adjustment in 2011. The increase in tanaadjustments was due in |
to a revision of our disposition strategy for certtncome-producing OREO properties from an ordirajuidation pricing model to ¢
aggressive pricing model designed to stimulate etatkmand.

Comparison of Year 2011 to 201@or the year ended December 31, 2011, nonintexpsiee increased by $29.9 million , or 55.4%%88.7
million from $53.8 million for 2010. The increaseasvprimarily due to the recording of a $23.9 millgoodwill impairment expense in 20
increased nonperforming asset management and ORE&@tmns expenses, and expenses recorded in ¢mmedh acquisitions. Stockase!
compensation expense decreased $2.1 million bethesaajority of stock awards fully vested in Ded®m2010. The decrease in stdidse:
compensation expense was partially offset by regittansitional staffing expenses relating to theMders Grove National Bank acquisit
and the additional staffing that was required fu trust department and the two branch offices weat acquired in the transaction. Of
occupancy and equipment expense increased $939¢0003t.7% , to $7.3 million , compared to $6.4limi for 2010, due in substantial par
the Downers Grove National Bank acquisition. Nosiast expense for 2011 included $6.3 millafnnonperforming asset management
OREO expenses, compared to $4.0 million for 201dnpérforming asset management expenses increaskdndition to $4.4 millionfor the
year ended December 31, 2011, compare$3.3 million in 2010. Acquisition expenses reflected a $1.4iomllexpense relating to t
acquisition of Downers Grove National Bank, inchgli$518,000 for data processing contracts and tipeah expenses and $675,000 con
and severance payments, and a $396,000 expensegétaour Chicago area multi-family loan purch&sen Citibank.

Income Taxes

Comparison of Year 2012 to 2011For the year ended December 31, 2012e recorded no income tax expense or benefittdube ful
valuation allowance we established for deferredassets, compared to an income tax expense of $iiign for the year ended December
2011, which was recorded in connection with thal@&hment of a full deferred tax asset valuatibomaance.
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Comparison of Year 2011 to 2010-or the year ended December 31, 2011, we recondéucame tax expense of $12.4 million, compare
an income tax benefit of $2.7 million for 2010. Treeognition of the $12.4 million income tax experer 2011 resulted from a naast
charge of $22.6 million for the establishment diikh valuation allowance for our deferred tax asséthe effective tax rate was 38.94% for
year ended December 31, 2010. The effective taxfoatthe year ended December 31, 2011 is not mghnidue to the size of our operat
loss relative to the income expense resulting friloenvaluation allowance.

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31,@12 and December 31, 2011

Total assets decreased $82.4 million , or 5.3% $1t@81 billion at December 31, 2012 , from $1.%84on at December 31, 2011 The
decrease in total assets was primarily due to eedee in loans receivable. The decrease was paxdffdet by an increase in cash and «
equivalents. Net loans decreased $196.9 milliop1t®30 billion at December 31, 2012 , from $1.28foh at December 31, 2011Net cas
and cash equivalents increased by $155.1 millid2i&5.8 million at December 31, 2012 , from $124illion at December 31, 2011 .

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmearid business loans (muléimily, nonresidential real estate, commercial,starction an
land loans, and commercial leases), which togettaate up 78.9% of gross loans at December 31, 2N&2 loans receivable decreassi®6.¢
million , or 16.0% , to $1.030 billion at Decemi&dr, 2012 , from $1.227 billion at December 31, 20Multi-family mortgage loans decrea:
by $71.6 million , or 16.9% ; commercial loans d&ged by $32.5 million , or 34.6% ; nonresidemtal estate loans decreased $47.0 millior
or 15.1% ;construction and land loans decreased3$hillion , or 56.9% . One-to-four family resid@itmortgage loans decreas$f3.z
million , or 19.6% . Commercial leases increase®&4y million , or 3.6% .

Our allowance for loan losses decreased by $13lfomi, or 43.2% , to $18.0 million at December 3012 , from $31.7 millioral
December 31, 2011 . The decrease reflects the cmuibimpact of a $31.5 million provision for loars$ées offset by $45.2 milliom ne
charge-offs. Net charge-offs for 2012 included 8.8Imillion chargesff relating to compliance with the OCC's regulgttnansition guidanc
concerning the elimination of special valuatioroadances.

Securities decreased $15.0 million , or 16.2%$7%8.8 million at December 31, 2012 , from $92.8imil at December 31, 201 due primarih
to the receipt of principal repayments of $19.7lionl on residential mortgage-backed and collateealimortgage obligations. During 2042c
2011, we also invested in FDIC insured certifisai€deposit issued by other insured depositorjtii®ns.

Deposits decreased $50.2 million , or 3.8% , t@&%2 billion at December 31, 2012 , from $1.333idnillat December 31, 201XCore deposi
(savings, money market, noninterest-bearing denaaaddNOW accounts) increased by $9.0 millid@ore deposits increased as a percente
total deposits, representing 76.2% of total depaiDecember 31, 2012 , compared to 72.7% of degabsits at December 31, 2011 .

Certificates of deposit decreased $59.2 million 1&2% , to $305.3 million at December 31, 201h{r$364.4 million at December 31, 2011
The decrease was primarily due to our lesseningonnpetitive pricing position in anticipation ofditional excess liquidity resulting from lo
payments and bulk sales of loans.

Total stockholders’ equity was $172.9 million atdember 31, 2012 , compared to $199.9 million atebdwer 31, 2011 The decrease in to
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the $2million net loss that we recorded for the yearesh@®ecember 31, 2012The unallocate
shares of common stock that our ESOP owns werectefl as a $12.2 million reduction to stockholderguity at December 31, 2012
compared to $13.2 million at December 31, 2011 .

Securities

Our investment policy is established by our BodrBioectors. The policy emphasizes safety of theegiment, liquidity requirements, poten
returns, cash flow targets, and consistency withiterest rate risk management strategy.

At December 31, 2012 our mortgage-backed secuatielscollateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOsgjlected in the following table we
issued by U.S. governmesponsored enterprises and agencies, Freddie ManijgFislae and Ginnie Mae, and are obligations withehfedere
government has affirmed its commitment to supphlitsecurities reflected in the table were clagsifias available-for-sale Becember 3:
2012, 2011 and 2010 .

We hold FHLBC common stock to qualify for membepsim the Federal Home Loan Bank System and toigilkd to borrow funds under t
FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate cost oFbliBC common stock as of December 31, 2012 was $@ln based on its par vall
There is no market for FHLBC common stock. Due to i@ceipt of stock dividends in prior years and #imount of our outstanding FHLI
advances, we owned shares of FHLBC common stoBleeémber 31, 201®ith a par value that was $1.1 million more thanweze require
to own to maintain our membership in the FederahEdoan Bank

26






Table of Contents

System and to be eligible to obtain advances (“exter “voluntary”capital stock). During 2012, we redeemed $7.9 amllof excess FHLB

stock.

The following table sets forth the composition, atized cost and fair value of our securities.

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Amortized Fair Amortized Amortized
Cost Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities:
Certificates of deposits $ 33,45¢ $ 33,45¢ $ 30,44¢ $ 30,44¢ 3 27,76t $ 27,76¢
Municipal securities 35C 36¢ 51t 551 67t 70¢
Equity mutual fund 50C 52¢ 50C 524 — —
SBA - guaranteed loan participation
certificates 42 42 47 47 102 10t
Total 34,34¢ 34,39t 31,51( 31,57( 28,54« 28,58(
Mortgage-backed Securities:
Mortgage-backed securities -
residential 32,57: 34,23 34,69 36,07¢ 41,03« 42,43t
CMOs and REMICs - residential 9,111 9,20¢ 24,831 25,18¢ 48,26: 49,73:
Total mortgage-backed securities 41,68: 43,43" 59,52¢ 61,26: 89,29¢ 92,16"
Total $ 76,03 $ 77,83 $ 91,03t % 92,83 $ 117,84( $ 120,74

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgererally determined by quoted prices, in actiekets, for each specific security. If quc
market prices are not available for a marketabletggecurity, we determine its fair value basedtmquoted price of a similar security tra
in an active market. The fair values of debt sdimgiare generally determined by matrix pricingjaliis a mathematical technique widely L
in the industry to value debt securities withouyireg exclusively on quoted prices for the spec#iecurities, but rather by relying on
securities’relationship to other benchmark quoted securifié® fair value of a security is used to determime amount of any unrealiz
losses that must be reflected in our other commisitie income and the net book value of our seeustiti

We evaluate marketable investment securities wghificant declines in fair value on a quarterlysizato determine whether they shoulc
considered other-thaemporarily impaired under current accounting gnaa which generally provides that if a marketaggeurity is in a
unrealized loss position, whether due to generaketaonditions or industry or issuspecific factors, the holder of the securities masstes
whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields

The composition and maturities of the securitiedfptio and the mortgagbacked securities portfolio at December 31, 20&2sammarized
the following table. Maturities are based on theaficontractual payment dates, and do not refleetimpact of prepayments or e:
redemptions that may occur. Municipal securitiedds have not been adjusted to a tax-equivalers,@sthe amount is immaterial.

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield

(Dollars in thousands)

Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ 33,45¢ 05(% $ — —% $ — —% $ — —%
Municipal securities 17C 4.4k 18C 4.6( — — — —
Equity mutual fund 50C 1.9¢ — — — — — —
SBA guaranteed loan participation
certificates — — — — 42 1.7¢F — —
Total 34,12¢ 0.5t 18C 4.6 42 1.7¢ — —

Mortgage-backed Securities:
Pass-through securities:

Fannie Mae 20 4.5C 91t 5.6¢ 16 2.2t 13,75: 2.9¢
Freddie Mac — — 46 1.9:2 30¢ 1.92 2,12¢ 3.54
Ginnie Mae — — — — 121 1.7t 15,26¢ 2.54
CMOs and REMICs — — — — — — 9,111 2.2
Total 20 4.5C 961 5.41 44F 1.8¢ 40,25¢ 2.6€
Total securities $ 34,14¢ 0.55% $ 1,141 53% $ 487 1.871% $ 40,25¢ 2.6€%
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Loan Portfolio
We originate multfamily mortgage loans, nonresidential real estasng, commercial loans, commercial leases, andtroatisn and lan
loans. In addition, we originate oneftmir family residential mortgage loans and consulo&ns, and purchase and sell loan participatitoms

time-to-time. Our principal loan products are dissed in Note 4 of the "Notes to Consolidated Firzr&tatements” in Item 8 of this Form 10.
K.

The following table sets forth the composition af toan portfolio, excluding loans held-for-salg,thpe of loan.

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 218,591 20.8% $ 272,03: 21.6% $ 256,30( 23.9% $ 289,62 23446 $ 312,39( 24.3%
Multi-family mortgage 352,01 33.6( 423,61! 33.67 296,91t 27.71 329,22 26.6¢ 305,31¢ 23.8¢
Nonresidential real estate ~ 264,67: 25.2¢ 311,64: 24.77 281,98 26.31 316,60 25.62 342,58 26.7¢
Construction and land 8,55 0.82 19,85: 1.5¢ 18,39¢ 1.72 32,577 2.64 50,68 3.9¢
Commercial loans 61,38¢ 5.8¢ 93,93: 7.4¢ 64,67¢ 6.04 88,06 7.8 92,67¢ 7.2%
Commercial leases 139,78 13.3¢ 134,99( 10.7: 151,10° 14.1C 176,82: 14.31] 174,64 13.6:
Consumer 2,74¢% 0.2¢ 2,14 0.17 2,18: 0.2C 2,53¢ 0.21 2,65¢ 0.21
Total loans 1,047,75 100.0%  1,258,20 100.0%  1,071,56! 100.0%  1,235,46 100.00%  1,280,95 100.0(%
Net deferred loan - - - - -
origination costs 74¢ 90¢ 1,377 1,701 1,912
Allowance for loan losses (18,03Y) (31,72¢) (22,180 (18,627) (14,746
Total loans, net $1,030,46 $1,227,39 $ 1,050,76! $ 1,218,541 $1,268,12:

Loan Portfolio Maturities

The following table summarizes the scheduled remamgmof our loan portfolio at December 31, 2012med loans, loans having no st:
repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft Ieaageported as being due in one year or less.

One Year
Within Through Beyond
One Year Five Years Five Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Scheduled Repayments of Loans:
One-to-four family residential $ 31,80: % 73,41¢ $ 113,37¢  $ 218,59t
Multi-family mortgage 45,43¢ 137,22 169,35t 352,01¢
Nonresidential real estate 135,47t 117,38( 11,81¢ 264,67.
Construction and land 7,78¢ 76€ — 8,55
Commercial loans and leases 119,55: 81,26: 35¢ 201,17:
Consumer 96¢ 1,244 532 2,74
Total loans $ 341,01 % 411,29¢ % 295,43 $ 1,047,75!
Total
Loans Maturing After One Year:
Predetermined (fixed) interest rates $ 452,12!
Adjustable interest rates 254,61:
Total loans $ 706,73
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Nonperforming Loans and Assets

We review loans on a regular basis, and generédigepoans on nonaccrual status when either pahcipinterest is 90 days or more past
In addition, the Company places loans on nonacctals when we do not expect to receive full paynod interest or principal. Intere
accrued and unpaid at the time a loan is placedooaccrual status is reversed from interest incomerest payments received on nonact
loans are recognized in accordance with our sicgmifi accounting policies. Once a loan is placech@amaccrual status, the borrower n
generally demonstrate at least six months of paymerformance before the loan is eligible to rettoraccrual status. We may have Ic
classified as 90 days or more delinquent andatikuing. Generally, we do not utilize this catggof loan classification unless: (1) the loa
repaid in full shortly after the period end dat), the loan is well secured and there are no a&skbertpending legal barriers to its collectior
(3) the borrower has remitted all scheduled paymant is otherwise in substantial compliance withterms of the loan, but the processir
loan payments actually received or the renewaheflban has not occurred for administrative reasAh®ecember 31, 2012, we héaree
loans totaling $332,000 in this category.

We typically obtain new thirgaarty appraisals or collateral valuations when Veeg@a loan on nonaccrual status, conduct impairtesting o
conduct a TDR unless the existing valuation infaromafor the collateral is sufficiently current momply with the requirements of ¢
Appraisal and Collateral Valuation Policy (“ACV ). We also obtain new thirgbarty appraisals or collateral valuations whenjtitécial
foreclosure process concludes with respect to estdte collateral, and when we otherwise acquireabor constructive title to real est
collateral. In addition to thirgaarty appraisals, we use updated valuation infaondiased on Multiple Listing Service data, brokpimions o
value, actual sales prices of similar assets spldsband approved sales prices in response tosdffepurchase similar assets owned by
provide interim valuation information for consoltdd financial statement and management purposesAOu Policy establishes the maximi
useful life of a real estate appraisal at 18 manBecause appraisals and updated valuations ulilsterical or “ask—sidetata in reachir
valuation conclusions, the appraised or updategiati@in may or may not reflect the actual saleseptti@t we will receive at the time of sale.

Real estate appraisals may include up to threecappes to value: the sales comparison approacimebme approach (for inconm@educing
property) and the cost approach. Not all appraigstilize all three approaches. Depending on theneabf the collateral and market conditic
we may emphasize one approach over another inndieieg the fair value of real estate collateral.pfgisals may also contain differ
estimates of value based on the level of occupan@fanned future improvements. “As-igaluations represent an estimate of value bas
current market conditions with no changes to the aiscondition of the real estate collateral. “Aabdlized” or “as-completedValuation:
assume the real estate collateral will be impraweed stated standard or achieve its highest andulsesin terms of occupancy. “As-stabilized
or “as-completed” valuations may be subject toesent value adjustment for market conditions ostifeedule of improvements.

As part of the asset classification process, weldgvan exit strategy for real estate collateraDREO by assessing overall market conditi
the current use and condition of the asset, ankiigisest and best use. For most incopreducing real estate, we believe that investohge
most highly a stable income stream from the assgtsequently, we perform a comparative evaluatiodetermine whether conducting a :
on an “as—is”, “as—stabilized” or “as—improved” tsas most likely to produce the highest net rediie value. If we determine that the “as
stabilized” or “as—improvedbasis is appropriate, we then complete the negesaarovements or tenant stabilization tasks, whit applicabl
time value discount and improvement expenses imcated into our estimates of the expected costseto As of December 31, 20:
substantially all impaired real estate loan cotltand OREO were valued on an “as—is basis.”

Estimates of the net realizable value of real estatlateral also include a deduction for the efg@costs to sell the collateral or such c
deductions from the cash flows resulting from tperation and liquidation of the asset as are apjattep For most real estate collateral sul
to the judicial foreclosure process, we apply &%) deduction to the value of the asset to deteritiaeexpected costs to sell the asset.
estimate includes one year of real estate taxtss sammissions and miscellaneous repair and gasists. If we receive a purchase offer
requires unbudgeted repairs, or if the expectedluttsn period for the asset exceeds one year,her include, on a case-logse basis, tl
costs of the additional real estate taxes and repaid any other material holding costs in the etqubcosts to sell the collateral. For OREO
only apply a 7.0% deduction to determine the exgubcbsts to sell, as expenses for real estate saxkrepairs are expensed when incurred.
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Nonperforming Assets Summary
The following table below sets forth the amountd aategories of our nonperforming loans and nomperihg assets.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:

One-to-four family residential $ 729¢ % 10,62: $ 10,05¢ $ 11,45: % 2,20¢
Multi-family mortgage 3,517 14,807 13,22¢ 13,96: 2,101
Nonresidential real estate 8,98t 29,927 12,42¢ 11,07 2,961
Construction and land 2,21( 3,24¢ 6,13¢ 8,841 5,14¢
Commercial 25€ 2,92( 3,76¢ 4,16( 1,141
Commercial leases — 22 72 — 10t
Consumer — 3 3 — —
22,26" 61,547 45,69¢ 49,48¢ 13,65¢

Loans held-for-sale 1,752 — — — —

Other real estate owned:

One-to-four family residential 1,76( 5,32¢ 3,01¢ 601 58¢
Multi-family mortgage 72C 3,65¢ 2,48¢ 97¢ 132
Nonresidential real estate 3,504 4,90¢ 7,37¢ 1,41¢ —
Land 1,32¢ 2,23 1,74¢ 1,091 234
7,307 16,12¢ 14,62: 4,08¢ 95t
Nonperforming assets (excluding purchased impdaads and
purchased other real estate owned) 31,32¢ 77,67 60,31" 53,57 14,61
Purchased impaired loans:
One-to-four family residential 38C 3,941 — — —
Multi-family mortgage — 1,41¢ — — —
Nonresidential real estate 2,56¢ 3,37¢ — — —
Construction and land 1,021 4,78¢ — — —
Commercial 20 1,07¢ — — —
3,98¢ 14,60( — — —
Purchased other real estate owned:
One-to-four family residential 32C 327 — — —
Nonresidential real estate 462 2,54¢ — — —
Land 2,26¢ 3,48: — — —
3,051 6,35¢ — — —
Purchased impaired loans and other real estatecbwne 7,04( 20,95 — — —
Total nonperforming assets $ 38,36t 3 98,627 $ 60,317 $ 53,57¢ $ 14,61
Ratios:
Nonperforming loans to total loans 2.61% 6.05% 4.2€% 4.01% 1.07%
Nonperforming loans to total loafs 2.2¢ 4.8¢ — — —
Nonperforming assets to total assets 2.5¢ 6.31 3.94 3.4z 0.9
Nonperforming assets to total asséts 2.11 4.97 — — —
1) These asset quality ratios exclude purchas@dired loans and purchased other real estate oreselling from the Downers Grove National Bank
acquisition.
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Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets decreased by $60.3 millioR0ib2, due in substantial part to the executiorhefCompany's plan to materially red
future nonperforming asset expenses and acceldgmateturn to the Company's historical asset quiditels. The actions that were take
2012 in furtherance of the plan included:

*  We completed two bulk sales of certain nonperfograssets with a total carrying value of $22.7 wil]iconsisting of $22.0 million
nonperforming loans and $710,000 of OREO. We remmb@al pretax charges of approximately $11.5 million on teenpletion of thes
sales in the fourth quarter 2012.

* We designated certain owner-occupied and investmed one-tdour family residential loans with a carrying valoe$7.5 million a
“held for sale”in preparation for a bulk sale. The loans generalylved properties that exhibited significant lilees in collatere
valuations and/or presented limited resolution@pi The designation resulted in a $5.9 millionare charge to provision for lo
losses in the Consolidated Statement of Operatfond=ebruary 28, 2013, we completed the sale aktleans. The completion of t
sale is expected to result in pre-tax gain on gbleans of approximately $1.3 million .

» We engaged in splitote restructurings with four separate borrowerssyant to applicable published regulatory and acting
guidance. The loans had an aggregate carrying el@&.1 million prior to the completion of the megturings. At the conclusion
the restructurings, $5.2 million remained on ackstiatus due to these actions and are expected &bidible for favorable riskatinc
classification in 2013 after a period of sustaipedformance. The remaining $1.9 million was charggdinst the provision for lo
losses for the quarter ended December 31, 2012.

* In 2012, we closed $13.4 millian OREO sales, or 59.6% of total OREO at Decemlgr2811. We also changed our dispos
strategy on certain income-producing OREO assets &n ordinanfiquidation pricing model to an aggressive pricmgdel designe
to stimulate market demand, and recorded relatédhtran adjustments. Our evaluation methodologyliwed an assessment of
disposition strategy that was likely to provide Highest cash proceeds within a defined periodha t

Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate that is acquired through foreclosuiedred in lieu of foreclosure is classified as ORItil it is sold. When real estate is acqu
through foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclesdt is recorded at its fair value, less thereated costs of disposal. If the fair value of
property is less than the loan balance, the diffegas charged against the allowance for loan fosse

The following represents the rollfoward of OREO dhnel composition of OREO properties.

At and For the Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning balance $ 22,48( $ 14,62:
New foreclosed properties 7,03t 14,13:
Acquired other real estate owned — 6,965
Valuation adjustments (5,750 (4,150
Sales (13,407 (9,089
Ending balance $ 10,35¢ $ 22,48(
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December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Valuation Net OREO Valuation Net OREO
Balance Allowance Balance Balance Allowance Balance
(Dollars in thousands)

One-to—four family residential $ 1,827 $ 67 $ 1,76C $ 532¢ % — ¢ 5,32¢
Multi-family mortgage 72C — 72C 3,65¢ — 3,65¢
Nonresidential real estate 3,88: (379 3,50¢ 4,90¢ — 4,90¢
Land 1,557 (239 1,32: 2,23i — 2,231
7,987 (680) 7,307 16,12¢ — 16,12t

Acquired other real estate owned:
One—-to—four family residential 32C — 32C 327 — 327
Nonresidential real estate 56& (103 462 2,54¢ — 2,54¢
Land 2,66¢ (397) 2,26¢ 3,48 — 3,48:
3,551 (500 3,051 6,35¢ — 6,35¢
Total other real estate owned $ 11,53¢ % (1,180 $ 10,35¢ % 22,48( % — % 22,48(

Activity in the valuation allowance:

At and For the Years Ended
December 31, 2012

Beginning of year $ —
Additions charged to expense 1,18(
Recoveries credited to expense —
Reductions from sales of other real estate owned —
Direct write downs —

End of year $ 1,18(

Loan Extensions and Modifications

Maturing loans are subject to our standard loareomdting policies and practices. Due to the nexdltain updated borrower and guara
financial information, collateral information or fwepare revised loan documentations, loans irptheess of renewal may appear as pas
because the information needed to underwrite avanef the loan is not available to us prior to thaturity date of the loan. At times, short
term administrative extensions, which are typica§ days in duration, are granted to facilitate pgrounderwriting. In general, lo
modifications are subject to a risk-adjusted pgcamalysis.

When appropriate, we evaluate loan extensions adiffoations in accordance with ASC 340 and related federal regulatory guide
concerning TDRs and the FFIEC workout guidanceeteminine the required treatment for nonaccrualistand risk classification purposes
general, if we grant a loan modification or extensihat involves either the absence of principabdization (other than for revolving lines
credit which are customarily granted on interasly terms), or if we grant a material extensioranfexisting loan amortization period in ex
of our underwriting standards, the loan will begeld on nonaccrual status and impairment testingluaiad to determine whether a spe:
valuation allowance or loss classification / chaoffeis required. If the loan is well secured byaundance of collateral and the collectak
of both interest and principal is probable, thenlogay remain on accrual status, but it will be siféed as a TDR due to the concession ma
the loan principal amortization payment componénkan in full compliance with the payment requiremts specified in a loan modificat
will not be considered as past due, but may nofetkebe placed on nonaccrual status or be clatsaiea TDR, as appropriate under
circumstances.

In accordance with the FFIEC workout guidance,Gloenpany will restructure a note into two separates (A/B structure), charging off 1
entire B portion of the note. The A note is struetlwith appropriate loan-tealue and cash flow coverage ratios that provideafdigt
likelihood of repayment. The A note is classifiedaanonperforming note until the borrower has displayddsaorical payment performance
a reasonable time prior to and subsequent to steucturing. A period of sustained repayment foleast six months generally is require:
return the note to accrual status provided thatagament has determined that the performance ismahly expected to continue. The A r
will be classified as a restructured note (eitherfgrming or nonperforming) through the calendaaryef the restructuring that the histor
payment performance has been established.
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Troubled Debt Restructuring

The Company had $11.2 million of TDRs at DecemtegrZD12 , compared to $18.1 million at December2iiL,1 , with $318,000 artl.z
million in specific valuation allowances allocatéd those loans at December 31, 2012 and 20idspectively. The Company had
outstanding commitments to borrowers whose loaaglassified as TDRs.

The following table presents TDRs by class.

At December 31,

2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 280: $ 5,61¢
Multi-family mortgage 1,201 5,78:
Nonresidential real estate 5,18¢ 2,22(
Commercial loans — secured — 23¢
Troubled debt restructured loans — accrual loans 9,192 13,86(
One-to-four family residential real estate 767 55€
Multi-family mortgage 93¢ 717
Nonresidential real estate 27C 2,96(
Commercial loans — secured — —
Consumer loans — 3
Troubled debt restructured loans — nonaccrual loans 1,97¢ 4,23¢
Total troubled debt restructured loans $ 11,167 § 18,09¢

Risk Classification of Loans

Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelinpsovide for the classification of loans and othssets that are considered to be of I
quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assedesignated as special mention.

A substandard asset is inadequately protectedéygufrent sound worth and paying capacity of thegobor of the collateral pledged, if al
Assets so classified must have a vasfined weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardizdgytiidation of the debt. They are characterizedha
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain sertoss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Tibk rating guidance published by the C
clarifies that a loan with a wetlefined weakness does not have to present a plitpabidefault for the loan to be rated substanidand the
an individual loars loss potential does not have to be distinct lierlban to be rated substandard. An asset classifiedoubtful has all t
weaknesses inherent in one classified as substamdtr the added characteristic that the weaknessd® collection or liquidation in full, «
the basis of currently existing facts, conditioasd values, highly questionable and improbablee#ssslassified as loss are those consic
uncollectible and of such little value that theantinuance as assets is not warranted; such balamweepromptly chargeaff as required k
applicable federal regulations. A special mentisses has potential weaknesses that deserve manatyegiese attention. If left uncorrect
these potential weaknesses may result in deteinaraf the repayment prospects for the asset dheninstitutions credit position at sor
future date. Special mention assets are not adyetsssified and do not expose an institutionufiisient risk to warrant adverse classificati

Based on a review of our assets at December 32, 26lassified loans consisted of performing sulddad loans of $55.0 million arkR6.4
million of nonperforming loans. As of December 2012 , we had $41.4 million of assets designatespasial mention.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichciugrged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we con:
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit lasst® loan portfolio. In determining the level thie allowance for loan losses, we cons
past and current loss experience, trends in nonathryans, evaluations of real estate collatetarent economic conditions, volume and 1
of lending, adverse situations that may affect adweer’'s ability to repay a loan and the levelsnad nperforming and other classified loe
The amount of the allowance is based on estimatgghee ultimate losses may vary from the estimagemore information becomes avail:
or events change.

We provide for loan losses based on the allowanethod. Accordingly, all loan losses are chargethérelated allowance and all recove
are credited to it. Additions to the allowance lman losses are provided by charges to income basedrious factors that, in our judgmi
deserve current recognition in estimating probaidearred credit losses. We review the loan portfoli



34




Table of Contents

on an ongoing basis and make provisions for lo&sds on a quarterly basis to maintain the allowdorcéoan losses in accordance v
accounting principles generally accepted in thed¢hBtates of America. The allowance for loan lsgsmsists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impaneidential non-owner occupied mortgage, mfaltirily mortgage, nonresidential r
estate, construction and land, commercial, and oemiad lease loans for which the recorded investnierthe loan exceeds t
measured value of the loan; and

» general allowances for loan losses for each loasschased on historical loan loss experience; diustanents to historical lo
experience (general allowances), maintained to rcomeertainties that affect our estimate of probahturred credit losses for ei
loan class.

The adjustments to historical loss experience ased on our evaluation of several factors, inclgdevels of, and trends in, past due
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chastje-and recoveries; trends in volume and termafs, including any credit concentration
the loan portfolio; experience, ability, and depfhlending management and other relevant staff; rmattbnal and local economic trends
conditions.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses based thm combined total of the specific and generahpanents. Generally, when the |
portfolio increases, absent other factors, thewallice for loan loss methodology results in a higtheliar amount of estimated proba
incurred credit losses than would be the case witioe increase. Conversely, when the loan poctfdecreases, absent other factors
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rissil a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case withou
decrease.

We review our loan portfolio on an ongoing basisiatermine whether any loans require classificatind impairment testing in accorda
with applicable regulations and accounting priregplWhen we classify loans as either substandadduatful and in certain other cases,
review the collateral and future cash flow projecs to determine if a specific reserve is necesSdrg allowance for loan losses repres
amounts that have been established to recognimer@ttcredit losses in the loan portfolio that laoéh probable and reasonably estimable ¢
date of the consolidated financial statements. Whelassify problem loans as loss, we chargetaffismounts.

We refined the calculation of the general compormdrihe allowance for loan losses during the fowytfarter of 2010 in response to the
FASB disclosure requirement that each loan podfolitegory must be segmented into specific loassel (FASB Standards Update 2@T0-
(ASU 210-20), “Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosuagsut the Credit Quality of Financing Receivalaed the Allowance for Credit Lossgs”
Loan class segmentation tables are presented ia Nof the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgsiein Item 8 of this Form 18- To
maintain consistency, the loan class segmentatias also applied within the Ifisarter loss history that we use to calculate taretp
component of the allowance for loan losses, inttetisk factor weightings were adjusted based onemaduation of their relevance to the r
loan classes, and duplicative historical loss facteere eliminated from the loan class segmentation

While we use the best information available to mekaluations, future adjustments to the allowaneg become necessary if conditions d
substantially from the information that we usedriaking the evaluations. Our determinations as ¢orittk classification of our loans and
amount of our allowance for loan losses are suligceview by our regulatory agencies, which cagquiee that we establish additional |
allowances.
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Net Charge-offs and Recoveries

The following table sets forth activity in our allance for loan losses.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 31,72¢ % 22,18( $ 18,62: $ 14,74¢  $ 11,05
Charge-offs:
One-to-four family residential (22,36¢) (5,31€) (2,2972) (467) (24%)
Multi-family mortgage (7,209 (3,519 (2,385 (297) (169
Nonresidential real estate (18,167 (69¢) (2,897) (1,519 (60%)
Construction and land (4,31 (2,519 (525) (2,262) (115)
Commercial loans (4,960 (1,399 (1,179 (463 (130
Commercial leases (127) (72 — (22 —
Consumer (209%) (93 (16) (42 (14¢€)
Total charge-offs (47,23) (13,60¢) (9,289 (5,065 (1,419
Recoveries:
One-to-four family residential 233 51 69 82 1
Multi-family mortgage 53¢ 12t 3 — —
Nonresidential real estate 32¢ 73 632 36 4
Construction and land 25C — 58 — —
Commercial loans 62€ 17¢ 1 3 1
Commercial leases — — — 6 —
Consumer 42 7 — 3 10
Total recoveries 2,01¢ 42¢ 764 13C 16
Net charge-offs (45,217 (23,177 (8,525 (4,935 (1,399
Provision for loan losses 31,52: 22,72¢ 12,08: 8,811 5,092
Balance at end of year $ 18,03t $ 31,72¢ % 22,18 % 18,62: $ 14,74¢
Ratios:
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 3.91% 1.00% 0.75% 0.3%% 0.11%
Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans 64.3¢ 41.6¢€ 48.5¢ 37.6:% 107.9%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.72 2.52 2.07 1.51 1.1t

Our allowance for loan losses declined $13.7 mmillio 2012 due in substantial part to our adoptiongoidance that the OCC issuec
connection with the transition of federal savingsks from OTS to OCC supervision. The OCC guidastaéed that the specific valuat
allowances that the OTS' accounting guidance hgstily permitted federal savings banks to mainfaincollateral dependent loans shoulc
eliminated. We adopted this methodology in thedtlgjuarter 2012 and charged off $10.8 million ofcsfie valuation allowances. This one ti
charge did not impact earnings or the provisionldéan losses for the year ended December 31, 20b®vever, the $10.8 million of speci
valuation allowance charge-offs were included taltoharge-offs for the year ended December 312201 reduced our recorded balance
loans, the allowance for loan losses, nonaccraaid@and impaired loans.

Net charg-offs were $45.2 million and $13.2 million , restieely, for the years ended December 31, 2012 d@id 2and $8.5 milliorfor the
year ended December 31, 2010. "$31.5 millionprovision for loan losses included a $11.5 mill@varge relating to the consummation of
bulk loan sales and a $5.9 million charge relatmthe transfer of loans to the held for sale pdidfin preparation for a bulk sale.

A loan balance is classified as a loss and chaofiedhen it is confirmed that there is no readipparent source of repayment for the amou
the loan that is classified as loss. Confirmatian occur upon the receipt of updated thgedty appraisal valuation information indicatingu
there is a low probability of repayment upon sdléhe collateral, the final disposition of collaa¢where the net proceeds are insufficient tc
the loan balance in full, our failure to obtain pession of certain consumean collateral within certain time limits specdidy applicabl
federal regulations, the conclusion of legal proiegs where the
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borrower’s obligation to repay is legally discharged (sustadederal Chapter 7 bankruptcy proceeding), anwhappears that further forr
collection procedures are not likely to result &t proceeds in excess of the costs to collect.

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table sets forth our allowance foamolosses allocated by loan category. The allow#&mclan losses allocated to each cate
is not necessarily indicative of future losses riy garticular category and does not restrict the afsthe allowance to absorb losses in ¢

categories.

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each in Each
Allowance Loan Category Allowance Loan Category Allowance Loan Category
for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 472¢ $ 218,59¢ 20.8¢%0 $ 6,10: $ 272,03: 21.62% $ 3,55¢ $ 256,30( 23.9%
Multi-family
mortgage 4,58( 352,01¢ 33.6( 6,08 423,61! 33.61 7,032 296,91t 27.71
Nonresidential real
estate 5,54t 264,67 25.2¢ 13,75¢ 311,64 24.71 5,714 281,98 26.31
Construction and
land 1,031 8,552 0.8 1,68¢ 19,85z 1.5¢ 2,461 18,39¢ 1.72
Commercial loans 1,324 61,38¢ 5.8t 3,53¢ 93,93: 7.4€ 2,87¢ 64,67¢ 6.04
Commercial leases 66€ 139,78: 13.3¢ 504 134,99( 10.7: 51¢ 151,10° 14.1(
Consumer 162 2,74 0.2¢ 58 2,14 0.17 20 2,182 0.2C
Total $ 18,03t $ 1,047,75! 100.0% $ 31,72¢ $ 1,258,20 100.0% $ 22,18 $ 1,071,56 100.0%
At December 31,
2009 2008
Percent of Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in Each
Allowance for Loan Balances Category to Allowance for Loan Balances Category to
Loan Losses by Category Total Loans Loan Losses by Category Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 3,332 $ 289,62: 23.4%% $ 2,04C $ 312,39( 24.3%
Multi-family mortgage 3,591 329,22 26.6¢ 2,37( 305,31¢ 23.8¢
Nonresidential real
estate 5,69¢€ 316,60 25.62 4,65¢ 342,58: 26.7¢
Construction and land 1,861 32,571 2.64 1,89¢ 50,68’ 39.6(
Commercial loans 2,52( 88,06 7.1z 2,05¢ 92,67¢ 72.3(
Commercial leases 1,591 176,82: 14.31 1,66¢ 174,64« 13.6:
Consumer 24 2,53¢ 0.21 52 2,65¢ 0.21
Total $ 18,62: $ 1,235,46. 100.0% $ 14,74¢ 3 1,280,95! 100.0(%

Sources of Funds

Deposits.At December 31, 2012 , our deposits totaled $1138®n . Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.billon and nonintereshbearing
demand deposits totaled $134.6 million . NOW, sgwimnd money market accounts totaled $842.5 milliddoninterestbearing demar
deposits at December 31, 2012 included $5.8 miliiointernal checking accounts, such as account8é&mk cashies checks and mon
orders. At December 31, 2012 , we had $305.3 milibcertificates of deposit outstanding, of wh&212.9 millionhad maturities of one ye
or less. Although we have a significant portioroaf deposits in shorteerm certificates of deposit, we believe, basedhigtorical experienc
and our current pricing strategy, that we will neta significant portion of these accounts uponurigt



37




Table of Contents

The following table sets forth the distributiontofal deposit accounts, by account type.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest-bearing demand:

Retail $ 39,17: 3.04% —% $ 39,31¢ 2.94% —% $ 26,30¢ 2.11% —%

Commercial 95,63¢ 7.41 — 92,37¢ 6.9C — 75,98¢ 6.0¢ —
Total noninterest-bearing

demand 134,80° 10.4¢ — 131,69! 9.8¢4 — 102,29« 8.1¢ —
Savings deposits 144,68 11.22 0.1C 135,12 10.1(C 0.1¢ 98,33¢ 7.87 0.4<
Money market accounts 346,11¢ 26.8¢ 0.3¢€ 350,22¢ 26.17 0.4t 347,25( 27.81 0.9
Interest-bearing NOW

accounts 335,55: 26.02 0.12 323,29! 24.1¢ 0.1t 295,72( 23.6¢ 0.4¢
Certificates of deposit 328,52¢ 25.47 0.77 398,05¢ 29.7¢ 1.1¢C 405,18t 32.4¢ 1.7¢

Total deposits $ 1,289,69 100.0% $ 1,338,40. 100.0% $ 1,248,79 100.0%

The following table sets forth certificates of dsjpdoy time remaining until maturity at December 3012 :

Maturity
3 Months or Over 3t0 6 Over 6 to 12 Over 12
Less Months Months Months Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Certificates of deposit less than $100,00'$ 48,56 $ 43,36¢ $ 56,36¢ $ 60,00. $ 208,29t
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 21,55t 12,26: 30,77¢ 32,36: 96,95¢
Total certificates of deposit $ 70,11¢ $ 55,62¢ $ 87,14: $ 92,36¢ $ 305,25:

Borrowings.Our borrowings consist primarily of Federal Homeahdank advances and repurchase agreements. Twifng table sets for
information concerning balances and interest ratesur borrowings.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of year $ 5561 $ 9,32: % 23,74¢
Average balance during year 8,16: 12,75¢ 37,65:
Maximum outstanding at any month end 10,08: 15,55( 50,38¢
Weighted average interest rate at end of year 1.72% 1.12% 2.0(%
Average interest rate during year 1.27% 1.748% 2.21%

At December 31, 2012 , we had the capacity to boan additional $261.5 millionnder our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furthesre, we
had unpledged securities that could be used toostijppexcess of $33.8 million of additional FHLB®rrowings.

At December 31, 2012 , we had a line of credit wiith Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago. At DecembgefPB12, there were no outstand
federal funds borrowings and there was no outstandalance on the line of credit.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Companys consolidated financial statements and the relabéels have been prepared in accordance with G&XAP generally require
the measurement of financial position and operatisglts in terms of historical dollars without eatering changes in the relative purcha
power of money over time due to inflation. The impaf inflation, if any, is reflected in the incad cost of our operations. Unlike indus
companies, our assets and liabilities are primanbnetary in nature. As a result, changes in marketest rates have a greater impac
performance than the effects of inflation.

Management of Interest Rate Risk

Qualitative Analysis.A significant form of market risk is interest raisk. Interest rate risk results from timing di#eices in the maturity
repricing of our assets, liabilities and off balargheet contractsi.g., forward loan commitments), the effect of loan psepants and depo
withdrawals, the difference in the behavior of lexgdand funding rates arising from the use of défdé indices and “yield curve riskdrising
from changing rate relationships across the spectofi maturities for constant or variable creditkrigvestments. In addition to direc
affecting net interest income, changes in marketr@st rates can also affect the amount of new toayinations, the ability of borrowers
repay variable rate loans, the volume of loan pyepts and refinancings, the carrying value of gtwveent securities classified as available
for-sale and the flow and mix of deposits.

The general objective of our interest rate risk aggment is to determine the appropriate level Sk given our business strategy and
manage that risk in a manner that is consistertt witr policy to reduce, to the extent possible, ékposure of our net interest incomi
changes in market interest rates. Our Asset/LigbiMlanagement Committee (“ALCO”)which consists of certain members of se
management, evaluates the interest rate risk inhénecertain assets and liabilities, our operatemyironment and capital and liquic
requirements, and modifies our lending, investimyl aleposit gathering strategies accordingly. Thar8oof Directors’ Asset/Liability
Management Committee then reviews the ALE@ttivities and strategies, the effect of thosetagies on our net interest margin, anc
effect that changes in market interest rates whalge on the economic value of our loan and seesarortfolios as well as the intrinsic valus
our deposits and borrowings, and reports to tHeBihrd of Directors.

We actively evaluate interest rate risk in conreecivith our lending, investing and deposit actestiin an effort to better manage intemadt-
risk, we have demphasized the origination of residential mortglages, and have increased our emphasis on thenatign of honresidenti
real estate loans, mulamily mortgage loans, commercial loans and comiakleases. In addition, depending on market isterates and o
capital and liquidity position, we generally selll @ a portion of our longer-term, fixed-rate msntial loans, usually on a servicingtaine:
basis. Further, we primarily invest in shorter-dioma securities, which generally have lower yielttsmpared to longelerm investment
Shortening the average maturity of our interestiearassets by increasing our investments in shteten loans and securities, as well as |
with variable rates of interest, helps to bettetandahe maturities and interest rates of our asseddiabilities, thereby reducing the exposui
our net interest income to changes in market isteeges. Finally, we have classified all of ourastment portfolio as available-feale so as
provide flexibility in liquidity management.

We utilize a combination of analyses to monitor Bank's exposure to changes in interest rates. The edonatue of equity analysis is
model that estimates the change in net portfolioesg‘NPV”) over a range of interest rate scenarios. NPV idibeounted present value
expected cash flows from assets, liabilities anfibafance sheet contracts. In calculating changeblRV, we assume estimated I
prepayment rates, reinvestment rates and deposilydates that seem most likely based on histoegpkrience during prior interest t
changes.

Our net interest income analysis utilizes the digdved from the dynamic GAP analysis, describelbeand applies several additio
elements, including actual interest rate indices mrargins, contractual limitations such as interagt floors and caps and the U.S. Tree
yield curve as of the balance sheet date. In anfditive apply consistent parallel yield curve shiftsboth directions) to determine poss
changes in net interest income if the theoreti@bycurve shifts occurred instantaneously. Netrigsgt income analysis also adjusts the dyn
GAP repricing analysis based on changes in prepalyrates resulting from the parallel yield curvétsh

Our dynamic GAP analysis determines the relativariz® between the repricing of assets and liadsliiver multiple periods of time (rang
from overnight to five years). Dynamic GAP analysgisludes expected cash flows from loans and mgedacked securities, applyi
prepayment rates based on the differential betwieercurrent interest rate and the market inter@tst for each loan and security type. -
analysis identifies mismatches in the timing ofeassd liability repricing but does not necessapilgvide an accurate indicator of interest
risk because it omits the factors incorporated thtonet interest income analysis.
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Quantitative Analysis.The following table sets forth, as of December3Qa]12 , the estimated changes in the BarkPV and net intere
income that would result from the designated irtsta@ous parallel shift in the U.S. Treasury yialdve. Computations of prospective effect
hypothetical interest rate changes are based oremws assumptions including relative levels of ratikterest rates, loan prepayments
deposit decay, and should not be relied upon asdtide of actual results.

Increase in Estimated

Estimated Increase in NPV Net Interest Income
Change in Interest Rates (basis points) Amount Percent Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

+400 $ 10,63¢ 6.92% $ 2,77z 6.1(%
+300 7,85¢ 5.12 2,26( 4.97
+200 5,14¢ 3.3¢€ 1,543 3.4C
+100 2,64( 1.72 74¢ 1.65

0 J— J— J— J—

The Company has opted not to include an estimata ftecrease in rates at December 31, 2&1the results are not relevant given the cL
targeted fed funds rate of the Federal Open MaZketmittee. The table set forth above indicatesdh@tecember 31, 2012n the event of ¢
immediate 200 basis point increase in interessratee Bank would be expected to experience a 3.i86%ase in NPV and $1.55 millior
increase in net interest income. This data doegeftsct any actions that we may undertake in respdo changes in interest rates, suc
changes in rates paid on certain deposit accowgsdoon local competitive factors, which could mthe actual impact on NPV and
interest income, if any.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodolaged in the above interest rate risk measuremdfadeling changes in NPV and
interest income requires that we make certain agans that may or may not reflect the manner irnicivlactual yields and costs respon
changes in market interest rates. The NPV andnietest income table presented above assumeshthabmposition of our interest-rate-
sensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgifr@ng of a period remains constant over the pebeing measured and, accordingly, the
does not reflect any actions that we may undertak@sponse to changes in interest rates, suclhasges in rates paid on certain dej
accounts based on local competitive factors. Theetalso assumes that a particular change in siteages is reflected uniformly across
yield curve regardless of the duration to matueitghe repricing characteristics of specific ass@is liabilities. Accordingly, although the NI
and net interest income table provides an indioadioour sensitivity to interest rate changes padicular point in time, such measurement:
not intended to and do not provide a precise fatechthe effect of changes in market interestsratie our net interest income and will di
from actual results.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity Management— Bank. The overall objective of our liquidity managementd ensure the availability of sufficient cashdario mee
all financial commitments and to take advantagenwéstment opportunities. We manage liquidity imlearto meet deposit withdrawals
demand or at contractual maturity, to repay borngwias they mature, and to fund new loans andtimezgs as opportunities arise.

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, prin@pd interest payments on loans and securitie, tare lesser extent, wholesale borrowi
the proceeds from maturing securities and steorty investments, and the proceeds from the sdlédsans and securities. The sched
amortization of loans and securities, as well ax@eds from borrowings, are predictable sourcesiruds. Other funding sources, howe
such as deposit inflows, mortgage prepayments anthage loan sales are greatly influenced by maritetest rates, economic conditions
competition.

Our cash flows are derived from operating actisitimvesting activities and financing activitiesraported in the Consolidated Statemen
Cash Flows in our Consolidated Financial Statemédis primary investing activities are the origipatfor investment of one-ttsur family
residential mortgage loans, muiéimily mortgage loans, nonresidential real estatm$, commercial leases, construction and landsjo@m
commercial loans and the purchase of investmenirgies and mortgage-backed securities. Duringyders ended December 31, 202011
and 2010 , our loans originated for investmentléot&364.6 million , $573.2 million , and $676.4llioh , respectively. Purchases of lo
totaled $5.6 million , $154.2 million , and $2.7llion for the years ended December 31, 2012 , 281id 2010, respectively. Purchases
securities totaled $35.4 million , $37.6 millionda$50.5 million for the years ended December 3122@®011 , and 2010 , respectively.

These activities were funded primarily by principabayments on loans and securities, and the $atmmms and securities. During the ye

ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , princg@yments on loans totaled $518.3 million , $83aillion , and $817.4 million
respectively. During the years ended December @12 22011 and 2010, principal repayments on seesitotaled
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$19.7 million , $30.7 million , and $30.1 millionrespectively. During the years ended DecembefB812 , 2011 and 2010proceeds froi
maturities and sales of securities totaled $30lJ6ami, $43.8 million , and $1.8 million , respeatly. During the years endddecember 3:
2012, 2011 and 2010, the proceeds from the $&bens totaled $21.0 million , $17.6 million , $&7nillion , respectively.

Loan origination commitments totaled $16.0 milliahDecember 31, 2012 , and consisted of $12.0anilhif fixed-rate loans ar®¥4.0 millior
of adjustable-rate loans. Unused lines of credit standby letters of credit granted to custometaldd $120.7 million and $1.2 million
respectively, at December 31, 2012 . At DecembeB12 , commitments to sell mortgages totaled #illdon .

Deposit flows are generally affected by the levieimarket interest rates, the interest rates andrddrms and conditions on deposit prod
offered by our banking competitors, and other fexctiVe had a net deposit decrease of $50.0 mitborthe year ended December 31, 2012
and a net deposit increase of $97.2 million and® $2illion for the years ended December 31, 2011 201D, respectively. At times durii
recent periods, we have not actively competed iighdr cost deposit accounts, including certificaiEsleposit, choosing instead to fund |
growth from the loan and lease repayments. Caat#ig of deposit that are scheduled to mature inyeae or less fronbbecember 31, 20:
totaled $212.9 million Based upon prior experience and our currentrgisirategy, we believe that we will retain a digant portion of thes
deposits upon their maturities.

We anticipate that we will have sufficient fundsadable to meet current loan commitments and lioesredit and maturing certificates
deposit that are not renewed or extended. We gigneganain fully invested and utilize additionalweoes of funds through FHLBC advant
of which $3.0 million were outstanding at Decem®&y 2012 . At December 31, 2012 we had the alibitgorrow an additionag$261.5 millior
under our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furthesre, we have unpledged securities that could kd ts support borrowings in exces:
$33.8 million . Finally, at December 31, 2012 , gl a line of credit available with the Federal é&tes Bank of Chicago. Abecember 3:
2012 , there was no outstanding balance on thitdnee.

Liquidity Management- Company.The liquidity needs of the Company on an unconstdid basis consist primarily of operating expel
dividends to stockholders and stock repurchases.pfimary sources of liquidity for the Company emtty are $11.8 milliorof cash and ca:
equivalents and periodic cash dividends from thekBa

The Dodd+rank Act provided for the transfer of the authofir regulating and supervising federal savingskisafrom the OTS to the OC
and the authority for regulating and supervisingirggs and loan holding companies and their m@pesitory subsidiaries from the OTS to
FRB. The transfer occurred on July 21, 2011.

As a result of the regulatory restructuring occasi by the Doddrrank Act, the Company is subject to Federal Res@ward Superviso
Letter SR 094, which provides that a holding company shouldpagnother things, notify and make a submissioméoRederal Reserve B:
prior to declaring a dividend if its net income fitre current quarter is not sufficient to fully flithe dividend, and consider eliminati
deferring or significantly reducing its dividendsts net income for the current quarter is noffisignt to fully fund the dividends, or if its r
income for the past four quarters, net of dividepdsviously paid during that period, is not sufici to fully fund the dividends. The Compi
will continue to consult with, and seek the prippeoval of, the Federal Reserve Bank prior to déagany dividends. Our Board of Direct
declared three quarterly cash dividends of $0.05pare during 2012, totaling $633,000 .

Supervisory Letter SR 09-4 also sets forth guidalipertaining to share repurchases.

As of December 31, 2012ve were not aware of any known trends, eventmoertainties that had or were reasonably likelgawe a materi
impact on our liquidity. As of December 31, 202Me had no other material commitments for capitgleexitures.

Capital Management

Capital Management - BankThe overall objectives of our capital managemeettarensure the availability of sufficient capiilsupport loai
deposit and other asset and liability growth opgaties and to maintain capital to absorb unforedesses or writelowns that are inherent
the business risks associated with the bankingsimguWe seek to balance the need for higher ddpitals to address such unforeseen
and the goal to achieve an adequate return oraghigatinvested by our stockholders.

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requireteeadministered by the federal banking agenciedlufe to meet minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, arssipty additional discretionary, actions by the O®@&t, if undertaken, could have a di
material effect on the Bankfinancial statements. Under capital adequacyedjiniels and the regulatory framework for prompt ective actior
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines thablve quantitative measures of the Bank’s asditsilities, and certain off-balanchee
items as calculated under regulatory accountingtigess. The Banls capital amounts and classification are also stibjequalitative judgmen
by regulators about components, risk weightingd, @her factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations provideeficlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitaliz
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not useepesent
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overall financial condition. Adequately capitalizatstitutions require regulatory approval to acckpikered deposits. If undercapitalize:
financial institution’s capital distributions, asggowth and expansion are limited, and for thensisbion of a capital restoration is required.

The Company and the Bank have adopted Capital Rtatsequire the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 levereatio of at least 8% and a total risk
based capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimurpite&ratios set forth in the Capital Plans will ereased and other minimum cay
requirements will be established if and as necggsacomply with the Basel Il requirements as suefuirements become applicable to
Company and the Bank. In accordance with the Capit@ns, neither the Company nor the Bank will per&ny acquisition or grow
opportunity, declare any dividend or conduct amcktrepurchase that would cause the Bank's tatkibased capital ratio and/or its Tie
leverage ratio to fall below the established mimmcapital levels. In addition, the Company will Gooe to maintain its ability to serve a
source of financial strength to the Bank by holdideast $5.0 million of cash or liquid assetstfat purpose.

At year-end, actual capital ratios and minimum fesgiratios for the Bank were:

Minimum required

to be Well
Capitalized Under Minimum Capital
Prompt Corrective Ratios Established
Actual Ratio Action Provisions under Capital Plans
December 31, 2012
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 15.32% 8.0(% 12.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets) 14.07 4.0C 8.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total assets) 9.6( 4.0C 8.0C
December 31, 2011
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 14.72% 8.0(% 12.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets) 13.4¢ 4.0C 8.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total assets) 10.4¢ 4.0C 8.0C

See Note 11 of the "Notes to Consolidated Finargfatements” in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for a necitiation of the Banks equity unde
GAAP to regulatory capital.

As of December 31, 2012 and 201the Bank was well capitalized under the reguiafommework for prompt corrective action. There ac
conditions or events since those notifications tim@nagement believes have changed the Bapkdmpt corrective action capitalizat
category.

Capital Management - CompanyOn June 23, 2005, the Company completed its muitustiock conversion and sold 24,466,250 shar
common stock in a subscription offering at $10.@0 ghare and raised $240.3 million in offering pexds, net of offering expenses.

Company contributed $120.9 million of the net pedto the Bank, paid off $30 million of term bawings, loaned $19.6 million to our ES
and retained the remaining net proceeds of $72amilSubsequent to the mutualdtock conversion, the Bank declared aggregate elindd o
$60.0 million to the Company. During this periog tBompany paid dividends totaling $33.7 million angended $64.6 million for shi
repurchases.

Total stockholders’ equity was $172.9 million atdember 31, 2012 , compared to $199.9 million atebdwer 31, 2011 The decrease in to
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the congal impact of our $27.1 millionet loss and our declaration and payment of castedid:
totaling $633,000 during the year ended DecembgRB12. The unallocated shares of common stock that @@ owns were reflected &
$12.2 million reduction to stockholders’ equity Becember 31, 2012 , compared to a $13.2 millioruecgdn to stockholdersequity a
December 31, 2011 .

Quarterly Cash DividendsOur Board of Directors declared three quarterihyhadisidends of $0.01 per share during 2012 , totp$633,000
As a result of the regulatory restructuring occasib by the Doddrrank Act, the Company is subject to Federal Res&ward Superviso
Letter SR 094, which provides that a holding company shouldo@agnother things, notify and make a submissiorméoRederal Reserve Be
prior to declaring a dividend if its net income fitre current quarter is not sufficient to fully flithe dividend, and consider eliminati
deferring or significantly reducing its dividenddts net income for the current quarter is noffisignt to fully fund the dividends, or if its r
income for the past four quarters, net of dividepdssiously paid during that period, is not sufici to fully fund the dividends. The Compi
will continue to consult with, and seek the prippeoval of, the Federal Reserve Bank prior to déajany dividends.
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Stock Repurchase ProgranOur Board of Directors had authorized the repurehafsup to 5,047,423 shares of our common stoclke
repurchase authorization expired on November 1%22The authorization permitted shares to be répased in open market or negotie
transactions, and pursuant to any trading planrttegt be adopted in accordance with Rule 10kB-the Securities and Exchange Commis:
The authorization was utilized at management'srelin, subject to the limitations set forth in BRulOb48 of the Securities and Excha
Commission and other applicable legal requiremeants, to price and other internal limitations ed&ii@dd by the Board of Directors. As
December 31, 2012the Company had repurchased 4,239,134 sharés ainmon stock out of the 5,047,423 shares tihblean authorize
for repurchase. Federal Reserve Board SupervisetieLSR 0% provides that holding companies experiencingriona weaknesses such
operating losses should notify and make a submmisgiothe Federal Reserve Bank before redeemingmurchasing common stock. 1
Company has no plans to conduct such discussidhgivé Federal Reserve supervisory staff or engagmck repurchases at this time.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contraual Obligations

Commitments As a financial services provider, we routinely ar@arty to various financial instruments with offlincesheet risks, such
commitments to extend credit, standby letters eflity unused lines of credit and commitments tbleahs. While these contractual obligati
represent our future cash requirements, a signifipartion of commitments to extend credit may expwithout being drawn upon. St
commitments are subject to the same credit polanesapproval process afforded to loans that weemakkhough we consider commitment:
extend credit in determining our allowance for ldasses, at December 31, 201&e had made no provision for losses on commitm&
extend credit, and had no specific or general alwe for losses on such commitments, as we havendddstorical loss experience w
commitments to extend credit and we believed tbapmobable and reasonably estimable losses weeganhin our portfolio as a result of «
commitments to extend credit. For additional infation, see Note 14 of the "Notes to Consolidatethiiial Statements” in Item 8 of t
Form 10-K.

Contractual Obligations.In the ordinary course of our operations, we eimiés certain contractual obligations. Such obligas includ
operating leases for premises and equipment.

The following table summarizes our significant fixand determinable contractual obligations and roftheding needs by payment date

December 31, 2012 The payment amounts represent those amountsodthe trecipient and do not include any unamortipegimiums ¢
discounts or other similar carrying amount adjusttee

Payments Due by Period

One to
Less than Three Three to More than
Contractual Obligations One Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Certificates of deposit $ 212,88¢ $ 79,50( $ 12,86: $ — $ 305,25:
Borrowings 3,00( — — — 3,00(
Standby letters of credit 1,225 5 5 — 1,23i
Operating leases 492 89¢ 914 6,117 8,41¢

Total $ 217,60¢ $ 80,40: $ 13,78: $ 6,117 $ 317,90¢
Commitments to extend credit $ 136,70: $ — % — — $ 136,70«

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as thdsa &re reflective of significant judgments and entainties, and could potentially resul
materially different results under different asstioqs and conditions. We believe that the mostoalitaccounting policy upon which ¢
financial condition and results of operation depemal which involves the most complex subjectiveisiens or assessments, is as follows:

Allowance for Loan Losse. Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance foah losses involves a high degree of judgment.alowance fo
loan losses provides for probable incurred losssgd upon evaluations of known and inherent riskbé loan portfolio. We review the le
of the allowance on a quarterly basis and estabiistprovision for loan losses based upon histbliea loss experience, the nature and vol
of the loan portfolio, information about specifiorbower situations, estimated collateral valuesneeic conditions and other factors to as
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Apthe material estimates that we must make to kstathe allowance are loss exposur
default; the amount and timing of future cash flawsaffected loans; the value of collateral; arttbermination of loss factors to be applie
the various elements of the loan portfolio. Alltbése estimates are susceptible to significantggafiithough we believe that we use the
information available to us to establish the alloegfor loan losses, future adjustments to thenaliece may be necessary if borrower finan
collateral valuation or economic conditions diffeibstantially from the information and assumptiosed in making the evaluation. In
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addition, as an integral part of their supervisangl/or examination process, our regulatory agermeemdically review the methodology ¢
sufficiency of the allowance for loan losses. Thagencies may require us to recognize additiorthéaallowance based on their inclus
exclusion or modification of risk factors or difésrces in judgments of information available to thenthe time of their examination. A la
loss could deplete the allowance and require ise@@rovisions to replenish the allowance, whichildmegatively affect earnings.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding market risk see Item“Fanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations
Management of Interest Rate Risk.”

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Management of BankFinancial Corporation is resgaador establishing and maintaining effective int control over financial reporting.

Management evaluates the effectiveness of interoadrol over financial reporting and tests for abllity of recorded financial informatic
through a program of ongoing internal audits. Aggtem of internal control, no matter how well desid, has inherent limitations, includ
the possibility that a control can be circumventedverridden and misstatements due to error ardfraay occur and not be detected. £
because of changes in conditions, internal comffelctiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, eneffective system of internal con
will provide only reasonable assurance with respeéinancial statement preparation.

The Companys internal control over financial reporting is sogess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregahe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantte agcounting principles generally acce|
in the United States of America. The Companiyiternal control over financial reporting inclgdéhose policies and procedures that (i) pe
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabtaild accurately and fairly reflect the transassicand dispositions of the assets of
Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance thatsér@ions are recorded as necessary to permit ratapa of financial statements
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and thagipts and expenditures of the Comg
are being made only in accordance with authoripatiof management and directors of the Company;(gipg@rovide reasonable assura
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauited acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa assets that could have a mat
effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed the Company’s internal camtesl financial reporting as of December 31, 20185 required by Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, based on the critaiaeffective internal control over financial regong described in the “Internal Control-
Integrated Framework,adopted by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioh the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on
assessment, management concludes that, as of Dec8it2012 , the Company’s internal control owearicial reporting is effective.

The Company'’s independent registered public ac@ogifirm has issued their report on the effectivemef the Compang’internal control ov
financial reporting. That report follows under theading, Report of Independent Registered PublaActing Firm.

/sl F. Morgan Gasior /sl Paul A. Cloutier
F. Morgan Gasior Paul A. Cloutier
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer d&résident Executive Vice President and Chieafcial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have audited the accompanying consolidated nséattis of financial condition of BankFinancial Corgiion (the “Company”)as o
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , and the related ddased statements of operations, comprehensivariacghanges in stockholdeejuity
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended December 31, 2012 . We also hadited the Company’internal contre
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20HB2ased on criteria establishedlitternal Control— Integrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ommission (COSO)yhe Companys management is responsible for these fina
statements, for maintaining effective internal cohover financial reporting, and for its assesshwdrthe effectiveness of internal control c
financial reporting, included in the accompanyingridgemen$ Report on Internal Control Over Financial RepgytiOur responsibility is
express an opinion on these financial statement@aropinion on the Company’s internal control dugancial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to iobtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaéments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordr@r financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitlaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, and evaluating the ovenalhfial statement presentation. Our ¢
of internal control over financial reporting inckedl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and euadutite design, and operating effectiveness ofialecontrol based on the assessed risk
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstavw@selieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclediose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttemisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position
BankFinancial Corporation as of December 31, 201 2011, and the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the years in
three-year period ended December 31, 2Bl&nformity with accounting principles generatlgcepted in the United States of America. .
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2012
based on criteria establishedlitternal Control—ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee oh§&ming Organizations of the Treadv
Commission (COSOQ).

Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 11, 2013
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2012 2011
Assets
Cash and due from other financial institutions $ 20,36 $ 24,24
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial insitns 255,40: 96,45’
Cash and cash equivalents 275,76: 120,70«
Securities, at fair value 77,83. 92,83:
Loans held-for-sale 2,16¢ 1,91¢
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses:
December 31, 2012, $18,035 and December 31, 2@1173#6 1,030,46! 1,227,39
Other real estate owned, net 10,35¢ 22,48(
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank, at cost 8,41 16,34¢
Premises and equipment, net 38,25!: 39,15¢
Accrued interest receivable 4,14¢ 5,57
Core deposit intangible 3,03¢ 3,671
Bank owned life insurance 21,64¢ 21,20°
FDIC prepaid expense 2,65¢ 4,351
Income tax receivable 461 1,80¢
Other assets 5,99¢ 6,13¢
Total assets $ 1,481,19. $ 1,563,57!
Liabilities:
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 13459 $ 142,08
Interest-bearing 1,147,75 1,190,46:
Total deposits 1,282,35 1,332,55;
Borrowings 5,561 9,322
Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insurance 10,70¢ 10,97¢
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 9,67¢ 10,86¢
Total liabilities 1,308,30:; 1,363,71
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 stardg®rized, none issued or outstanding — —
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shathedzed;
21,072,966 shares issued at December 31, 201204rid 2 211 211
Additional paid-in capital 193,59( 193,80:
Retained earnings (deficit) (9,796 17,94¢
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares (12,237 (13,217)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,11¢ 1,111
Total stockholders’ equity 172,89( 199,85
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,481,19. § 1,563,57

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Interest and dividend income
Loans, including fees 58,71¢ $ 66,70t $ 60,92¢
Securities 1,48¢ 2,66t 3,48¢
Other 52¢ 337 522
Total interest income 60,72} 69,70¢ 64,93¢
Interest expense
Deposits 4,345 6,69: 12,33
Borrowings 104 222 85:
Total interest expense 4,44 6,91°¢ 13,18¢
Net interest income 56,28( 62,79: 51,75(
Provision for loan losses 31,52 22,72 12,08:
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 24,75¢ 40,07( 39,66
Noninterest income
Deposit service charges and fees 2,17¢ 2,667 3,02(
Other fee income 1,52z 1,59¢ 1,86¢
Insurance commissions and annuities income 51C 65¢ 77t
Gain on sale of loans, net 841 34C 501
Gain on sale of securities — — 31
Loss on disposition of premises and equipment, net (15€) (19 (19
Loan servicing fees 48¢€ 53¢ 604
Amortization and impairment of servicing assets (320 (267) (47%)
Earnings on bank owned life insurance 43¢ 62€ 43(
Trust 73< 67€ 44
Other 622 49¢ 34¢
Total noninterest income 6,852 7,317 7,12¢
Noninterest expense
Compensation and benefits 25,75 26,02’ 26,33¢
Office occupancy and equipment 6,84( 7,31¢ 6,38(
Advertising and public relations 68¢ 89( 1,27
Information technology 4,63¢ 4,18 3,73:
Supplies, telephone, and postage 1,687 1,69¢ 1,59¢
Amortization of intangibles 633 1,68¢ 1,59t
Nonperforming asset management 5,211 4,431 3,34
Operations of other real estate owned 7,491 6,33¢ 3,97
FDIC insurance premiums 1,77¢ 1,441 2,12¢
Acquisition costs — 1,761 81
Goodwill impairment — 23,86: —
Other 4,00(¢ 4,07 3,40¢
Total noninterest expense 58,71¢ 83,70¢ 53,84¢
Loss before income taxes (27,109 (36,32) (7,059
Income tax expense (benefit) — 12,37t (2,747)
Net loss (27,109 $ (48,69¢) $ (4,307)
Basic loss per common share (1.36) $ (2.4¢) $ (0.29)
Diluted loss per common share (1.3¢) $ (2.4¢) $ (0.29)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 19,888,51 19,770,02 19,664,10
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 19,888,51 19,770,02 19,664,10



See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net loss $ (27,109 $ (48,690 $ (4,307)
Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during thezipd 7 (1,119 (50
Tax effect — 424 19
Recognized gain from sales during the period — — (32)
Tax effect — — 12
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax effect 7 (689) (50)
Comprehensive loss $  (27,10) $ (49,389 $ (4,35))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’' EQUITY
(In thousands, except per share data)

Unearned
Employee
Stock Accumulated
Additional Ownership Other
Common Paid-in Retained Plan Comprehen-sive
Stock Capital Earnings Shares Income (Loss) Total

Balance at January 1, 2010 $ 214 $ 195177 $ 8153 $ (15169 $ 1,85C $ 263,60:
Net loss — — (4,30%) — — (4,307%)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effects — — — — (50 (50
Purchase and retirement of common stock (356,411

shares) ©)] (3,127 — — — (3,129
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compense

expense — 2,15¢ — — — 2,15¢
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.28

per share) — — (5,94¢) — — (5,94¢)
ESOP shares earned — (25) — 97¢ — 954
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 211 $ 194,18 $ 7127¢ $ (14190 $ 1,80C $ 253,28!
Net loss — — (48,69¢) — — (48,69¢)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effects — — — — (68¢9) (68¢9)
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compense

expense — 53 — — — 53
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.22

per share) — — (4,63¢€) — — (4,63€)
ESOP shares earned — (43¢) — 97¢ — 54C
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 211 $ 193,80: $ 17,94¢ $ (13,21) $ 1,111 $ 199,85
Net loss — — (27,109 — — (27,109
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effects — — — — 7 7
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compense

expense — 41 — — — 41
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.03

per share) — — (639) — — (633
ESOP shares earned — (252) — 97¢ — 727
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 211 $ 19359 $ (9,79¢) $ (12,239 $ 1,11¢ $ 172,89(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
49




Table of Contents
BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (27,109 $ (48,69¢ $ (4,307)
Adjustments to reconcile to net loss to net casimfoperating activities
Provision for loan losses 31,52: 22,72 12,08:
Goodwill impairment — 23,86: —
ESOP shares earned 727 54C 954
Stock—based compensation expense 41 53 2,15¢
Depreciation and amortization 4,54¢ 4,55¢ 4,44¢
Amortization of premiums and discounts on secgitind loans (2,502) (1,290 (21)
Amortization of core deposit and other intangitdsets 633 1,68¢ 1,58¢
Amortization and impairment of servicing assets 32C 267 47t
Net change in net deferred loan origination costs 162 46¢ 324
Net loss on sale of other real estate owned 252 15 41k
Net gain on sale of loans (841) (340) (501)
Net gain on sale of securities — — (32)
Net loss disposition of premises and equipment 15€ 19 19
Loans originated for sale (18,639 (16,46¢) (19,66¢)
Proceeds from sale of loans 20,98 17,60¢ 17,45:
REO valuation adjustments 5,55¢ 3,97( 2,392
Net change in:
Deferred income tax — 12,41¢ (2,747)
Accrued interest receivable 1,427 172 721
Earnings on bank owned life insurance (43¢) (62€) (430
Other assets 1,40(C (70) 9,75¢
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities (1,189 (899 (210
Net cash from operating activities 17,01 19,97¢ 24,87
Cash flows from investing activities
Securities
Proceeds from maturities 30,59( 34,10: 1,73(
Proceeds from principal repayments 19,66¢ 30,69: 30,07
Proceeds from sales of securities — 9,67 31
Purchases of securities (35,360) (37,55 (50,489
Loans receivable
Principal payments on loans receivable 518,33( 632,91¢ 817,37¢
Purchases of loans (5,64)) (154,17:) (2,739
Originated for investment (364,59¢) (573,18) (676,429
Proceeds from sale of loans 10,98¢ — —
Proceeds of redemption of Federal Reserve Bank stoc — 15E —
Proceeds of redemption of Federal Home Loan Barhidago stock 7,93¢ — —
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 13,15« 9,07 4,091
Purchase of premises and equipment, net (2,339 (2,370 (1,067%)
Cash acquired in acquisition — 61,61¢ —
Net cash from investing activities 192,73. 10,95( 122,58!
(Continued)
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits
Net change in borrowings
Net change in advance payments by borrowers fastard insurance
Repurchase and retirement of common stock
Cash dividends paid on common stock
Net cash from financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Income taxes refunded

Loans transferred to other real estate owned
Loans transferred to held for sale

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing actiies — Acquisition:
Noncash assets acquired:
Securities
Loans receivable
Other real estate owned
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Redgamné
Goodwill
Premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Core deposit intangible
FDIC prepaid expense
Income tax receivable
Deferred taxes, net
Other assets
Total noncash items acquired
Liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insurance
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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For the years ended December 31,

2012

2011

2010

(50,02¢)
(3,755)
(271)

(639)

$

(115,589
(14,42)
3,617

(4,636)

$

1,98¢
(27,03%)
(727)
(3,122
(5,946)

(54,68%)

(131,03

(34,85()

155,06(
120,70«

(100,10%)
220,81

112,61:
108,19¢

275,76

120,70«

$

220,81(

4,50z

1,42
7,03¢
12,74

6,84¢

761
14,13:

10,177
118,14°
6,96¢
90:<
1,29¢
7,442
35¢
2,66(
774
774
2,66z
42

13,57¢

1,30(C
11,29:
17,437

152,19

212,93¢
34
84:

213,81¢

$

61,61¢

$
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatior: BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporatimadquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Companis the owne
of all of the issued and outstanding capital stocBankFinancial, F.S.B. (the “Bank”).

Principles of Consolidatior: The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts of and transactions of BankFinancial Gepon, th
Maryland corporation, the Bank, and the Bank's wholwned subsidiaries, Financial Assurance Services, &nd BF Asset Recovt
Corporation (collectively, “the Company”). All siditant intercompany accounts and transactions lhaen eliminated.

Nature of Business: The Company’s revenues, operating income, anetsaisse primarily from the banking industry. All thfe Companyg
banking operations are considered by managemedre tmgregated in one reportable operating segroefinfincial reporting purposes. Lc
origination customers are mainly located in theatge Chicago metropolitan area. To supplement twéginations, the Company purcha
mortgage loans. The loan portfolio is concentraddans that are primarily secured by real estate.

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformityhwdtcounting principles generally accepted in tingddl States of Ameri
(“GAAP”), management makes estimates and assumptions baseditaile information. These estimates and assongpaffect the amour
reported in the financial statements and the disoks provided, and future results could differe ”llowance for loan losses, mortg
servicing rights, deferred tax assets, goodwilheotintangible assets, stobksed compensation, impairment of securities aimdvédue o
financial instruments are particularly subject haege and the effect of such change could be rahterihe financial statements.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interestbearing deposits in other financial institutionstaniag in less than 90 da
are carried at cost.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, depsiitother financial institutions maturing in ledsan 90 days, and daily fede
funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for custolben and deposit transactions, interest beariggpsits in other financial institutio
borrowings, and advance payments by borrowersat@s and insurance.

Securities : Debt securities are classified as availablesfde when they might be sold before maturity. Bquiecurities with readi
determinable fair values are classified as avaldbi-sale. Securities available-feale are carried at fair value, with unrealizeddimg gain:
and losses reported in other comprehensive incdmss)( net of tax. Interest income includes amatiin of purchase premium or discol
Premiums and discounts on securities are amorbtipethe level-yield method without anticipating pagments, except for mortgageacke:
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gaiddosses on sales are based on the amortizedfdbg security sold. Declines in the
value of securities below their cost that are othan-temporary are reflected as realized lossegletermining if losses are other-than
temporary, management considers: (1) the lengthmaf and extent that fair value has been less thahor adjusted cost, as applicable, (2
financial condition and near term prospects ofisiseer, and (3) whether the Company has the inbesell the debt security or it is more lik
than not that the Company will be required to gedl debt security before the anticipated recovery.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock The Bank is a member of the Federal Home LoankBasstem. Members are required to own a ce
amount of stock based on the level of borrowings @her factors, and may invest in additional anteuRederal Home Loan Bank of Chic.
(“FHLBC") stock is carried at cost and classified as a wdsttisecurity. Accounting guidance for FHLBC stqechvides that, for impairme
testing purposes, the value of long term investsisath as our FHLBC common stock is based on thienate recoverability’of the par valu
of the security without regard to temporary dedimevalue. Both cash and stock dividends are tedas income.

Loans Held—for-Sale Mortgage loans originated and intended for salthe secondary market are carried at the lowexggfegate cost
estimated fair market value, as determined by antbhg commitments from investors. Net unrealizes$és, if any, are recorded as a valu
allowance and charged to earnings. Mortgage loatd—forsale are generally sold with servicing rights metdi. The carrying value
mortgage loans sold is reduced by the fair valuthefservicing right. Gains and losses on saleamtgage loans are based on the differ
between the selling price and the carrying valuthefrelated loan sold.

Held for investment loans that have been tranddetweheld-for-sale are carried at the lower of awstair value. For held-fosale loans, ar
decreases in value after transfer below cost aregrézed in mortgage banking revenue in the Codatdd Statements of Operations
increases in fair value above cost are not recegnimtil the loans are sold. The credit componéatng write down upon transfer to held-for-
sale is reflected in charge-offs to the allowarmddan losses.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair market value is determined based on quotedkehaates and our judgment of relevant market d@mmi. Gains and losses on
disposition of loans held-fegale are determined on the specific identificatiethod. Transferred mortgage loans sold in therstany marke
are sold without retaining servicing rights.

Loans and Loan Income: Loans that management has the intent and aldityold for the foreseeable future or until maguctr payoff an
reported at the principal balance outstandingoh¢he allowance for loan losses, premiums andodists on loans purchased, and net def
loan costs. Interest income on loans is recognizéttome over the term of the loan based on theusaof principal outstanding.

Premiums and discounts associated with loans psechare amortized over the contractual term ofdée using the level-yield method.

Interest income is reported on the interest metnudi includes amortization of net deferred loan fmes costs over the contractual loan t
adjusted for prepayments. Interest income is ditcoad at the time a loan is 90 days past due @nwhe do not expect to receive full payn
of interest or principal. Past due status is basethe contractual terms of the loan.

All interest accrued but not received for loang tieve been placed on nonaccrual status is revagsgdst interest income. Interest receive
such loans is accounted for on the cash—basissbrremovery method until qualifying for return toceual status. Once a loan is placed on no
accrual status, the borrower must generally dematesat least six months of payment performancerbethe loan is eligible to return
accrual status. Generally, the Company utilizes“8tedays delinquent, still accruingategory of loan classification when: (1) the Ids
repaid in full shortly after the period end dat®) the loan is well secured and there are no a&sbertpending legal barriers to its collectior
(3) the borrower has remitted all scheduled paymant is otherwise in substantial compliance withterms of the loan, but the processir
payments actually received or the renewal of a lenot occurred for administrative reasons.

Impaired Loans:Impaired loans consist of nonaccrual loans andbteslidebt restructurings (“TDRS”A loan is considered impaired wh
based on current information and events, managebmigves that it is probable that we will be umabd collect all amounts due (b
principal and interest) according to the originahtactual terms of the loan agreement. Once aitodatermined to be impaired, the amoul
impairment is measured based on the loan's obdervfaib value, the fair value of the underlying latéral less selling costs if the loar
collateraldependent, or the present value of expected fumsh flows discounted at the loan's effective agerate. If the measurement of
impaired loan is less than the recorded investriretite loan, the bank's allowance for the impairetateral dependent loan under ASC 31(
10-35 is based on fair value (less costs to dalif the charge- off (the confirmed “loss$)based on the higher appraised value. The reng
recorded investment in the loan after the chaffewvill have a loan loss allowance for the amobgtwhich the estimated fair value of
collateral (less costs to sell) is less than itwraised value.

Impaired loans with specific reserves are reviegearterly for any changes that would affect thecBmereserve. Any impaired loan for whi
a determination has been made that the economie v&lpermanently reduced is chargéfiagainst the allowance for loan losses to refies
current economic value in the period in which tleéedmination has been made.

At the time a collateralependent loan is initially determined to be imedjrwe review the existing collateral appraisalthé most rece
appraisal is greater than a year old, a new apdr&sobtained on the underlying collateral. Appadé are updated with a new indepen
appraisal at least annually and are formally reegwy our internal appraisal department upon réadig new appraisal. All impaired lo¢
and their related reserves are reviewed and updstel quarter. With an immaterial number of exoEst all appraisals and internal revi
are current under this methodology at Decembe2@12.

Purchased Impaired LoansPurchased impaired loans are recorded at thematgd fair values on the respective purchase datdsar
accounted for prospectively based on expected ftasis. No allowance for credit losses is recordedtteese loans at the acquisition datt
determining the acquisition date fair value of fnaged impaired loans, and in subsequent accountitieg;ompany reviews these loans o
individual basis. Expected future cash flows inesscof the fair value of loans at the purchase (atzretable yield") are recorded as intt
income over the life of the loans if the timing aachount of the future cash flows can be reasonabtimated. The noaecretable yiel
represents estimated losses in the portfolio aedusl to the difference between contractually iregipayments and the cash flows expect:
be collected at acquisition.

Subsequent to the purchase date, increases in fagh over those expected at the purchase dateremmegnized as interest inco
prospectively. The present value of any decreasespected cash flows after the purchase datedgnézed by ecording a chargeff througt
the allowance for loan losses.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Troubled Debt Restructurings A loan is classified as a troubled debt restriotuwhen a borrower is experiencing financial idiffties tha
leads to a restructuring of the loan, and the Camggants concessions to the borrower in the refstring that it would not otherwise consic
These concessions may include rate reductionscipahforgiveness, extension of maturity date atldep actions intended to minim
potential losses.

In determining whether a debtor is experiencinguicial difficulties, the Company considers if thebtbr is in payment default or would b¢
payment default in the foreseeable future withdwat modification, the debtor declared or is in thecpss of declaring bankruptcy, ther
substantial doubt that the debtor will continueaging concern, the debtor has securities thag baen or are in the process of being deli
the debtor's entitgpecific projected cash flows will not be suffidig¢n service any of its debt, or the debtor carofwifin funds from sourc
other than the existing creditors at a market f@atelebt with similar risk characteristics.

In determining whether the Company has grantednaession, the Company assesses, if it does notetpeollect all amounts due, whet
the current value of the collateral will satisfyetamounts owed, whether additional collateral cargntees from the debtor will serve
adequate compensation for other terms of the msiing, and whether the debtor otherwise has adwefinds at a market rate for debt \
similar risk characteristics.

A loan that is modified at a market rate of inténe8l not be classified as troubled debt restruicty in the calendar year subsequent tc
restructuring if it is in compliance with the madi terms. Payment performance prior and subsedaghe restructuring is taken into accc
in assessing whether it is likely that the borrowan meet the new terms. This may result in tha lmeing returned to accrual at the tim
restructuring. A period of sustained repaymentfdeast six months generally is required for metieraccrual status.

Periodically, the Company will restructure a natitwo separate notes (A/B structure), chargirfghef entire B portion of the note. The
note is structured with appropriate loanvedue and cash flow coverage ratios that provideafbigh likelihood of repayment. The A not
classified as a noperforming note until the borrower has displayetiistorical payment performance for a reasonable tprior to an
subsequent to the restructuring. A period of sasthrepayment for at least six months generaltedsiired to return the note to accrual st
provided that management has determined that th@rp®nce is reasonably expected to continue. Thaote will be classified as
restructured note (either performing or nonperfaghithrough the calendar year of the restructuttiag the historical payment performance
been established.

Allowance for Loan LossesThe Company establishes provisions for loan lossbigh are charged to the Compasyésults of operations
maintain the allowance for loan losses to absodbagile incurred credit losses in the loan portfdilodetermining the level of the allowal
for loan losses, the Company considers past anértuloss experience, trends in classified loanaluations of real estate collateral, cur
economic conditions, volume and type of lendingyeaisle situations that may affect a borroweability to repay a loan and the level:
nonperforming and other classified loans. The arhofithe allowance is based on estimates and tiveate losses may vary from the estim
as more information becomes available or eventagia

The Company provides for loan losses based onllineaance method. Accordingly, all loan losses dnarged to the related allowance ani
recoveries are credited to it. Additions to thewaknce for loan losses are provided by chargesduonie based on various factors that, ir
judgment, deserve current recognition in estimagirabable incurred credit losses. The Company vevthe loan portfolio on an ongoing b:
and makes provisions for loan losses on a quarbedys to maintain the allowance for loan lossesctordance with GAAP. The allowanfos
loan losses consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impairesidential non-owner occupied mortgage, nfaltvily mortgage, nonresidential r
estate, construction and land, commercial, and cenial lease loans for which the recorded investrrethe loan exceeds the measi
value of the loan; and

« general allowances for loan losses for each loassdbased on historical loan loss experience; djudtanents to historical loss experie
(general allowances), maintained to cover uncditanhat affect our estimate of probable incurestit losses for each loan class. If
remaining unamortized discount related to a spepiiol of purchased performing loans exceeds ttimat®d credit losses associated
these loans, no general valuation allowance isrdecbagainst the loans.

The adjustments to historical loss experience ased on our evaluation of several factors, inclgdavels of, and trends in, past due
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chaoffs-and recoveries; trends in volume and termiearfs, including any credit concentration
the loan portfolio; experience, ability, and depfhlending management and other relevant staff; mattbnal and local economic trends
conditions.
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The Company evaluates the allowance for loan lolsased upon the combined total of the specific gameral components. Generally, w
the loan portfolio increases, absent other factbesallowance for loan loss methodology resulta iigher dollar amount of estimated prob
incurred credit losses than would be the case witioe increase. Conversely, when the loan poctfdecreases, absent other factors
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rissil a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case withou
decrease.

The loss ratio used in computing the required garlean loss reserve allowance for a given clas®anf consists of (i) the actual loss r
(measured on a weighted, rolling twelgearter basis), (ii) the change in credit qualifyhvm the specific loan class during the period) the
actual inherent risk factor assigned to the speddfan class and (iv) the actual concentrationigK factor assigned to the specific loan c
(collectively, “the Specific Loan Class Risk Fastdr The Specific Loan Class Risk Factors are weightpthBy in the calculation. In additic
two additional quantitative factors, the NationatoBomic risk factor and the Local Economic risktéec are also components of

computation but are given different weightingsheit computation due to their relative applicapilib the specific loan class in the conte»
the effect of national and local economic condsiom their risk profile and performance.

Mortgage Servicing Right: Mortgage servicing rights are recognized sepbrathen they are acquired through sales of loanseiimortgag
loans are sold, servicing rights are initially neted at fair value and gains on sales of loangegerded in the statement of operations.
value is based on market prices for comparablegag#g servicing contracts, when available, or &valy, is based on a valuation model
calculates the present value of estimated fututeservicing income. The valuation model incorpasadassumptions that market participi
would use in estimating future net servicing incosiech as the servicing cost per loan, the discaiat the escrow float rate, an inflation r
ancillary income, prepayment speeds and defadsrand losses. The Company compares the valuatidelrmputs and results to publisl
industry data in order to validate the model resalhd assumptions. All classes of servicing assetssubsequently measured using
amortization method which requires servicing riglisbe amortized into noninterest income in prapartto, and over the period of, -
estimated future net servicing income of the unyilegl loans.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment baped the fair value of the rights as comparedatoying amount. Impairment is determil
by stratifying rights into groupings based on pmadwnt risk characteristics, such as interest tatm type and investor type. Impairmer
recognized through a valuation allowance for anviddal grouping, to the extent that fair valueléss than the carrying amount. If
Company later determines that all or a portiorhefimpairment no longer exists for a particularugiag, a reduction of the allowance may
recorded as an increase to income. Changes intialuallowances are reported with amortization angdairment of servicing assets on
statement of operations. The fair values of semgiaights are subject to significant fluctuatiorssaaresult of changes in estimated and a
prepayment speeds and default rates and losses.

Servicing fee income that is reported on the statdémf operations as loan servicing fees is reabfde fees earned for servicing loans.
fees are based on a contractual percentage ofitemnding principal; or a fixed amount per load are recorded as income when earned.
fees and ancillary fees related to loan serviciegrnet material.

Other Real Estate Owned Real estate properties acquired in collectioradban are initially recorded at fair value lesstcto sell ¢
acquisition, establishing a new cost basis. If f@ilue declines subsequent to foreclosure, a vatluatlowance is recorded through expe
Operating expenses, gains and losses on dispgsitiohchanges in the valuation allowance are re@on noninterest expense as operatio
other real estate owned ("OREQ").

Premises and Equipmer: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipmentsiated at cost less accumulated depreciatiopreDition i
included in noninterest expense and is computedhenstraightine method over the estimated useful lives of #issets. Useful lives ¢
estimated to be 25 to 40 years for buildings angravements that extend the life of the originallding, ten to 20years for routine buildir
improvements, five to 15 years for furniture andipment, two to five years for computer hardward aoftware and no greater than fgear:
on automobiles. The cost of maintenance and rejzadisarged to expense as incurred and signifiepdirs are capitalized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of cost over #ievialue of the net assets of businesses acq
Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired ipuechase business combination and determined te havindefinite useful life are r
amortized, but instead tested for impairment astlemnually. The Company has selected Decembes3headate to perform the anr
impairment test. Intangible assets with definitefuklives are amortized over their estimated uskfes to their estimated residual valt
Gooduwill is the Compang only intangible asset with an indefinite life.eTannual impairment analysis of goodwill includésnitification o
reporting units, the determination of the carrywvgjue of each reporting unit, including the exigtigoodwill and intangible assets,
estimating the fair value of each reporting uniheTCompany identified one significant reportingtueddanking operations. The Comp:
determined the fair value of our reporting unit and
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compared it to its carrying amount. If the carryargount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value,are required to perform a second st
the impairment test.

Our annual impairment analysis as of December 811 2indicated that the step two analysis was sacgslt was determined that the imp
value of goodwill was less than the carrying ampantl the Company reduced the full carrying amadirfoodwill with a charge to earnini
Step one of our annual impairment analysis perfdrme2010 indicated that there was no impairmerdaun goodwill, as the fair value of 1
reporting unit exceeded the carrying amount.

Core deposit intangible assets (“CDI'gre recognized apart from goodwill at the time ofjsition based on valuations preparec
independent third parties or other estimates offalue. In preparing such valuations, variableshsas deposit servicing costs, attrition r:
and market discount rates are considered. CDIsaasetamortized to expense over their useful lives.

Bank Owned Life InsuranceThe Company has purchased life insurance policiesedain key executives. The Company owned ligeiianc
is recorded at the amount that can be realizedruhdeinsurance contract at the balance sheet @hieh is the cash surrender value adju
for other charges or other amounts due that afegile at settlement.

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment, core deposit and otkemgible assets, and other lotggm assets are reviewed for impairn
when events indicate that their carrying amount matybe recoverable from future undiscounted chshst If impaired, the assets are recol
at fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instrument Financial instruments include off-balansieet credit instruments, such
commitments to make loans and commercial lettersredlit, issued to meet customer financing neeti® fhce amount for these ite
represents the exposure to loss, before considetsipmer collateral or ability to repay. Such figi@l instruments are recorded when the)
funded.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the curremtr yjpcome tax due or refundable and the changesfarigbd tax assets &
liabilities. Under GAAP, a deferred tax asset vahraallowance is required to be recognized isitmore likely than notthat the deferred ti
asset will not be realized. The determination & thalizability of the deferred tax assets is highlbjective and dependent upon judgr
concerning managemestevaluation of both positive and negative evidetice forecasts of future taxable income, applieabk plannin
strategies, and assessments of current and futar®mic and business conditions. The Company cerssiabth positive and negative evide
regarding the ultimate realizability of our defetrax assets. Examples of positive evidence mdudecthe existence, if any, of taxes pai
available carrypack years and the likelihood that taxable incorieb® generated in future periods. Examples ofatieg evidence may inclu
a cumulative loss in the current year and prior ywears and negative general business and econmeniist Deferred tax assets and liabil
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglyp taptaxable income in the years in which thommporary differences are expected t
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taetasand liabilities of a change in tax rates gaized in income in the period of
enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuatiowatfioe when, in the opinion of management, it iseritely than not that some portion, or
of the deferred tax asset will not be realizedageessing the realization of deferred tax assetsagement evaluates both positive and nec
evidence, including the existence of any cumulatosses in the current year and the prior two yetes amount of taxes paid in availe
carryback years, the forecasts of future income, taking account applicable tax planning strategies, assessments of current and fu
economic and business conditions. This analysispidated quarterly and adjusted as necessary. Aerbleer 31, 2012 and 201 1lafte
considering both positive and negative evidenae Gbmpany determined that a full valuation alloveafur deferred tax assets was required.

Retirement Plans: Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expersséhe amount of matching contributions and any ahdiscretionar
contribution made at the discretion of the ComparBoard of Directors. Deferred compensation expatiseates the benefits over year:
service.

Employee Stock Ownership Plar‘ESOP”) : The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but notlj@tated to participants, is shown ¢
reduction of stockholderstquity. Compensation expense is based on the marlat of shares as they are committed to be reteds
participant accounts. Dividends on allocated ESR¥Pes reduce retained earnings; dividends on uedd&B8OP shares reduce debt and ac
interest.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shal: Basic earnings (loss) per common share is netnmec(loss) divided by the weighted average numt
common shares outstanding during the period. ES@Res are considered outstanding for this caladatinless unearned. Diluted earni



(loss) per common share is net income (loss) di/lWethe weighted average number of common
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shares outstanding during the period plus the iddueffect of restricted stock shares and the amidit potential shares issuable under <
options.

Loss Contingencie: Loss contingencies, including claims and legaibas arising in the ordinary course of business,racorded as liabiliti
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amha@u range of loss can be reasonably estimatedalyiement does not believe that there
such matters that will have a material effect anfthancial statements as of December 31, 2012.

Restrictions on Casl: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal ResBank which is required to meet regulatory reseamd clearin
requirements, based on a percentage of deposits.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estirdaising relevant market value information and ¢
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a sepawatte. Fair value estimates involve uncertaintieds matters of significant judgment regarc
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and dtetors, especially in the absence of broad marketparticular items. Changes in assump
or in market conditions could significantly affébe estimates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net iredloss) and other comprehensive income (loss)et
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealizechsgaind losses on securities, which are also rezednas separate component:
stockholders’ equity.

Stocl-based CompensatiorCompensation cost is recognized for stock optiorts restricted stock awards issued to employeegdbas th
fair value of these awards at the date of grané BlackScholes model is utilized to estimate the fair eabdi stock options, while the mar
price of the Companyg’ common stock at the date of grant is used farictsd stock awards. Compensation cost is recegh@er the require
service period, generally defined as the vestingpgde

Transfers of Financial AssetsTransfers of financial assets are accounted fosadess when control over the assets has been ridhvey
Control over transferred assets is deemed to lrermigred when the assets have been isolated frer@ampany, the transferee obtains
right (free of conditions that constrain it fronkitag advantage of that right) to pledge or exchahgetransferred assets, and the Company
not maintain effective control over the transferasgets through an agreement to repurchase theme bkéir maturity.

Operating SegmentsWhile management monitors the revenue streams eofvétrious products and services, operations areageahan
financial performance is evaluated on a Compaide basis. Operating results are not reviewed dnics management to make reso!
allocation or performance decisions. Accordinglyoéthe financial service operations are consédeby management to be aggregated ir
reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made in the pear’s financial statements to conform to therent yeais presentatior

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting stdedgrdate to increase the prominence of itemsdedtun Other Comprehensive Incc
and facilitate the convergence of U.S. GAAP witlR8: The update prohibited continued exclusive mtesien of Other Comprehens
Income in the statement of stockholders' equitye Thdate required that all namvner changes in stockholders' equity be presantedher
single continuous statement of comprehensive incomi@ two separate but continuous statements. arhendments in the update bec
effective for interim and annual periods beginnorgor after December 15, 2011. The provisions of tipdate only changed the manne
which our Other Comprehensive Income is disclosed.
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NOTE 2 - LOSS PER SHARE

Amounts reported in loss per share reflect losdlabla to common stockholders for the period diddey the weighted average numbe
shares of common stock outstanding during the gesgclusive of unearned ESOP shares and unvesséricted stock shares. Stock opti
and restricted stock are regarded as potential aamstock and are considered in the diluted earniegsshare calculations to the extent
they would have a dilutive effect if converted tmmamon stock.

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net loss available to common stockholders $ (27,109 $ (48,69¢ $ (4,307
Average common shares outstanding 21,072,96 21,072,96 21,208,60
Less:
Unearned ESOP shares (1,182,49) (1,294,47) (1,441,66)
Unvested restricted stock shares (1,959 (8,46%) (102,82)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 19,888,51 19,770,02 19,664,10
Add - Net effect of dilutive stock options and ustesl restricted stock — — —
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstanding 19,888,51 19,770,02 19,664,10
Basic loss per common share $ (1.36) $ (2.4¢) $ (0.29)
Diluted loss per common share $ (1.3¢) $ (2.46) $ (0.22)
Number of antidilutive stock options excluded frtime diluted earnings per
share calculation — 2,075,55! 2,287,55:
Weighted average exercise price of anti-dilutivéapshares $ — 3 16.5¢ $ 16.52

58




Table of Contents
BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES

The fair value of securities and the related grosgalized gains and losses recognized in accuetlitgther comprehensive income (loss)
follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

December 31, 2012
Certificates of deposit $ 33,45¢ $ — 8 — ¢ 33,45¢
Municipal securities 35C 19 — 36¢
Equity mutual fund 50C 28 — 52¢
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 32,57: 1,661 — 34,23:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 9,111 9t 2 9,20¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 42 — — 42

$ 76,03. $ 1,80: $ 2 % 77,83
December 31, 2011
Certificates of deposit $ 30,44¢ $ — 8 — ¢ 30,44¢
Municipal securities 51k 36 — 551
Equity mutual fund 50C 24 — 524
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 34,69: 1,38t — 36,07¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 24,83" 372 (23 25,18¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 47 — — 47

$ 91,03t $ 1817 $ (23) ¢ 92,83

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized na@ggobligations reflected in the preceding tableevigsued by U.S. governmesponsore
entities and agencies, Freddie Mac, Fannie MaeGindie Mae, and are obligations which the governnies affirmed its commitment
support. All securities reflected in the precedialgle were classified as available-for-sale at rdwr 31, 2012 and 2011 .

The amortized cost and fair values of securitieBetember 31, 201By contractual maturity are shown below. Securities due at a sing
maturity date are shown separately. Expected ntiggimnay differ from contractual maturities becabeerowers may have the right to cal
prepay obligations with or without call or prepaympenalties.

2012

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 33,62¢ $ 33,63:
Due after one year through five years 18C 19z
33,80¢ 33,82t
Equity mutual fund 50C 52¢
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 32,57: 34,23
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 9,111 9,20¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 42 42
Total $ 76,03. $ 77,83.

Investment securities available for sale with cagyamounts of $9.4 million and $10.4 million atd@enber 31, 2012 and 201tespectively
were pledged as collateral on customer repurchgtgements and for other purposes as required orifped by law.
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NOTE 3 — SECURITIES (continued)

Sales of securities were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Proceeds $ — % 9,677 $ 31
Gross gains — — 31
Gross losses — — —

Securities with unrealized losses at December 312 2and 2011 not recognized in income are as fallow

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
2012
Collateralized mortgage obligations -
residential $ — % — 3 1,95¢ $ 2 3 1,95¢ $ 2
2011
Collateralized mortgage obligations -
residential $ —  $ —  $ 2,132 % 23 % 2,132 $ 23

The Company evaluates marketable investment sesuvitith significant declines in fair value on aagierly basis to determine whether t
should be considered other-themporarily impaired under current accounting gog which generally provides that if a marketedgeurity
is in an unrealized loss position, whether dueeioegal market conditions or industry or issspecific factors, the holder of the securities t
assess whether the impairment is other-than-temypora

A collateralized mortgage obligation that the Compholds in its investment portfolio remained inwarealized loss position Biecember 3:
2012 , but the unrealized loss was not consideigrdfisant under the Comparg/impairment testing methodology. In addition, @@mpan'
does not intend to sell this security, and it kely that the Company will not be required to sk security before its anticipated reco\
occurs.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable are as follows:

December 31,

2012 2011

One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 218,59t $ 272,03:
Multi-family mortgage loans 352,01¢ 423,61!
Nonresidential real estate loans 264,67: 311,64
Construction and land loans 8,552 19,85:
Commercial loans 61,38¢ 93,93:
Commercial leases 139,78: 134,99(
Consumer loans 2,74¢ 2,14i

Total loans 1,047,75! 1,258,20!
Net deferred loan origination costs 745 90¢
Allowance for loan losses (18,039 (31,726

Loans, net $ 1,030,46! $ 1,227,39:

Loan Origination/Risk ManagemerThe Company has certain lending policies and prnaedin place that are designed to maximize
income within an acceptable level of risk. The Camypreviews and approves these policies and proesdn a periodic basis. A report
system supplements the review process by providiagagement with frequent reports related to loadywetion, loan quality, concentratic
of credit, loan delinquencies and nonperforming paténtial problem loans. The Company requires titsurance insuring the priority of «
lien, fire and extended coverage casualty insuraame, if appropriate, flood insurance, in ordeptotect our security interest in the underl

property.

The majority of the loans the Company originates iavestment and business loans (nfaltiily, nonresidential real estate, commer
construction and land loans, and commercial leagegddition, we originate one-four family residential mortgage loans and consulo@ns
and purchase and sell loan participations fromioagme. The following briefly describes our pripal loan products.

The Company originates real estate loans pringifgtured by first liens on nonresidential reahtestThe nonresidential real estate prope
are predominantly office buildings, light industriauildings, shopping centers and mixese developments and, to a lesser extent,

specialized properties such as nursing homes drat bealthcare facilities. The Company may, frometito time, purchase commercial

estate loan participations.

Multi-family mortgage loans generally are securgdrulti-family rental properties such as apartment builgirigcluding subsidized apartm
units. In general, loan amounts range between $280and $3.0 million . Approximately 1486 the collateral is located outside of our prin
market area; however, we do not have a concentratiany single market outside of our primary matkeritory. In underwriting multfamily
mortgage loans, the Company consider a numbercbdrig which include the projected net cash flowthe loans debt service requiremi
(generally requiring a minimum ratio of 115% foafs below $400,000 and 120% for loans above $40Q,8@e age and condition of
collateral, the financial resources and income ll@fehe borrower and the borrowsrexperience in owning or managing similar props
Multi-family mortgage loans are generally origirdiie@ amounts up to 80%f the appraised value of the property securingldhe. Person
guarantees are usually obtained from multi-famibyrtgage borrowers.

Loans secured by multi-family mortgages generailyolve a greater degree of credit risk than ondeto-family residential mortgage loa
and carry larger loan balances. This increaseditcrist is a result of several factors, includifgetconcentration of principal in a limi
number of loans and borrowers, the effects of gdneconomic conditions on income producing propsrtand the increased difficulty
evaluating and monitoring these types of loanstifemmore, the repayment of loans secured by rfartily mortgages typically depends uj
the successful operation of the related real egiaipgerty. If the cash flow from the project is uedd, the borrowes’ ability to repay the lo:
may be impaired.

The Company emphasizes nonresidential real estais with initial principal balances between $280,8nd $3.0 million Substantially all ¢
our nonresidential real estate loans are securgudperties located in our primary market area. Thenpanys nonresidential real estate lo
are generally written as three - or five -year atijble-rate mortgages or mortgages with balloon
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

maturities of three or five years. Amortizationtbese loans is typically based on 20 - to y#ar schedules. The Company also originates
15 -year fixed-rate, fully amortizing loans.

In the underwriting of nonresidential real estatans, the Company generally lends up to 80% optbperty’s appraised value. Decisions
lend are based on the economic viability of thepprty and the creditworthiness of the borrowereWaluating a proposed commercial
estate loan, we emphasize the ratio of the projsepsojected net cash flow to the loandebt service requirement (generally requiri
minimum ratio of 12099, computed after deduction for a vacancy factat property expenses we deem appropriate. Persaagigtees a
usually obtained from nonresidential real estatedveers.

Nonresidential real estate loans generally carghdui interest rates and have shorter terms thasetbo on- to fourfamily residentie
mortgage loans. Nonresidential real estate loamwetier, entail significant additional credit riskempared to one- to fodamily residentie
mortgage loans, as they typically involve largaridalances concentrated with single borrowersargs of related borrowers. In addition,
payment of loans secured by incopr®ducing properties typically depends on the ss&ité operation of the related real estate prajadtthu
may be subject to a greater extent to adverse tionslin the real estate market and in the gersa@homy.

The Company makes various types of secured anccureske commercial loans to customers in our marked #or the purpose of financi
equipment acquisition, expansion, working capitad ather general business purposes. The termssé tloans generally range from less
one year to five years. The loans are either natgmtion a fixedate basis or carry adjustable interest rates iedlé® (i) a lending rate that
determined internally, or (ii) a short-term markate index.

Commercial credit decisions are based upon ouitassessment of the loan applicant. The Compatermées the applicargt’ability to repa
in accordance with the proposed terms of the Ieams we assess the risks involved. An evaluatiomasle of the applicant to determ
character and capacity to manage. Personal guasnofethe principals are usually obtained. In addito evaluating the loan applicant’
financial statements, we consider the adequacheftimary and secondary sources of repaymenthiidan. Credit agency reports of
applicant’s credit history supplement our analgdithe applicans creditworthiness and at times are supplementtdinguiries to other ban
and trade investigations. Collateral supportingeused transaction also is analyzed to determimérketability. Commercial business Ic
generally have higher interest rates than residehdans of like duration because they have a higis& of default since their repaym
generally depends on the successful operationeobtiirowers business and the sufficiency of any collateretify of commercial loans
based primarily on the credit risk of the borroweith due consideration given to borrowers with riympiate deposit relationships.

The Company also lends money to small and siid-leasing companies for equipment financingdsa&enerally, commercial leases
secured by an assignment by the leasing compatiyeolease payments and by a secured interest inghpment being leased. The le:
acknowledges our security interest in the leasadpetent and agrees to send lease payments directls. Consequently, the Comp
underwrites lease loans by examining the creditwmoess of the lessee rather than the lessor. LUeass generally are namcourse to tt
leasing company.

The Companys commercial leases are secured primarily by tdolggcequipment, medical equipment, material hamdéquipment and oth
capital equipment. Lessees tend to be publiclyetlacbmpanies with investmegtade rated debt or companies that have not iqsulglit deb
and therefore do not have a public debt rating. Thenpany requires that a minimum of 5@¥%our commercial lessees have an invest
grade public debt rating by Moodyor Standard & Poors, or the equivalent. CommeEkle#ses to these entities have a maximum mataf
seven years and a maximum outstanding credit expagi$10.0 millionto any single entity. Lessees without public delihgs generally ha
net worth in excess of $25.0 milliorif the lessee does not have a public debt rathey, are subject to the same internal credit aisbys an
other customer. Commercial leases to these lesseesa maximum maturity of five years and a maxinoutstanding credit exposure $3.C
million to any single entity. In addition, the Coany will originate commercial leases to lessee$ wiglowinvestment grade public dt
ratings, but these leases are limited to 10% ofcomrmercial lease portfolio and have a maximumtanting credit exposure of $2aillion to
any single entity. Lease loans are almost alwal &imortizing, with fixed interest rates.

Although the Company does not actively originatastauction and land loans presently, constructioe land loans generally consist of |
acquisition loans to help finance the purchaseuod lintended for further development, includingg®@rfamily homes, multfamily housing an
commercial income property, development loans tiddbrs in our market area to finance improvementseial estate, consisting mostly
singlefamily subdivisions, typically to finance the castutilities, roads, sewers and other developmestsc These builders generally rely
the sale of singléamily homes to repay development loans, althougboime cases the improved building lots may be teolthother builde
often in conjunction with development loans. Canstion and land loans typically involve a higheigaee of credit risk than financing
improved, ownelccupied real estate. The risk of loss on constmcind land loans is largely dependent upon tleeiracy of the initie
appraisal of the property’s value upon
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

completion of construction or development; thereated cost of construction, including interest; #melestimated time to complete and/or
or lease such property. The Company seeks to minirttiese risks by maintaining consistent lendinkicies and underwriting standar
However, if the estimate of value proves to be inaate, the cost of completion is greater than etguk the length of time to complete an
sell or lease the collateral property is greatanthnticipated, or if there is a downturn in thealoeconomy or real estate market, the pro
could have a value upon completion that is insigfitto assure full repayment of the loan. Thisldchave a material adverse effect on
quality of the construction and land loan portfplmd could result in significant losses or deliegies.

The Company offers conforming and non-conformitxgd-rate and adjustable-rate residential mortdages with maturities of up to 3@ar:
and maximum loan amounts generally of up to $2iani. The Company currently offers fixedte conventional mortgage loans with te
of 10 to 30 years that are fully amortizing with mtidy payments, and adjustabigte conventional mortgage loans with initial terohdetwee
one and five years that amortize up to 30 year®-@mfourfamily residential mortgage loans are generallyamaiitten according to Fanr
Mae guidelines, and loans that conform to suchejinds are referred to as “conforming loans.” TlenPany generally originates both fixed-
and adjustable-rate loans in amounts up to the maxi conforming loan limits as established by Famhae, which is currently $417,0G6r
single-family homes. Private mortgage insuraneedgired for first mortgage loans with loan-to-vahatios in excess of 80% .

The Company also originates loans above conforriinigs, sometimes referred to as “jumbo loarthit have been underwritten to the cr
standards of Fannie Mae. These loans are genaiaiple for sale to various firms that specialinethe purchase of such naoenforming
loans. In the Chicago metropolitan area, largdédesgial loans are not uncommon. The Company alginates loans at higher rates that dc
fully meet the credit standards of Fannie Mae beitdieemed to be acceptable risks.

The markets served by the Company have been impphytevidespread economic weakness and high unemmgloty which have contributed
a rise in charge-offs and nonperforming assets. atilty of the Company borrowers to repay their loans, and the valughefcollatere
securing such loans, could be further adverselaster by continued or more significant economickmeas in its local markets as a resu
increased unemployment, declining real estate galoeincreased residential and office vacanciés Mot only could result in the Comp:
experiencing a further increase in chaaffs-and/or nonperforming assets, but also coutzbssitate an increase in the provision for loasds
These events, if they were to occur, would havadrerse impact on the Company’s results of operat@md its capital.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables present the balance in thevadince for loan losses and the loans receivabl@mbyjolio segment and based on impairn
method:

Allowance for loan losses Loan Balances

Individually Purchased Collectively Individually Purchased Collectively
evaluated for impaired evaluated for evaluated for impaired evaluated for
impairment loans impairment Total impairment loans impairment Total
December 31, 2012
One-to-four family
residential real estate
loans $ 137  $ 5 % 458: $ 4,72¢ $ 5,25¢ $ 38C $ 212,96( $ 218,59
Multi-family mortgage
loans 72¢ — 3,851 4,58( 4,801 — 347,21¢ 352,01¢
Nonresidential real estate
loans 401 8 5,13¢ 5,54k 11,91¢ 2,56¢ 250,18t 264,67
Construction and land
loans 294 96 641 1,031 2,21( 1,021 5,321 8,552
Commercial loans 23 1 1,30(¢ 1,32¢ 25¢€ 20 61,11: 61,38¢
Commercial leases — — 66€ 66€ — 139,78: 139,78:
Consumer loans — — 163 163 — 2,74 2,74¢
Total $ 1,58 $ 11C $ 16,34. $ 18,038 $ 24,44. % 3,98¢ $ 1,019,32 1,047,75!
Net deferred loan
origination costs 745
Allowance for loan losse: (18,035
Loans, net $ 1,030,46!
Allowance for loan losses Loan Balances
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
evaluated evaluated evaluated evaluated
for for for Purchase for
impairment impairment Total impairment impaired loans impairment Total
December 31, 2011
One-to-four family residential real
estate loans $ 1,88: $ 422 $ 6,10 % 14,18: % 3,941 % 253,91( $ 272,03.
Multi-family mortgage loans 1,881 4,201 6,082 20,38( 1,41¢ 401,81 423,61!
Nonresidential real estate loans 8,12¢ 5,63( 13,75¢ 32,66¢ 3,37¢ 275,59 311,64
Construction and land loans 95¢ 72t 1,684 3,26: 4,78¢ 11,80: 19,85:
Commercial loans 2,07¢ 1,46( 3,53¢ 3,16( 1,07¢ 89,69 93,93
Commercial leases 22 482 504 22 — 134,96¢ 134,99(
Consumer loans 3 55 58 3 — 2,14¢ 2,147
Total $ 1495 $ 16,77: $ 31,72t $ 73,67¢ $ 14,60 $ 1,169,93 1,258,20!
Net deferred loan origination costs 90¢
Allowance for loan losses (31,726
Loans, net $ 1,227,39
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is adduls:

For the Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Beginning balance $ 31,72t $ 22,18( $ 18,62:

Loans charged offs:
One-to-four family residential real estate loans (12,36¢€) (5,316 (2,292
Multi-family mortgage loans (7,209 (3,519 (2,385
Nonresidential real estate loans (18,167 (69¢) (2,897
Construction and land loans (4,317 (2,519 (525
Commercial loans (4,960 (1,399 (1,179
Commercial leases (127 (72 —
Consumer loans (209%) (93 (16)
(47,23) (13,60¢) (9,289

Recoveries:

One-to-four family residential real estate loans 238 51 69
Multi-family mortgage loans 53¢ 12t 3
Nonresidential real estate loans 32¢ 73 633
Construction and land loans 25( — 58
Commercial loans 62€ 17z 1
Commercial leases — — —
Consumer loans 42 7 —
2,01¢ 42¢ 764
Net charge-off (45,219) (13,177 (8,525
Provision for loan losses 31,52: 22,720 12,08
Ending balance $ 18,03t % 31,72¢ % 22,18(

Impaired loans

Several of the following disclosures are presebiettecorded investment,” which the FASB definesth® amount of the investment in a Ic
which is not net of a valuation allowance, but whitoes reflect any direct write-down of the investta” The following represents t
components of recorded investment:

Loan principal balance

Less unapplied payments

Plus negative unapplied balance

Less escrow balance

Plus negative escrow balance

Plus unamortized net deferred loan costs
Less unamortized net deferred loan fees
Plus unamortized premium

Less unamortized discount

Less previous charge-offs

Plus recorded accrued interest

Less reserve for uncollected interest

= Recorded investment
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following table presents loans individually kenxsed for impairment by class loans, excludingchased impaired loans:

Allowance Average
for Loan Investment Interest
Loan Recorded Partial Losses in Impaired Income
Balance Investment Charge-off Allocated Loans Recognized
December 31, 2012
With no related allowance recorded:
One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 525 $ 421¢ $ 1,027 $ — $ 281z % 14¢
One-to-four family residential real estate loam®n-owner
occupied 567 534 34 — 4,322 9C
Multi-family mortgage loans 2,95¢ 2,10¢ 81¢ — 9,30: 18¢
Wholesale commercial lending — — — — — —
Nonresidential real estate loans 11,85( 9,22( 2,49( — 6,21¢ 341
Land loans — — — — 40¢ —
Commercial loans - secured — — — — 137 —
Commercial loans - unsecured 52¢ 52 477 — 25 21
Commercial loans - other — — — — 23 3
21,15¢ 16,12¢ 4,84 — 23,25: 79¢
With an allowance recorded:
One-to-four family residential real estate loans — — — — 2,50( —
One-to-four family residential real estate loam®n-owner
occupied 62€ 49¢ 12¢ 137 1,99¢ 13
Multi-family mortgage loans 3,182 2,64t 521 72¢ 6,562 2C
Nonresidential real estate loans 2,82¢ 2,54¢ 26€ 401 21,077 2C
Land loans 3,812 2,21( 1,602 294 2,93¢ 112
Commercial loans - secured 38¢€ 204 182 23 1,84¢ —
Commercial loans - unsecured — — — — 267 —
Non-rated commercial leases — — — — 36 —
Consumer loans — — — — 2 —
10,83 8,107 2,69¢ 1,58¢ 37,22 16€
Total $ 31,98 $ 2423t $ 754¢ $ 158 $ 60,47 $ 96¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

December 31, 2011
With no related allowance recorded:
One-to-four family residential real estate loans

One-to-four family residential real estate loam®n-owner
occupied

Multi-family mortgage loans
Wholesale commercial lending
Nonresidential real estate loans
Construction loans

Land loans

Commercial loans - secured
Commercial loans - other
Non-rated commercial leases

With an allowance recorded:
One-to-four family residential real estate loans

One-to-four family residential real estate loam®n-owner
occupied

Multi-family mortgage loans
Wholesale commercial lending
Nonresidential real estate loans
Construction loans

Land loans

Commercial loans - secured
Commercial loans - unsecured
Commercial loans - other
Non-rated commercial leases
Consumer loans

Total

Allowance Average

for Loan Investment Interest

Loan Recorded Partial Losses in Impaired Income
Balance Investment Charge-off Allocated Loans Recognized
$ 232¢ $ 2,171 —  $ — $ 62 9 24
5,94t 5,81¢ 2,49¢ 26¢€
8,91( 8,88¢ — — 5,56 37¢
3,304 3,30( — — 33¢ 3¢
7,30¢ 7,24(C — — 5,97 27¢
237 23€ — — 44¢ 45
— — — — — 41

— — — 44 15
28,02¢ 27,65( — — 15,64 1,07¢
3,97( 3,96% — 1,05¢ 1,40¢ 2
1,937 1,931 — 82¢ 2,96: —
8,16¢ 8,13t — 1,881 4,307 5
— — — — 4,06¢ —
25,36¢ 25,21( — 8,12¢ 12,13¢ 75
— — — — 1,392 —
3,26¢ 3,251 — 95¢ 2,12¢ 82
2,86¢ 2,861 — 2,04¢ 3,25 —
54 54 — 31 15C —

22 22 — 22 98 —

3 3 — 3 — —
45,64¢ 45,43¢ — 14,95: 31,91¢ 164
$ 73,67¢ $ 73,08t — $ 14,95! $ 4756, $ 1,24¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Purchased Impaired Loans
As a result of its acquisition of Downers Grove iNaal Bank (see Note 18Acquisitions), the Company holds purchased loansvfich ther

was evidence of deterioration of credit qualitycsimrigination and for which it was probable thiatantractually required payments would
be collected as of the date of the acquisition. ddreying amount of these purchased impaired Izsaas follows:

December 31,

2012 2011

One—to—four family residential real estate loans $ 38C $ 3,941
Multi-family mortgage loans — 1,41¢
Nonresidential real estate loans 2,56¢ 3,37t
Construction loans — 813
Land loans 1,021 3,97
Commercial loans 20 1,07¢
Outstanding balance $ 398¢ $  14,60(
Carrying amount, net of allowance

($110 at December 31, 2012, none at December 31)20 $ 387¢ §  14,60(

Accretable yield, or income expected to be collgctelated to purchased impaired loans is as faliow

For the Years ended Decembe

31,
2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 2,27C $ —
New loans purchased — 3,41(
Disposals 745 —
Accretion of income 1,32¢ 1,14(
Ending balance $ 19¢ $ 2,27(

For the above purchased impaired loans, the Compamgased the allowance for loan losses by $100{060the year endeBecember 3:
2012 . No allowance for loan losses was recordethfise loans for the year ended December 31, 2011

Purchased impaired loans for which it was probablde date of acquisition that all contractuaiguired payments would not be collectec
as follows:

December 31,

2012 2011
Contractually required payments receivable of lgamnghased:
One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 1,14: % 5,88¢
Multi-family mortgage loans — 3,45¢
Nonresidential real estate loans 3,88¢ 5,39t
Construction loans — 1,314
Land loans 1,60( 8,152
Commercial loans 597 7,672
Consumer loans — 33

$ 7,22¢  $ 31,90¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

At acquisition, cash flows expected to be colleatede $18.8 million , compared to the fair valugpafchased impaired loans of $15.4 million
Nonaccrual loans

The following table presents the recorded investriirenonaccrual and loans past due over 90 day®staccrual by class of loans, excluc
purchased impaired loans:

Loans Past
Due Over 90
Recorded Days, still
Loan Balance Investment accruing

December 31, 2012
One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 7,28¢ $ 6,15¢ $ 7C
One-to-four family residential real estate loanson owner occupied 1,42C 1,14t —
Multi-family mortgage loans 5,24¢ 3,517 247
Nonresidential real estate loans 12,24¢ 8,98t —
Land loans 3,817 2,21(C —
Commercial loans — secured 38¢€ 204 —
Commercial loans — unsecured 552 52 2C
Non-rated commercial leases — — —
Consumer loans — — —

$ 30,95¢ $ 22,267 $ 332
December 31, 2011
One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 6,19¢ $ 6,191 $ 4C
One-to-four family residential real estate loanson owner occupied 4,51( 4,431 —
Multi-family mortgage loans 14,98: 14,801 —
Nonresidential real estate loans 30,39¢ 29,927 12t
Land loans 3,26: 3,24¢ 18t
Commercial loans — secured 2,88t 2,86 —
Commercial loans — unsecured 55 53 —
Non-rated commercial leases 22 22 —
Consumer loans 3 3 —

$ 62,31¢ $ 61,547 $ 35C

Nonaccrual loans and impaired loans are definddreifitly. Some loans may be included in both caiegpand some may only be include
one category. Nonaccrual loans include both smbhléance homogeneous loans that are collectivadjuated for impairment and individue
classified impaired loans.

The Company’s reserve for uncollected loan intenest $942,000 and $2.7 million at December 31, 281i® 2011, respectively. Except f
purchased impaired loans, when a loan is onawmmual status and the ultimate collectability lod total principal of an impaired loan is
doubt, all payments are applied to principal unither cost recovery method. Alternatively, when anlég on noraccrual status but there
doubt concerning only the ultimate collectabilifyimterest, contractual interest is credited t@iast income only when received, under the
basis method pursuant to the provisions of FASB A30-10, as applicable. In all cases, the average bedaare calculated based on
month—end balances of the financing receivablelsimthe period reported pursuant to the provismSASB ASC 310-10, as applicable.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Past Due Loans

The following tables presents the aging of the r@ed investment in past due loans at December@®I2, By class of loans:

90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total
One-to-four family residential real estate
loans $ 1,58¢ T7¢E $ 4,46 $ 6,82t $ 153,27¢ $ 160,10
One-to-four family residential real estate
loans - non-owner occupied 85& 57¢ 24¢ 1,68: 55,90¢ 57,58¢
Multi-family mortgage loans 5,39: 3,04¢ 3,21¢ 11,66( 291,108 302,76:
Wholesale commercial lending 1,481 — — 1,481 44,34: 45,82
Nonresidential real estate loans 863 39¢ 5,50¢ 6,76¢ 252,36¢ 259,13
Land loans 702 1,22( 63C 2,552 4,95¢ 7,50¢
Commercial loans:
Secured 65¢ 3 204 86¢€ 22,33¢ 23,20
Unsecured 81 78 16 17t 5,77¢ 5,94¢
Municipal loans — — — — 4,752 4,752
Warehouse lines — — — — 2,98¢ 2,98¢
Health care — — — — 17,60: 17,60:
Other — — — — 6,971 6,971
Commercial leases:
Investment rated commercial leases — — — — 102,72 102,72
Below investment grade — — — — 9,29/ 9,29/
Non-rated — — — — 25,65 25,657
Lease pools — — — — 3,02¢ 3,02¢
Consumer loans 15 — — 15 2,741 2,75¢
Total $ 11,630 $ 6,10¢ ) $ 14,28t % 32,02¢ $ 1,005,82° $ 1,037,85
(1) 38% of the combined 389 days past due loans have matured and are praloess of analysis and rene\
90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total
Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential real este
loans - non-owner occupied $ 3217 — % 53 § 38C $ — 38(
Multi-family mortgage loans — — — — — —
Nonresidential real estate loans — — 1,12¢ 1,12¢ 1,44: 2,56¢
Construction loans — — — — — —
Land loans — — 1,021 1,021 — 1,021
Commercial loans — secured — — 20 20 — 2C
Commercial loans — unsecured — — — — — —
Total $ 327 — 8 2,21¢ % 254¢ % 1,44: 3,98¢

70






Table of Contents

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables presents the aging of the réed investment in past due loans as December(31, By class of loans:

Greater than

30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90 Days Past Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Due Due Past Due Total
One-to-four family residential real estate
loans $ 2,25¢ $ 59¢ $ 564C $ 8,49¢ $ 182,89 $ 191,39
One-to-four family residential real estate
loans - non-owner occupied 2,307 11¢ 2,83( 5,25¢ 71,107 76,36
Multi-family mortgage loans 6,00z 4,15¢ 12,57¢ 22,73t 328,15: 350,88¢
Wholesale commercial lending 78t — — 78t 67,05! 67,83¢
Nonresidential real estate loans 3,381 6,18: 17,01¢ 26,58 279,41! 305,99¢
Construction loans — 52C — 52C 1,33¢ 1,85¢
Land loans 5,40¢ 1,152 434 6,99t 6,27 13,26¢
Commercial loans:
Secured 17 — 2,861 2,88¢ 26,19: 29,077
Unsecured 43t 3 54 49z 9,381 9,87¢
Municipal loans — — — — 6,471 6,471
Warehouse lines — — — — 9,86- 9,86:
Health care — — — — 29,51( 29,51(
Other — — — — 8,42t 8,42¢
Commercial leases:
Investment rated commercial leases 294 — — 294 84,37¢ 84,67
Below investment grade — — — — 6,26: 6,262
Non-rated 29C — 22 312 37,05:¢ 37,36
Lease pools — — — — 7,82: 7,828
Consumer loans 8 — — 8 2,152 2,16(
Total $ 21,181 $ 12,73¢ $ 41,44. $ 75,36: $ 1,163,74i $ 1,239,11
(1) 46% of the combined 389 days past due loans have matured and are praless of analysis and rene\
90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total
Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential real
estate loans - non-owner occupiekl — — 2,83 % 2,83 % 1,087 $ 3,92
Multi-family mortgage loans — — 1,41¢ 1,41¢ — 1,41¢
Nonresidential real estate loans 99¢ — 1,681 2,67 68¢ 3,36t
Construction loans — — 81z 81z — 813
Land loans — — 3,57¢ 3,57¢ 36¢ 3,941
Commercial loans — secured — — 807 807 162 96¢
Commercial loans — unsecured — — 34 34 — 34
Total $ 99¢ — $ 11,166 $ 12,16: $ 2,30¢€ $  14,46¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Company evaluates loan extensions or modificatin accordance with FASB ASC 3H¥0-with respect to the classification of the loa
a TDR. In general, if the Company grants a loarersion or modification to a borrower for other them insignificant period of time tt
includes a belowmarket interest rate, principal forgiveness, paynfierbearance or other concession intended to nimgithe economic loss
the Company, the loan extension or loan modificaisoclassified as a TDR. In cases where borroaergranted new terms that provide f
reduction of either interest or principal then dunel payable, management measures any impairmehéeastructured loan in the same ma
as for impaired loans as noted above.

The Company had $11.2 million of TDRs at Decemtigr2®12 , compared to $18.1 million at December28L1 , with $318,000 an$il.Z
million in specific valuation reserves allocatedacember 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Thepgaomnhad n@utstanding commitments
borrowers whose loans are classified as TDRs.

The following table presents loans classified aiR¥D

December 31,

2012 2011

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 280z $ 5,61¢
Multi-family mortgage 1,201 5,78:
Nonresidential real estate 5,18¢ 2,22(
Commercial loans — secured — 23¢
Troubled debt restructured loans — accrual loans 9,197 13,86(
One-to-four family residential real estate 767 55€
Multi-family mortgage 93¢ 717
Nonresidential real estate 27C 2,96(
Consumer loans — 3
Troubled debt restructured loans — nonaccrual loans 1,97¢ 4,23¢
Total troubled debt restructured loans $ 11,167 $ 18,09¢

During the years ending December 31, 2012 and 2@id terms of certain loans were modified andsifiesl as TDRs. The modification of 1
terms of such loans included one or a combinatiothe following: a reduction of the stated intereste of the loan; an extension of
maturity date at a stated rate of interest lowantthe current market rate for new debt with similak; or a permanent reduction of
recorded investment in the loan.

The following tables present TDRs that occurredrduthe year:

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011
Pre- Post- Pre- Post-
Modification ~ Modification Modification  Modification
outstanding outstanding outstanding outstanding
Number recorded recorded Number recorded recorded
of loans investment investment of loans investment investment
One-to-four family residential real estate 24 ' $ 2,091 $ 2,097 28 $ 286: $ 2,53t
One-to-four family residential real estate
non-owner occupied — — — 3 9,17¢ 7,55(
Multi-family mortgage 1 70C 50z 4 2,091 2,07(¢
Wholesale commercial lending — — — 1 2,76z 2,76
Nonresidential real estate 7 7,147 5,06¢ 3 1,282 1,03:
Commercial loans - secured — — — 3 277 23¢€
Consumer loans — — — 1 3 3




Total 32 $ 993 $ 7,65¢ 43 $ 1845 $ 16,19
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Due to
permanent
Due to Due to reduction in
reduction in extension of recorded
interest rate maturity date investment Total
For the year ended December 31, 2012
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 50 $ 158: $ — 3 2,091
Multi-family mortgage — — 503 503
Nonresidential real estate — — 5,06% 5,062
Total $ 50 $ 158 $ 556t $ 7,65¢€
For the year ended December 31, 2011
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 11C % 2,39¢ % 30 $ 2,53¢
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied — 1,55¢ 5,99¢ 7,55(
Multi-family mortgage 2,07( — — 2,07(
Wholesale commercial lending — — 2,76: 2,76:
Nonresidential real estate — — 1,03: 1,03
Commercial loans - secured — 23¢ — 23¢
Consumer loans — — 3 3
Total $ 2,18 $ 4,18¢ $ 9,82: $ 16,19:

The TDRs described above decreased interest indpm®9,000 and $113,000 , increased the allowancdofin losses by $62,008nc
$802,000 and resulted in charge offs of $2.0 nrilémd $1.7 million during the years ending Decen®1gr2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The following table presents TDRs for which theraswa payment default within twelve months followihg modification during the ye:
ending December 31, 2012 and 2011 :

2012 2011
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of loans investment of loans investment
One-to-four family residential real estate 5 % 864 2 % 4,004
Nonresidential real estate 4 3,30¢ 2 1,63t
Total 9 3 4,172 4 $ 5,63¢

A loan is considered to be in payment default dhize90 days contractually past due under the fiextiterms.

The TDRs that subsequently defaulted described ealbad nomaterial impact on the allowance for loans lossaesnd the years endil
December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

The terms of certain other loans were modifiedryithe year ending December 31, 2@ did not meet the definition of a TDR. Thesan
have a total recorded investment of $1.4 million &7.6 million at December 31, 2012 and 20IMhe modification of these loans invol
either a modification of the terms of a loan torbwrers who were not experiencing financial diffibed or a delay in a payment that
considered to be insignificant.

In order to determine whether a borrower is expeiigg financial difficulty, an evaluation is perfoed of the probability that the borrower \
be in payment default on any of its debt in theeéeeable future without the modification. This ea#ibn is performed under the Company’
internal underwriting policy.

Credit Quality Indicators:
The Company categorizes loans into risk categdmdsgd on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, includ

current financial information, historical paymentperience, credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. The Company analyzes loans indiigbg classifying the loans based on credit risk.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

This analysis includes ndmmogeneous loans, such as commercial and commealaestate loans. This analysis is performea ononthly
basis. The Company uses the following definitiamsrisk ratings:

Special Mention.A Special Mention asset has potential weaknessggitserve managemeitiose attention. If left uncorrected, tr
potential weaknesses may result in deterioratiothefrepayment prospects for the asset or in thgtution’s credit position at sor
future date. Special Mention assets are not adyecdassified and do not expose an institution wdfisient risk to warrant adver
classification.

Substandard. Loans categorized as substandard continue to agtierest, but exhibit a wetlefined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. The loaastimue to accrue interest because they are welired and collection of principal &
interest is expected within a reasonable time. fidlerating guidance published by the Office of @emptroller of the Currency clarifi
that a loan with a weltiefined weakness does not have to present a plitpabidefault for the loan to be rated Substaigand that &
individual loan’s loss potential does not have éadistinct for the loan to be rated Substandard.

Nonaccrual. An asset classified Nonaccrual has all the wealeseisderent in one classified substandard withatided characteristic tt
the weaknesses make collection or liquidation ih éin the basis of currently existing facts, cdmatis, and values, highly questione
and improbable. The loans were placed on nonacstagls.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describectpss are considered “Pass” rated loans.

As of December 31, 2012 , and based on the moshtremalysis performed, the risk category of Idanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Nonaccrual Total
One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 152,71: $ — $ 1,42¢ $ 6,15¢ $ 160,29
One-to-four family residential real estate loans
non-owner occupied 51,84¢ 1,48¢ 3,44( 1,52¢ 58,29¢
Multi-family mortgage loans 275,33t 6,13¢ 21,12¢ 3,55¢ 306,16
Wholesale commercial lending 44,07 — 1,781 — 45,85¢
Nonresidential real estate loans 199,80: 30,89¢ 22,34¢ 11,627 264,67:
Construction loans — — — — —
Land loans 2,76¢ 15¢ 2,39¢ 3,231 8,55:
Commercial loans:
Secured 19,57¢ 2,41¢ 98¢ 22t 23,21(
Unsecured 4,061 323 1,49 52 5,93:
Municipal loans 4,751 — — — 4,751
Warehouse lines 2,971 — — — 2,971
Health care 17,56¢ — — — 17,56¢
Other 6,957 — — — 6,957
Commercial leases:
Investment rated commercial leases 102,10: — — — 102,10:
Below investment grade 9,20t — — — 9,20t
Non-rated 25,46¢ — — — 25,46¢
Lease pools 3,011 — — — 3,011
Consumer loans 2,742 — 3 — 2,74¢
Total $ 924,95. $ 41,42; $ 55,00 $ 26,37¢ $  1,047,75
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As of December 31, 2011, and based on the moshtr@malysis performed, the risk category of Idanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Nonaccrual Total

One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 184,26¢ $ 51 $ 90€ $ 6,202 $ 191,42°

One-to-four family residential real estate loans
non-owner occupied 68,51 — 3,84¢ 8,241 80,60¢
Multi-family mortgage loans 326,29: 6,021 7,47: 16,03( 355,81t
Wholesale commercial lending 65,03" — 2,76z — 67,79¢
Nonresidential real estate loans 239,25: 18,65¢ 20,21¢ 33,50¢ 311,64.
Construction loans 96¢ 363 511 81: 2,65¢
Land loans 7,662 — 2,32( 7,21¢ 17,19¢
Commercial loans: —
Secured 25,08¢ 41F 442 4,07( 30,01°
Unsecured 6,77¢ 38 2,96¢ 88 9,87:
Municipal loans 6,381 — — — 6,381
Warehouse lines 9,83( — — — 9,83(
Health care 28,06( 1,37¢ — — 29,43¢
Other 8,39t — — — 8,39t
Commercial leases: —
Investment rated commercial leases 83,94’ — — — 83,94"
Below investment grade 6,20¢ — — — 6,20¢
Non-rated 37,02¢ — — 22 37,04¢
Lease pools 7,78¢ — — — 7,78¢
Consumer loans 2,14¢ — — 3 2,147
Total $ 1,113,664 $ 26,92 $ 41,447 $ 76,19¢ $  1,258,20

NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES

First mortgage loans serviced for others are muded in the accompanying consolidated statenmadrfisancial condition. The unpaid
principal balances of these loans were $186.8milli$206.1 million , and $220.9 million at DecemB#&, 2012 , 2011, and 2010,
respectively. Custodial escrow balances maintaimednnection with the foregoing loan servicingiaties were $4.9 million , $5.8 million ,
and $6.9 million at December 31, 2012, 2011 , 201D , respectively.
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (cont inued)

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are inclugtedther assets in the accompanying consolidatgdraents of financial condition. Activity
for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and thlated valuation allowance was as follows.

2012 2011
Servicing rights
Beginning of year $ 1,21¢  $ 1,34¢
Additions 13€ 122
Amortized to expense (265) (252)
End of year $ 1,09 $ 1,21¢
Valuation allowance
Beginning of year $ 15 $ =
Additions expensed 61 32
Reductions credited to expense (6) (17)
End of year $ 70 % 15
Carrying value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,02 $ 1,20¢
Fair value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,34C % 1,487

The estimated fair value of mortgage servicing tdgh the present value of the expected future flasls over the projected life of the lo
Assumptions used in the present value calculatrenbased on actual performance of the underlyingigeg along with general mark
consensus. The expected cash flow is the net ammfuall mortgage servicing income and expense itehie expected cash flows
discounted at an interest rate appropriate foais®ciated risk given the current market conditi@ignificant assumptions are as follows:

2012 2011
Prepayment speed 15.8¢% 17.4%%
Discount rate 12.0(% 12.0(%
Average servicing cost per loan $72.0C $62.0C
Escrow float rate 0.8€% 0.9(%

Key economic assumptions used in measuring thevdédule of the Company’s mortgage servicing riglst®aDecember 31, 201#hd the effe
on the fair value of our mortgage servicing rigintsn adverse changes in those assumptions, aclass:

Fair value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,34(

Weighted average annual prepayment speed 15.8(%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse change (2449)
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse change (270

Weighted-average annual discount rate 12.0(%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse change (50
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse change (98)

These sensitivities are hypothetical and shouldidsel with caution. As the above table indicateangks in fair value based on variation
individual assumptions generally cannot be usqutédict changes in fair value based upon furtheatians of the same assumptions. Also
effect of a variation in a particular assumptiontba fair value of the retained interest is caltadain the above table independently, witl
changing any other assumption. In reality, changese factor may result in changes in anothemfasthich might magnify or counteract
sensitivities.
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (cont inued)

The weighted average amortization period is 46 m®nThe estimated amortization expense for eatheofiext five years is as follows:

2013 $ 16¢
2014 164
2015 142
2016 11C
2017 97

NOTE 6 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year end premises and equipment are as follows:

2012 2011
Land and land improvements $ 13,60f $ 13,517
Buildings and improvements 37,77% 37,17¢
Furniture and equipment 10,17: 10,51¢
Computer equipment 6,39¢ 8,211
67,95: 69,42:
Accumulated depreciation (29,700 (30,267
$ 38,25 $ 39,15t

Depreciation of premises and equipment was $3.liomi| $3.1 million and $3.2 million for the yeaemided December 31, 2012 , 20dric
2010, respectively.

The Company leases certain branch facilities umdercancelable operating lease agreements expiringiiows years through 2032. R
expense, net of sublease income, for facilities $¢&1,000 , $601,000 , and $556,000 in 2012 , 2@IH 201Q respectively, excluding tax:
insurance, and maintenance. The projected mininamal expense under existing leases, not incluidirgs, insurance, and maintenance,
December 31, 2012 is as follows:

2013$% 492
2014 45¢
2015 44C
2016 44t
2017 46¢
Thereafter 6,117
Total $ 8,41¢

The Company has subleased some of its branchtiegitind currently is entitled to receive incoméadisws:

2013% 54
2014 30
2015 8
Total $ 92

77




Table of Contents
BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 7 — GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill aodumulated impairment charge are as follows:

As of and for the year ended
December 31,

2011

Balance at the beginning of the year $ 22,56¢
Additions 1,29¢
23,86

Impairment charge (23,867)

Net Carrying Value $ —

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a pwehausiness combination and determined to havadsiinite useful life are not amortiz
but instead tested for impairment at least annu8liye to high levels of volatility and dislocatiombank stock prices nationwide during 2(
as well as the Comparg/internal evaluation process, the Company engageéddependent valuation firm to determine the ietpfair value c
the Bank. The implied fair value of the Bank wasneated using weighted averages based on a pritantgible book value discount deri
from the quoted market trading prices for similastitutions plus an estimated control premium argjegted, discounted cash flows. Ing
from sales of comparable institutions were notgassil a weighting due to the small size of the group

Our annual impairment analysis as of December 11 2indicated that the step two analysis was acgsStep two requires that the imp
fair value of the reporting unit’'s goodwill be coarpd to the carrying amount of that goodwill. l1&tbarrying amount of the reporting usit’
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that dadll, an impairment loss must be recognized iraarount equal to that excess. As a rest
the step two evaluation, it was determined thatitiglied value of goodwill of the reporting unit edess than the carrying amount, anc
Company reduced the full carrying amount of goobwith a charge to earnings.

Step one of our annual impairment analysis perfdrm&010 indicated that there was no goodwill impant, as the fair value of the report
unit was determined to exceed the carrying amount.

The following table presents the changes in theyray amount of core deposit intangible, grossyiag amount, accumulated amortizat
and net book value as of December 31:

2012 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 3,671 $ 2,70(
Amortization (633) (1,689
Additions — 2,66(
Net Carrying Value $ 3,03¢ % 3,671
Gross carrying amount $ 593: $ 5,93:
Accumulated amortization 2,89 2,26:
Net Carrying Value $ 3,03t $ 3,671

Aggregate amortization expense was $633,000 ,ilion and $1.6 million for 2012 , 2011 and 201@spectively.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the finextyears is as follows:

2013% 60%
2014 57¢
2015 551
2016 52¢

2017 49¢
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NOTE 8—DEPOSITS

Year-end composition of deposits are as follows:

2012 2011
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 13459 $ 142,08:
Savings deposits 144,72t 144,51!
Money market accounts 349,09. 345,01:
Interest-bearing NOW accounts 348,68: 336,53:
Certificates of deposit 305,25: 364,41:

$ 1,282,35. $ 1,332,55.

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more wer@.89nillion and $119.0 million at year-end 2012 &@d 1 , respectively.

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposittfa next five years are as follows:

2013% 212,88¢
2014 64,61:
2015 14,881
2016 8,36(
2017 4,50¢
NOTE 9—BORROWINGS
Year end borrowed funds are as follows:
2012 2011
Contractual Contractual
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Fixed-rate advance from
FHLBC due:
Within 1 year 29% $ 3,00 —% $ —
1to 2 years — — 2.9¢ 3,00(
Total FHLBC funds 2.9¢ 3,00( 2.9¢ 3,00(
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.2t 2,567 0.2t 6,32:
Total borrowings 1.7%% $ 5,567 1.12% $ 9,32%

The Company maintains a collateral pledge agreeswrdring secured advances whereby the Compangdraed to keep on hand, free o
other pledges, liens, and encumbrances, specyfiggtified whole first mortgages on improved desitial property not more than @@y
delinquent to secure advances from the FHLBC. Athe Banks FHLBC common stock is pledged as additional tedéd for these advanc
At December 31, 2012 , $207.2 million and $252.9ioni of first mortgage and mulfiamily mortgage loans, respectively, collateralizke
advances. At December 31, 2012 , we had the abdityorrow an additional $261.5 milliamder our credit facilities with the FHLBC. T
Company also had available pre-approved overnigtieral funds borrowing. At December 31, 2012 anii120there was noutstandin
balance on these lines.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasseatged by mortgage-backed securities with a cagrgmount of $9.4 million at ye&nc
2012.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense (benefit) is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Current benefit $ — 3 © $ ©)
Deferred benefit (11,20¢) (10,220 (2,742
Deferred tax valuation allowance 11,20¢ 22,60: —

Total income tax expense (benefit) $ — $ 12,37t § (2,749

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxesmputed at the statutory federal corporate tax 0&t34% for 2012 , 2011 and 20fdthe
income tax expense in the consolidated statemémsevations follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Benefit computed at the statutory federal tax rate $ (9,217) $ (12,349 $ (2,399
State taxes and other, net (1,757 (1,39 (497)
Bank owned life insurance (149 (219 (14¢)
ESOP/Share based compensation (83 (144) 28¢
Goodwill impairment — 4,271 —
Purchase price accounting adjustments — (396 —
Deferred tax valuation allowance 11,20¢ 22,60: —

$ — $ 1237t $ (2,749
Effective income tax rate —% N.M. @ 38.9%%

Retained earnings at December 31, 2012 and 201idm&14.9 millionfor which no deferred federal income tax liabilitgs been recorde
This amount represents an allocation of incomeatbdebt deductions for tax purposes alone.

(1)  The effective tax rate for the year endedddeaiger 31, 201is not meaningful due to the size of our operalisg relative to the incor
expense resulting from the deferred tax valuatimwance.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

The net deferred tax asset is as follows:

2012 2011
Gross Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 7,037 % 12,37¢
Alternative minimum tax, general business credd aat operating loss carryforward 25,04( 10,49¢
Tax deductible goodwiill 2,42¢ 2,71¢
Non-qualified stock options — 834
OREO write-downs and carrying costs 2,98¢ 1,91/
Other 1,20¢ 60€
38,69¢ 28,94¢
Gross Deferred tax liabilities:
Net deferred loan origination costs (1,169 (1,265
FHLBC stock dividends — (1,840
Purchase accounting adjustments (1,429 (48¢)
Accumulated depreciation (46%) (85¢)
Mortgage servicing rights (39§ (470
Other (739 (740
Unrealized gain on securities (709 (684)
(4,897) (6,345
Valuation allowance (33,807 (22,607
Net deferred tax asset $ — $ —

A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is requioebe recognized if it is “more likely than naliat the deferred tax asset will not be reali
The determination of the realizability of the deéer tax assets is highly subjective and dependeah judgment concerning management’
evaluation of both positive and negative eviderioe,forecasts of future taxable income, applicédmeplanning strategies, and assessmel
current and future economic and business conditibhe Company considered both positive and nega&iwdence regarding the ultim
realizability of its deferred tax assets. Examplépositive evidence may include the existencgny, of taxes paid in available catrgck
years and the likelihood that taxable income wéllgenerated in future periods. Examples of negatiwdence may include a cumulative los
the current year and prior two years and negatereral business and economic trends. In assedgnpalization of deferred tax asset
December 31, 2012 and 201the Company concluded that it was more likelynthat that the Company will not realize the besedit thes
deductible differences at December 31, 2012 and 2@hd therefore, a full valuation allowance foreteéd tax assets was recorded ir
amount of $33.8 million and $22.6 million at DeceB1, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

At December 31, 2012 , the Company had a federabperating loss carryforward of $46.4 milligrwhich will begin to expire in 2029,
federal tax credit carryforward of $1.2 million wehi will begin to expire in 2022, a $2.3 milli@iternative minimum tax credit carryforwi
that can be carried forward indefinitely, and a.83aillion federal alternative minimum tax net operating loasyforward which will begin 1
expire in 2031. In addition, at December 31, 2812 Company had a federal net operating loss camygrd relating to its acquisition
Downers Grove National Bank, which is subject tiizstion limitations under Section 382 of the Imtel Revenue Code, &17.6 millior
which will begin to expire in 2030. At December 2012, the Company had a state net operating loss cawgfd for the State of lllinois
$93.8 million , which will begin to expire in 2025.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2012 2011
Beginning of year $ 22: % 17€
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear — 51
Additions for tax positions of prior years 18 22
Reductions due to the statute of limitations (11¢€) (26)
End of year $ 128§ 22¢

The Company does not expect the total amount afaagnized tax benefits to significantly increaselecrease in the next twelve months.
Company recognizes interest and/or penalties eeladeincome tax matters in income tax expense. Atdmnber 31, 2012 and 2011he
Company has immaterial amounts accrued for poldanterest and penalties.

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to féderal income tax as well as income tax of theéeSté lllinois. The Company is no long
subject to examination by the federal taxing autlasrfor years before 2009 and the lIllinois taxaghorities for years before 201Beginning
in 2010 and 2009the Bank became subject to income taxes in thieeSof Colorado and New Jersey, respectivelytaltiee physical preser
of regional National Commercial Leasing bankerthese jurisdictions.

NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requireteeadministered by the federal banking agenciedlufe to meet minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory—andipbsadditional discretionary-aetions by regulators that, if undertaken, couldeha direc
material effect on the Comparsyfinancial statements. Under capital adequacyeajjnies and the regulatory framework for prompt eotive
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidedithat involve quantitative measures of the Baaksets, liabilities, and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory acamymiiactices. The Bank’capital amounts and classification are also stilige qualitativ:
judgments by regulators about components, risk ktiigs, and other factor

The applicable banking regulations provide five itdization classifications, including well capitdd, adequately capitaliz
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalizeddaritically undercapitalized, although these terane not used to represent overall finai
condition. If only adequately capitalized, regutgtapproval is required to accept brokered depoBitsndercapitalized, capital distributio
asset growth and expansion are limited, and thenmgion of a capital restoration is required.

Actual capital levels and minimum required levelsthe Bank were:

Minimum required To Be Well

Capitalized Under Prompt Minimum Capital Ratios Established
Actual Corrective Action Provisions under Capital Plans
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2012
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 154,29¢ 153% $ 80,55 8.0% $ 120,83l 12.0%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted

assets) 141,62¢ 14.07 40,27 4.0C 80,55 8.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted average

total assets) 141,62¢ 9.6( 59,02¢ 4.0C 118,05¢ 8.0C
December 31, 2011
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 182,07: 147% $ 98,97t 8.0(% $  148,46. 12.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted

assets) 166,40t¢ 13.4¢ 49,48’ 4.0C 98,97¢ 8.0C

Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted average
total assets) 166,40t 10.4¢ 63,50 4.0C 127,00: 8.0C
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NOTE 11 — REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

A reconciliation of the Bank’s equity under GAAPregulatory capital is as follows:

2012 2011
GAAP equity $ 145,78 $ 171,18t
Disallowed goodwill and other intangible assets (3,039 (3,67
Accumulated gain on securities (1,11¢) (1,11)

Tier 1 capital 141,62¢ 166,40t
General regulatory loan loss reserves allowed 12,65¢ 15,66¢
Unrealized gains on securities available for shtened 13 —

Total regulatory capital $ 154,29¢  § 182,07

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the OCC categpbthe Bank as weltapitalized under the regulatory framework for ppbroorrectivi
action. There are no conditions or events sinceehwotifications that management believes haveggththe institution’s welkapitalizet
status.

The Company and the Bank have adopted Capital Rtahsequires the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 legereatio of at least 8% and a total risk
based capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimupitahratios set forth in the Capital Plans will mereased and other minimum cag
requirements will be established if and as necggsacomply with the Basel Il requirements as suefuirements become applicable to
Company and the Bank. In accordance with the Capi@ns, neither the Company nor the Bank will per&ny acquisition or grow
opportunity, declare any dividend or conduct aroclstrepurchase that would cause the Bank’s tosiHrased capital ratio and/or its Tie
leverage ratio to fall below the established minimcapital levels. In addition, the Company will tane to maintain its ability to serve a
source of financial strength to the Bank by holdideast $5.0 million of cash or liquid assetstfat purpose.

Federal regulations require the Bank to comply veitQualified Thrift Lender (“QTL")test, which generally requires that 65% of asse
maintained in housingelated finance and other specified assets. IfQfAd test is not met, limits are placed on growthartthing, ne
investment, FHLBC advances, and dividends or thétirtion must convert to a commercial bank chatanagement considers the QTL
to have been met as of December 31, 2012 .

The Bank is subject to restrictions on the amodrdiwidends it may declare and pay to the Compaitiiout prior regulatory approval.
December 31, 2012 , the Bank does not have presepgrapproval for future dividends.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership Ple. Employees are eligible to participate in the ES@Er attainment of age 21 and completion of one péa
service. In connection with the conversion and ganization, the ESOP borrowed $19.6 millfoom the Company, and used the procee:
the loan to purchase 1,957,300 shares of commahk &sued in the subscription offering at $10p@0 share. The loan is secured by the s
and will be repaid by the ESOP with funds from Bank’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP and egsibn ESOP assets. The Bank
committed to make discretionary contributions te #8SSOP sufficient to service the loan over a periotdto exceed 20 yearsWhen loa
payments are made, ESOP shares are allocatedtimzarts based on relative compensation and expisngcorded. Participants receive t
earned shares at the end of employment.

Contributions to the ESOP were $1.5 million for flears ended 2012 and 201lihcluding dividends and interest received on latated share
of $40,000 and $312,000 in 2012 and 2011 , respyti

Expense related to the ESOP, net of dividends mtedeist received on unallocated ESOP shares, v&&@® , $228,000 and $529,0@ the
years endeDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE 12 — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

Shares held by the ESOP were as follows:

2012 2011

Allocated to participants 654,69( 636,12:
Distributed to participants (26,772 (79,299
Unearned 1,223,31. 1,321,17
Total ESOP shares 1,851,22 1,878,00;
Fair value of unearned shares $ 13,73¢ % 7,29

Profit Sharing Plan/401(k) Plan. The Company has a defined contribution plan (“prsifiaring plan”)covering all of its eligible employet
Employees are eligible to participate in the prefirring plan after attainment of age 21 and cotigpie®f one yeaof service. The Compa
provides a match of $ 0.50 on each $1.00 of camioh up to 6%of eligible compensation beginning April 1, 200heTCompany may al
contribute an additional amount annually at themdton of the Board of Directors. Contributionsaling $384,000 , $396,000 , af@89,00!
were made for the years ended 2012 , 2011 , andl 2@bpectively.

NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

On June 27, 2006, the Compamystockholders approved the BankFinancial Corpmmai006 Equity Incentive Plan, which authorized
Human Resources Committee of the Board of Direatbthe Company to grant a variety of cash- andtgchased incentive awards, includ
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restdatock, performance shares and other incentivedsyto employees and directors aggreg:
up to 3,425,275 shares of the Company’s commork stoc

The Human Resources Committee may grant stock raptio purchase shares of the Comparmommon stock to certain employees
directors of the Company. The exercise price fergtock options is the fair market value of the omn stock on the dates of the grants.
stock options generally vest annually over 3 §e8&r periods; vesting is subject to acceleratiooertain circumstances. The stock options
expire if not exercised within 5 years from theedat grant.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a closed form option widna(Black-Scholes) model that uses
assumptions noted in the table below. The risk-interest rate was determined using the yield akbgl on the option grant date for a zerc
coupon U.S. Treasury security with a term equiviatenthe expected life of the option. The expedififor options granted represents
period the option is expected to be outstandingwasl determined by applying the simplified methedalowed by SAB 107. The expec
volatility for options issued in 2009 was deterntinesing the Compang’historical data. Estimated forfeitures were assito be zero due
the lack of historical experience for the Compartyere were no options granted in 2012 or 2011 .

The Company recognized $12,000 and $344,000 ok<tased compensation expenses relating to the ggaotistock options for the ye:
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectivebreuas no expense recorded for the year end Dexe3tb2012 .

On September 2, 2011, the Human Resources Comnaitigeehe Board of Directors of the Company approxezheyear extension of sto
options granted in prior years that were schedtdeskpire in September and December of 2011. Affterextensions, the stock options exg
in September and December of 2012. The extensiolysivolved the expiration date of the stock opticand do not affect their other ter
There was no expense recorded with the extensidheobptions. The extended stock options providhedhiblders with an option to purch
1,858,403 shares of the Company’s common stockwatighted average exercise price of $16.6Rs of December 31, 2012there were r
stock options outstanding.
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NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual Aggregate
Number of Weighted Average Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Exercise Price (in years) Value @
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2010 2,283,55. $ 16.52 08 $ =
Stock options granted — —
Stock options exercised — —
Stock options expired (208,000 (16.39)
Stock options forfeited — —
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2011 2,07555 $ 16.5¢ 0.7 $ —

Stock options granted — —
Stock options exercised — —

Stock options expired (2,064,55) (16.59)
Stock options forfeited (12,000 —
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2012 — 3 — 0 $ _
Stock options exercisable at December 31, 2012 — % — 0 $ —
Fully vested and expected to vest — — 0 % =

(1) Stock option aggregate intrinsic value represdmsnumber of shares subject to options multipligdhe difference (if positive) in tl
closing market price of the common stock underlytimg options on the date shown and the weightechgeesxercise price.

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Rireamay grant shares of restricted stock to aermnployees and directors of
Company. The awards generally vest annually oveying periods from three to fivgears and vesting is subject to acceleration imam
circumstances. The cost of such awards will beusttratably as compensation expense over suchctagpperiods based on expected ve:
dates. The Company recognized $41,000 , $41,08d $&.8 millionof expenses relating to the grant of shares oficéstl stock during tt
years endeDecember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectivedyofAdecember 31, 2012 , there wasunoecognized compensation cost rel
to unvested shares of restricted stock.

Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Aggregate

Number of Value at Grant Term to Vest Intrinsic
Restricted Stock Shares® Date (in years) Value @
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2010 8,661 $ 9.54 15 $ 85
Shares granted — —
Shares vested (4,337 (9.59)
Shares forfeited — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 433. $ 9.54 05 $ 24
Shares granted — —
Shares vested (4,339 (9.59)
Shares forfeited — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2012 — 3 — 0$ —

(1) The end of period balances consist only of unvesteae:

(2 Restricted stock aggregate intrinsic value reprssére number of shares of restricted stock migtibby the market price of t
common stock underlying the outstanding sharef©enlate shown.
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NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES

The Company is party to various financial instrutsenith off-balancesheet risk. The Company uses these financial im&nts in the norm
course of business to meet the financing needssibmers and to effectively manage exposure todsteate risk. These financial instrume
include commitments to extend credit, standby fistté credit, unused lines of credit, and committag¢a sell loans. When viewed in term:
the maximum exposure, those instruments may inydtvevarying degrees, elements of credit and isterate risk in excess of the amc
recognized in the consolidated statements of filgucondition. Credit risk is the possibility thatcounterparty to a financial instrument will
unable to perform its contractual obligations. teg rate risk is the possibility that, due to afesin economic conditions, the Compange
interest income will be adversely affected.

The following is a summary of the contractual ortioal amount of each significant class of off-lalasheet financial instrumer
outstanding. The Comparsy'exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperéorce by the counterparty for commitments to extensdlit
standby letters of credit, and unused lines ofitisdepresented by the contractual notional amof@ithese instruments.

The contractual or notional amounts are as follows:

2012 2011
Financial instruments wherein contractual amouepsasent credit risk
Commitments to extend credit $ 1597 $ 15,83:
Standby letters of credit 1,23i 1,81t
Unused lines of credit 120,73: 116,46(
Commitments to sell mortgages 1,26¢ 4,10z

Commitments to extend credit are generally madepésiods of 60 days or less. The fixed-rate loamanitment totaled $12.0 milliowith
interest rates ranging from 2.88% to 5.63% and nitags ranging from 1 to 30 years.

Since many of the commitments are expected to expithout being drawn upon, the total commitmenbans do not necessarily repre:
future cash requirements. The Company evaluatds @stomer’s creditworthiness on a casezhye basis. The amount of collateral obta
if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon siderof credit, is based on managemegtedit evaluation of the customers. The colld
held varies, but primarily consists of single-famiésidential real estate.

The Bank, as a member of Visa USA, received 51éstricted shares of Visa, Inc. Class B commooksin connection with Visa, Ing’
initial public offering in 2007, and 32,3%R&lditional shares of Class B common stock that wWepmsited into a litigation escrow that Visa,
established under its retrospective responsiljilign. The retroactive responsibility plan obligaddisformer Visa USA members to indemr
Visa USA, in proportion to their equity interests\isa USA, for certain litigation losses and exges) including settlement expenses, fo
lawsuits covered by the retrospective responsgjbiitan. The primary method for discharging the mddication obligations under t
retrospective responsibility plan is a reductiorth# ratio at which the Visa, Inc. Class B sharelsl n the litigation escrow can be conve
into publicly traded Class A common shares of Vise, Due to the restrictions that the retrospectigsponsibility plan imposes on
Company’s Visa, Inc. Class B shares, the Compasynbarecorded the Class B shares as an asset.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligki{ price) in the principal or mc
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynnoederly transaction between market participamgsh® measurement date. There are
levels of inputs that may be used to measure Hires:

» Level 1 —Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetlg@bilities in active markets that the entity has ability to access as of
measurement date.

» Level 2 —Significant other observable inputs other than Ledverices such as quoted prices for similar assetgbilities; quote
prices in markets that are not active; or otheuigphat are observable or can be corroboratedbgreable market data.

» Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs theftect a compang own assumptions about the assumptions that mpekétipant
would use in pricing an asset or liability.



86




Table of Contents
BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpes data)

NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)
The Company used the following methods and sigaifi@ssumptions to estimate the fair value of &goh of financial instrument:

Securities: The fair values of marketable equity securities generally determined by quoted prices, in actharkets, for each speci
security (Level 1). If Level 1 measurement inputs aot available for a marketable equity securitg, determine its fair value based on
quoted price of a similar security traded in arivactmarket (Level 2). The fair values of debt sé@s are generally determined by ma
pricing, which is a mathematical technique widebgd in the industry to value debt securities withelying exclusively on quoted prices
the specific securities, but rather by relying ba securities’ relationship to other benchmark gdatecurities (Level 2).

Loans Held for SaleLoans held for sale are carried at the lower of ocogair value, which is evaluated on a p¢mlel basis. The fair value
loans held for sale is determined using quotedeprior similar assets, adjusted for specific aitdb of that loan or other observable me
data, such as outstanding commitments from thirty pavestors (Level 2).

Impaired Loans: At the time a loan is considered impaired, managenmesasures impairment in accordance with ASC T@8gi@. The fai
value of impaired loans is estimated using oneevErml methods, including collateral value, mankatie of similar debt, enterprise val
liquidation value and discounted cash flows. Im@ditoans carried at fair value generally requipgagtial charge off and a specific valuai
allowance for loan losses. For collateral dependeans, fair value is commonly based on recent esshte appraisals. These real e
appraisals may include up to three approachesltevthe sales comparison approach, the incomeoapbpr(for incomegsroducing propert
and the cost approach. Adjustments are routinelgenia the appraisal process by the independentieggps to adjust for differences betw
the comparable sales and income data availaldgpifcable. Such adjustments may be significanttgpidally result in a Level 3 classificati
of the inputs for determining fair value. In additj a discount is typically applied to account $ates and holding expenses. Neat estat
collateral may be valued using an appraisal, nekb@lue per the borrowex’financial statements, or aging reports, adjustediscounte
based on management’s historical knowledge, chaimgesarket conditions from the time of the valuati@and managemestexpertise ar
knowledge of the client and clieatbusiness, resulting in a Level 3 fair value dfasgion. Impaired loans are evaluated on a quigrteasis fo
additional impairment and adjusted accordingly. fiethod utilized to estimate the fair value of lpatoes not necessarily represent an
price.

Other Real Estate OwnedAssets acquired through foreclosure or transfet®inof foreclosure are initially recorded at faalue less costs
sell when acquired, establishing a new cost basisse assets are subsequently accounted for at tdwest or fair value less estimated c
to sell. Fair value is commonly based on recent estate appraisals. Although the fair value of pheperty normally will be based on
appraisal (or other evaluation), the valuation $thdne consistent with the price that a market pgudint will pay to purchase the property at
measurement date. Circumstances may exist thataitedthat the appraised value is not an accuraésumement of the property's current
value. Examples of such circumstances include cdirezonomic conditions since the last appraisale sippraisals, or imprecision
subjectivity in the appraisal process (i.e., acaaés for less than the appraised amount). Syolstaeents are usually significant and typic
result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs fletermining fair value.

Mortgage Servicing Right: On a quarterly basis, loan servicing rights aralwated for impairment based upon the fair valfithe rights a
compared to carrying amount. The fair values oftgame servicing rights are based on a valuationeinibt calculates the present valu
estimated net servicing income. The valuation madebrporates assumptions that market participartald use in estimating future |
servicing income. The Company is able to compaesvluation model inputs and results to widely k@ published industry data
reasonableness (Level 2).
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table sets forth the Compasyinancial assets that were accounted for awtdire and are classified in their entirety basedthe
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
December 31, 2012
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ — 3 33,45t $ — $ 33,45¢
Municipal securities — 36¢ — 36¢
Equity mutual fund 52¢ — — 52¢
Mortgage-backed securities — residential — 34,23: — 34,23
Collateralized mortgage obligations — residential — 9,20¢ — 9,20¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates — 42 — 42
$ 52¢ % 77,30¢ $ — $ 77,83:
December 31, 2011
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ — ¢ 30,44¢ $ — % 30,44¢
Municipal securities — 551 — 551
Equity mutual fund 524 — — 524
Mortgage-backed securities - residential — 36,07¢ — 36,07¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations — residential — 25,18¢ — 25,18t
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates — 47 — 47
$ 524 % 92,30t $ — % 92,83
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table sets forth the Company’s as#eds were measured at fair value on a non-reqybasis:

Fair Value Measurement Using
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Fair
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
December 31, 2012
Impaired loans:
One—to—four family residential real estate loans  $ — 3 — ¢ 41C $ 41C
Multi-family mortgage loans — — 1,93: 1,93
Nonresidential real estate loans — — 3,11( 3,11(
Construction and land loans — — 2,84( 2,84(
Commercial loans — — 181 181
Impaired loans $ — 3 —  $ 8,47 % 8,47:
Other real estate owned:
One-to—four family residential real estate $ — 3 — 3 2,080 $ 2,08(
Multi-family mortgage — — 72C 72C
Nonresidential real estate — — 3,96¢ 3,96¢
Land — — 3,59: 3,59:
Other real estate owned $ — % — % 10,35¢ $ 10,35¢
Mortgage servicing rights $ — § — § 208§ 20¢
December 31, 2011
Impaired loans:
One—to—four family residential real estate loans  $ — — 3 4,022 $ 4,02¢
Multi-family mortgage loans — — 6,28¢ 6,28¢
Nonresidential real estate loans — — 17,23¢ 17,23¢
Construction and land loans — — 2,30¢ 2,30¢
Commercial loans — — 844 844
Impaired loans $ — % — % 30,69t $ 30,69¢
Other real estate owned:
One-to—four family residential real estate $ — — ¢ 5,65 $ 5,65¢
Multi-family mortgage — — 3,65¢ 3,65¢
Nonresidential real estate — — 7,451 7,451
Land — — 5,71¢ 5,71¢
Other real estate owned $ — ¢ — 3 22,48( $ 22,48(
Mortgage servicing rights $ — $ —  $ 344 $ 344

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmeirtgithe fair value of the collateral for collateidependent loans, had a carrying amou
$28.4 million , with a valuation allowance of $Iniillion at December 31, 2012 , compared to a cagyamount of $88.3 milliorand :
valuation allowance of $15.0 million at December 3211 , resulting in a decrease in the provis@ridan losses of $13.3 millidior the yea
ended December 31, 2012 .

OREQO is carried at the lower of cost or fair valkess costs to sell, had a carrying value of $10IHom at December 31, 2012which include
valuation adjustments of $5.6 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 , compared to $22.5 mglidhecember 31, 201 which include:
write-downs of $4.0 million for the year ended Dexdwer 31, 2011 .
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Mortgage servicing rights, which are carried atdowf cost or fair value, had a carrying amounsdf0 million at December 31, 20121
which $756,000 related to fixed rate loans and $X®3 related to adjustable rate loans. Mortgageaeg rights had a carrying amount®if.z
million at December 31, 2011 , of which $895,00@ted to fixed rate loans and $309,000 relateddfostable rate loans. A prx provisiol
of $55,000 on our mortgage servicing rights poitfelas included in noninterest income for the yermded December 31, 2012ompared to
$15,000 provision for the same period in 2011 .
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table presents quantitative inforroati based on certain empirical data with respedteteel 3 fair value measurements
financial instruments measured at fair value oo recurring basis at December 31, 2012 :

Range
Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Fair Value Technique(s) Input(s) Average)
Impaired loans:
Discount
) ) ) applied to 6%-90%
One-to-four family residential real estate loans $ 41C Sales comparison valuation (58%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 204-95%
Multi-family mortgage loans 1,937 sales comparison  approaches (42%)
8.3% t0 9.5%
Income approach Cap Rate (8.95%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 6%-99%
Nonresidential real estate loans 3,11(C sales comparison  approaches (61%)
8%-10.5%
Income approach Cap Rate (8.61%)
Discount
- applied to -3%-53%
Construction and land loans 2,84( sales comparison valuation (22%)
Discount
_ applied to 0%-11%
Commercial loans 181 sales comparison valuation (43%)
Impaired loans $ 8,47¢
Other real estate owned:
Discount
. . . applied to 7%-78%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 2,08( sales comparison  valuation (17%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 13%-62%
Multi-family mortgage 72C  Sales comparisor  approaches (42%)
Comparison
between sales
) . and income 7%-37%
Nonresidential real estate 3,96€  Sales comparison  approaches (27%)
Discount
applied to 7%-21%
Land 3,592  sales comparisor valuation (10%)

Other real estate owned $ 10,35¢

Present value ¢
future servicing
income based
Third party on prepaymen  12.7 % - 28.6%
Mortgage servicing rights $ 20¢€ valuation speeds (18.62%)
Present value ¢
future servicing
Third party income based
valuation on default rates 12%
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The carrying amount and estimated fair value dadrizial instruments is as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2012 Using:

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 275,76 % 20,36: $ 255,40. $ — $ 275,76«
Securities 77,83: 52¢ 77,304 — 77,83.
Loans held-for-sale 2,16¢ — 2,16¢ — 2,16¢
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losse: 1,030,46! — 999,57¢ 8,47: 1,008,05
FHLBC stock 8,41 — — — N/A
Accrued interest receivable 4,14¢ — 4,14¢ — 4,14¢
Financial liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ (13459) $ — $ (13459) $ — $ (134,59)
Savings deposits (144,729 — (144,726 — (144,729
NOW and money market accounts (697,77Y — (697,775 — (697,77
Certificates of deposit (305,25) — (306,859 — (306,859
Borrowings (5,567 — (5,60¢) — (5,60¢)
Accrued interest payable (157) — (157) — (157)
December 31, 2011
Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 120,70 $ 120,70«
Securities 92,83: 92,83:
Loans held-for-sale 1,91¢ 1,91¢
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses 1,227,39 1,217,37
FHLBC stock 16,34¢ N/A
Accrued interest receivable 5,57: 5,57:
Financial liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ (142,08) $ (142,089
Savings deposits (144,51) (144,51H
NOW and money market accounts (681,54 (681,54
Certificates of deposit (364,41) (365,959
Borrowings (9,327) (9,412
Accrued interest payable (212 (212

For purposes of the above, the following assumptisere used:

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe estimated fair values for cash and cash atpnts are based on their carrying value due tashioettern
nature of these assets.

Loans: The estimated fair value for loans has been deted by calculating the present value of futurehcdows based on the current rate
Company would charge for similar loans with simitaaturities, applied for an estimated time periatilihe loan is assumed to be reprice
repaid. The estimated fair values of loans heldstde are based on quoted market prices.

FHLBC Stock: It is not practicable to determine the fair vabid=HLBC stock due to the restrictions placed tsrtiansferability.



Deposit Liabilities: The estimated fair value for certificates of dgipbas been determined by calculating the presdoe of future cash flov
based on estimates of rates the Company would paguoh deposits, applied for the time period umtiturity. The estimated fair values
noninterest-bearing demand, NOW, money marketsamnthgs deposits are assumed to approximate
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

their carrying values as management establishes mt these deposits at a level that approximhtetotal market area. Additionally, th
deposits can be withdrawn on demand.

Borrowings: The estimated fair values of advances from th&BEl and notes payable are based on current maatedt for similar financin
The estimated fair value of securities sold undge@ments to repurchase is assumed to equal fisrcarvalue due to the shaiefm nature ¢
the liability.

Accrued Interest: The estimated fair values of accrued interestivable and payable are assumed to equal theyricgrvalue.

Off - Balance-Sheet Instruments Off-balancesheet items consist principally of unfunded loamottments, standby letters of credit,
unused lines of credit. The estimated fair valuesrdunded loan commitments, standby letters oflitrend unused lines of credit are
material.

While the above estimates are based on managemedgment of the most appropriate factors, asheflialance sheet date, there i
assurance that the estimated fair values would baea realized if the assets were disposed ofeolidhilities settled at that date, since me
values may differ depending on the various circamses. The estimated fair values would also ndyappsubsequent dates.

In addition, other assets and liabilities that am¢ financial instruments, such as premises andpewnt, are not included in the ab
disclosures.

NOTE 16 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION

Condensed financial information of BankFinancial@wation as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 anth&three years ended December
2012 follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

2012 2011
Assets
Cash in subsidiary $ 11,84¢ $ 11,94¢
Loan receivable from ESOP 14,65« 15,527
Investment in subsidiary 145,78! 171,41¢
Income tax receivable 461 1,69¢
Other assets 162 71
Total assets $ 17291. $ 200,65
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 21 801
Total stockholders’ equity 172,89( 199,85
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 17291. $ 200,65!

Condensed Statements of Operations



Interest income
Other income
Other expense

Loss before income tax and undistributed subsidizagme
Income tax expense (benefit)

Loss before equity in undistributed subsidiary imeo
Equity in undistributed subsidiary excess distrids

Net loss

93

2012 2011 2010
66z $ 69€ $ 73C
57 — —
1,42z 1,381 1,34¢
(709) (68E) (619)
— 254 (232)
(709) (93¢) (381)
(26,400) (47,75) (3,926)
(27,109 $ (48,690 $ (4,307)
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NOTE 16 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION (continued)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments:
Equity in undistributed subsidiary excess distritus
Change in other assets
Change in accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Principal payments received on ESOP loan
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchase and retirement of common stock
Cash dividends paid on common stock
Net cash from financing activities
Net change in cash in subsidiary
Beginning cash in subsidiary
Ending cash in subsidiary

NOTE 17 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudi ted)

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income (loss)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

2012 2011 2010
$ (27,109 ¢ (48,69¢) (4,307
26,40¢ 47,75, 3,92¢
1,14z 35C 9,752
(780) (89 (10,439
(340 (67¢) (1,06%)
873 84( 80t
87¢ 84C 80t
— — (3,129
(6393 (4,63€) (5,94¢€)
(633) (4,63€) (9,070
(200 (4,479 (9,339
11,94¢ 16,42 25,75t
$ 11,84t % 11,94¢ 16,42
Year Ended December 31, 2012
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 16,63: $ 15,82: % 14,46¢ 13,80:
1,24( 1,11z 1,03¢ 1,05¢
15,39 14,71: 13,43: 12,74
99¢ 1,74¢ 4,45 24,32¢
14,39¢ 12,967 8,97¢ (112,586
1,83: 1,41¢ 1,831 1,771
13,43¢ 14,04 16,03: 15,20°
2,79¢ 341 (5,227) (25,029
457 (457) — —
$ 2331 % 79¢  $ (5,222 $ (25,027
$ 01z $ 0.04 $ (0.2 $ (1.25)
$ 01z $ 0.0¢ % (0.2¢) $ (1.25)

The Company recorded a net loss of $25.0 milliortlie fourth quarter of 2012. The Companfourth quarter 2012 operating results inclt
a $24.3 millionprovision for loans losses. In late 2012, the Camypaompleted several actions to materially redwteré nonperforming as:
expenses. The Company completed two bulk salegmdin nonperforming assets with a carrying valti®&22.7 million , reclassifie®7.t
million of loans as held-for-sale in preparatiom éothird bulk sale, and restructured $7.1 millafnperforming classified loans to enable
basis for their classification to be resolved irl20These actions resulted in pre-tax charges 8f4$million . Noninterest expense incluc
$3.6 million of nonperforming asset management@REO expense.
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NOTE 17 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudi ted) (continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2011

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $ 15,34¢  $ 19,000 $ 17,99 $ 17,37(
Interest expense 1,99¢ 1,91( 1,62¢ 1,38(
Net interest income 13,35: 17,09( 16,36: 15,99(
Provision for loan losses 2,42¢ 3,17¢ 7,38¢ 9,74(
Net interest income 10,92¢ 13,91 8,97 6,25(
Noninterest income 1,571 1,87¢ 1,86: 2,00
Noninterest expense 14,25¢ 14,62 14,631 40,19:
Income (loss) before income taxes (1,756 1,171 (3,799 (31,939
Income tax expense (benefit) (979 14t (2,907 15,11(
Net income (loss) $ 777 % 1,02¢ $ (1,896 $ (47,049
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.09) $ 0.0t $ 0.1 $ (2.39)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.09 % 0.0t $ 0.10 $ (2.39)

The Company recorded a net loss of $47.0 milfanrthe fourth quarter of 2011. The Company's fouiarter 2011 operating results inclu
a full impairment of the goodwill of $23.9 milliona full deferred tax valuation allowance of $2ghlion , a $9.7 millionprovision for loal
losses and $4.9 million recorded in nonperformissehexpense and operations of other real estatecow

NOTE 18 — ACQUISITIONS

The Company completed its acquisition of DG Bangctmp. and its subsidiary, Downers Grove NationahB on March 18, 2011 and res
for Downers Grove National Bank have been incluietthe Companys operations from that date. The Company accoubteithe acquisitio
using the acquisition method. The Company recomdedger and acquisition expenses of $1.4 milionthis transaction. The acquisit
method also requires an acquirer to recognize ¢seta acquired and the liabilities assumed at thgivalues as of the acquisition date.
excess cost over fair value of net assets acqisnextorded as goodwill.

The Company expects its acquisition of Downers @rbhational Bank to result in several benefits, udahg increased earnings and hig
returns on stockholder®quity, more effective deployment of its excessitepimproved utilization of existing organizati@ncapacitie:
expanded geographic coverage of the Commamarket territory, increased deposit market slaa improved convenience for its exis
customers due to the addition of two new full-seranch offices.
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NOTE 18 — ACQUISITIONS (continued)

The following table summarizes the fair value of #ssets acquired and liabilities assumed as afateeof the acquisition:

March 18, 2011

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash and due from other financial institutions $ 1,35
Interest—bearing deposits in other financial insitins 60,26¢

Cash and cash equivalents 61,61¢
Securities 10,177
Loans receivable 118,14
Other real estate owned 6,96¢
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Redgamg 90:<
Premises and equipment, net 7,44;
Accrued interest receivable 35t
Goodwill 1,29¢
Core deposit intangible 2,66(
FDIC prepaid expense 774
Income tax receivable 774
Deferred taxes, net 2,66
Other assets 42

Total assets acquired $ 213,81
Deposits $ 212,93t
Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insurance 34
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 843

Total liabilities assumed $ 213,81t

As noted above, the loans acquired in the Downeosé&National Bank transaction had a fair valu@bf8.1 million. Included in this amou
were $31.9 milliorof gross purchased loans with evidence of detdimraf credit quality since origination and for iwh it was probable,
the time of the acquisition, that the Company woltd unable to collect all contractually required/mpants receivable. The Compasy’
evaluation of purchased loans with evidence ofitigehlity deterioration as of the acquisition degsulted in the recording of a nonaccret
difference of $13.1 million , which is defined & loans contractually required payments receivable ireegof the amount of the cash fl
that are expected to be collected. The Companyideres factors such as payment history, collateshles and accrual status in determi
whether there was evidence of deterioration of r@lpased loan’s credit quality at the acquisitiotedds of December 31, 2012 and 2Q1lhe
carrying amount of purchased loans with evidenclear deterioration at the acquisition date wa$® $3illion and $14.6 million respectively
and the remaining accretable difference was $196a0@ $2.3 million , respectively.

The following table summarizes the unaudited pront financial results of operations as if the Conypacquired DG Bancorp, Inc. and
subsidiary Downers Grove National Bank, on JandaB010:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Net interest incomg $ 64,14¢ $ 59,38¢
Net loss (50,26 (16,37¢)
Basic loss per common share $ (259 $ (0.89)
Diluted loss per common share (2.59 (0.89)

1) Results for DG Bancorp, Inc. include net incoméoss from operations for the respective peri
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NOTE 18 — ACQUISITIONS (continued)

The Company completed an acquisition of a portfofi®152.1 million of performing Chicago area mifi#tmily loans on March 11, 2011. T
multi-family loans in this portfolio were originated byitiBank, N.A. and its predecessor by merger, CitlhaF.S.B. At the time of tt
acquisition, the portfolio consisted of 466 loanghvan average loan balance of $327,00®e loans were purchased at a discount thate
accreted into income on a levgield basis over the remaining life of the loantieTCompany conducted extensive due diligence @
transaction, resulting in the recognition of $3@®,(n transaction related expenses in 2011.

NOTE 19 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Unaudited)

On February 28, 2013, the Company consummatedaleeas $1.6 million one-to-four family residentifdans. In late 2012, these owner
occupied and investor-owned one-to-four family destial loans were designated as “held for salgireparation for a bulk sale. The lo
generally involved properties that exhibited sigraiht declines in collateral valuations and/or preed limited resolution options. 1
designation resulted in a $5.9 million gee¢ charge to provision for loan losses in the 2@dhsolidated Statement of Operations.
completion of this transaction is expected to reisupre-tax gain on sale of loans of approximafly3 million .
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Principal Executféicer and Principal Financial Offict
we evaluated the effectiveness of the design aedatipn of our disclosure controls and proceduassdefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 1Bsle’
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the figeal ( “Evaluation Date”)Based upon that evaluation, the Principal Execuli¥ficer anc
Principal Financial Officer concluded that, astod Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls andgadares were effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal ConBekr Financial Reporting.

The annual report of management on the effectivenksur internal control over financial reportiagd the attestation report thereon issue
our independent registered public accounting firmset forth under “Report of Management on Inte@antrol Over Financial Reportinginc
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accounttimgn on Internal Control Over Financial Reportingider Item 8 - Financial Statemer
and Supplementary Data.”

(c) Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes made in our internal contitrfisig the fourth quarter of 2012 or, to our knedde, in other factors that have mater
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf these controls.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not Applicable.
PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Directors and Executive Officers

The information concerning our directors and exeeufficers required by this item will be filed tithe Securities and Exchange Commis
by amendment to this Form 10-K, not later than d&s after the end of our fiscal year.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

The information concerning compliance with the mpg requirements of Section 16(a) of the SeaesitExchange Act of 1934 by «
directors, officers and 10 percent stockholdersiireq by this item will be filed with the Securgi@and Exchange Commission by amend.
to this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days aftereéhd of our fiscal year.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Firr@fficers that applies to our principal executivfficer, principal financial office
principal accounting officer, and persons perforgnéimilar functions. A copy of our Code of Ethicasvattached as Exhibit 14 to our Ant
Report on Form 1@ filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissionMarch 27, 2006. We have also adopted a CodBusines
Conduct, pursuant to NASDAQ requirements, thatiapglenerally to our directors, officers, and erypks.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning compensation requiredhiizyitem will be filed with the Securities anddiange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning security ownership ata@ie beneficial owners and management requirethisyitem will be filed with the



Securities and Exchange Commission by amendmehisté-orm 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

98




Table of Contents

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans
There were none outstanding at December 31, 2012.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information concerning certain relationshipd eglated transactions required by this will bedilwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission by amendment to this Form 10-K, not ldtan 120 days after the end of our fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information concerning principal accountansfaad services will be filed with the Securitiesl @xchange Commission by amendment tc
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statement o registrant and its subsidiaries are filed as$ @fathis document under Item 8 Fihancia
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(A) Report of Independent Registered Accounting

(B) Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiah December 31, 2012 a@@11

© Consolidated Statements of Operations foydas ended December 31, 2012 , 2011281d

(D) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stodedns! Equity for the years ended December 31, 2@I11 and 2010
(E) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows foy&ees ended December 31, 2012 , 284d 201

(F) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

99




Table of Contents

(a)(2) Einancial Statement Schedules

None.
(a)(3) Exhibits

The documents set forth below are filed herewitmoorporated herein by reference to the locatialicated.

Exhibit Location
Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Forth @ the
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of BankFinancial Corpacat Company, originally filed with the Securities anacBange

Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Forh & the
3.2 Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.3 to the Registration Statement on Forh & the
3.3 Articles of Amendment to Charter of BankFinanciair@oration Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.4 to the Annual Report on Form KOof the
3.4 Restated Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 15, 2007

Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on Forrth 8f the
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of BankFinanciak@bration Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhib it 10.1 tothe Registration Statement on F&Hm
10.1 Employee Stock Ownership Plan 1 of the Company, originally filed with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on F&rnof the
10.2 Deferred Compensation Plan Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
10.3 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with F. Morgsasior Company, originally filed with the Securities ansdcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
10.4 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Jam&rdnnan  Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008.

Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
10.5 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with PauChautier Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
10.12  Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Terms originally filed with the Securites and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Appendix C to the Definitive Form 14A, originallildd with
10.13 2006 BankFinancial Corporation Equity IncentiverPla the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 286
(File No. 000-51331)

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
10.14  Form of Performance Based Incentive Stock OptioraiinTerms originally filed with the Securites and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
10.15 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Terms originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Formk8- of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Chrishh

106 Calabrese

Form of Performance Based NQualified Stock Option Awar

10.16 Terms
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10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

14

21

23
31.1

31.2

32

Exhibit Location
Exhibit 10.5 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compa
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement originally filed with the Securites and Exchar

Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock AwandkAgent

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement withMorgar

Gasior

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wiRhul A.

Cloutier

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement widimes .

Brennan

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement whilizabett

A. Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with ElizAbeA.

Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Gregd\dams

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with JohiM@anos

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with WillidmDeutsct

Jr.

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial FSB Empient

Agreement

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial FSB Empient

Agreement

Form of Amendment
Employment Agreement

No. 1 to BankFinancial

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP

Corpona

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuamt Section 302 ¢

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaist $ection 302 of tk

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiEfnancial Office

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062*

Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.6 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.7 to the Report on Formkg-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.8 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
originally filed with the Securites and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk8-of the Company
originally filed with the Securites and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008.

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Form HOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on February 23, 2009.

Exhibit 10.29 to the Annual Report on Form HOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on February 23, 2009.

Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Report on Form K of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on April 30, 2010.

Exhibit 10.31 to the Annual Report on Form K of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on April 30, 2010.

Exhibit 10.32 to the Annual Report on Form KA of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on May 2, 2011.

Filed herewith
Filed herewith

Filed herewith

Exhibit 14 to the Annual Report on Form KO-of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 27, 2006

Exhibit 21 to the Registration Statement on Forrh &-the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Filed herewith

Filed herewith
Filed herewith

Furnished herewith
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Exhibit Location

The following financial statements from the Banldfinial
Corporation Quarterly Report on Form KOfor the year ende
December 31, 2012, formatted in Extensive BusinBgporting
101 Language (XBRL): (i) consolidated statement of dtiads, Furnished herewith
(ii) consolidated  statements of operations, (idhsolidate
statements of cash flows and (iv) the notes to aateted financia
statements.

» A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynéll be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosiomi®r its staff upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
Date: March 11, 2013 By: /s/F. Morgan Gasior

F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officadd&resident
(Duly Authorized Representative)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg of 1934, this report has been signed belothdyjollowing persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsated.

Signatures Title Date

/sl F. Morgan Gasior Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer drésident March 11, 2013
F. Morgan Gasior (Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Paul A. Cloutier Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office March 11, 2013
Paul A. Cloutier (Principal Financial Officer)

/sl Elizabeth A. Doolan Senior Vice President and Controller March 11, 2013
Elizabeth A. Doolan (Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl Cassandra J. Francis Director March 11, 2013

Cassandra J. Francis

/s/ John M. Hausmann Director March 11, 2013
John M. Hausmann

/s/ Thomas F. O'Neill Director March 11, 2013
Thomas F. O'Neill

/sl Joseph A. Schudt Director March 11, 2013
Joseph A. Schudt

/sl Terry R. Wells Director March 11, 2013
Terry R. Wells
/sl Glen R. Wherfel Director March 11, 2013

Glen R. Wherfel
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FORM OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 OF THE BANKFINANCIAL, F.S.BAMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

Exhibit 10.33

AMENDMENT NO. 1 OF THE
BANKFINANCIAL, F.S.B.
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 1 of the AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMNT AGREEMENT by and betwedBankFinancial, F.S.B
(the “Bank ") and Name (the “Executive”) dated May 6, 2008 (the Agreement”), which amendment is effective on December 31, 2@¢

“ Effective Date”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to and subject to Section 1hefAgreement, the parties may amend the Agreenyeatiritten agreement.

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Agreenmeatcordance with Internal Revenue Service Guidamer Section 409A
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1.

2.

5.

The last two sentences of Section 6(b) areaoepl with the following: Amounts payable under Subsection (ii) and (i
this Section 6(b) shall be paid as provided in iBadf) and as may be required to be deferred @unisto Section 24.”
The last two sentences of Section 6(c) areoepl with the following: Amounts payable under Subsection (i) and (i
this Section 6(c) shall be paid as provided in iBad) and as may be required to be deferred ntsto Section 24.”
The last two sentences of Section 6(e) aracepl with the following: Amounts payable under this Section 6(e) she
paid as provided in Section (j) and as may be redub be deferred pursuant to Section 24.”
The last sentence of Section 6(f) is replacid thie following: “Amounts payable under this Section 6(f) shall bie ps
provided in Section (j).”
Section 6(j) is amended to read as follows:
“M General Release and Time of Paymentin consideration of the Bank's agreements wipeet to th
monetary payments and other benefits providedroBection 6 of this Agreement (which payments aadefit:
exceed the nature and scope of that to which Ekecutould have been legally entitled to receiveeabsthis
Agreement), and as a condition precedent to Exexsgtreceipt of such payments and other benefiisciive (or il
the event of Executive's death, Executive's exectiiastee, administrator or personal represergatie applicable
shall execute and deliver to the Bank a generabsd in favor of the Bank and its Affiliates (adirted below) nc
later than twentytwo (22) days after Executive's termination of emyphent, releasing all claims, demands, caus
actions and liabilities arising out of this AgreamheExecutive's employment or the termination tb&rimcluding, bu
not limited to, claims, demands, causes of actiwh l@bilities for wages, back pay, front pay, attey's fees, oth
sums of money, insurance, benefits, or contracid;adl claims, demands, causes of actions anditiebiarising ot
of or under the statutory, common law or other sulerders or regulations of the United States gr @tate ¢
political subdivision thereof, whether now existachereinafter enacted or adopted, including the Bgscriminatiol
in Employment Act and the Older Workers BenefittBetion Act, and subject to the applicable waitimgescissio
periods thereunder, the Bank shall pay the amadunésunder the applicable Section 6(b), (c), (eXfoin one (1
lump sum on the sixtieth (60th) day following thatel of Executive's termination of employment. Ndbsiandin
the foregoing or anything to the contrary heréeie general release shall not release, and shatt&slp reserve, a
unperformed obligations of the Bank under this Agnent, or of BFC under the 2006 EIP or the BFC Agrent, t
Executive.”

In all other respects, the Agreement shall rermachanged and in full force and effect.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , BankFinancial, F.S.B. has caused this Agreemeriet executed by its duly authorized officer
Executive has signed this Agreement as set fottiwbe

BANKFINANCIAL, F.S.B. EXECUTIVE

By:

Its:

Date: December , 2012 Date: December , 2012

Named Executive Officers who are parties to thigadment
F. Morgan Gasior
Paul A. Cloutier
James J. Brennan
Christa N. Calabrese
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Exhibit 10.34

AMENDMENT NO. 1 OF THE
BANKFINANCIAL, F.S.B.
AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 1 of the AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMNT AGREEMENT by and betwedBankFinancial, F.S.B
(the “Bank ") and Name (the “Executive”) dated May 6, 2008 (the Agreement”), which amendment is effective on December 31, 2@¢

“ Effective Date”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to and subject to Section 1hefAgreement, the parties may amend the Agreenyeatiritten agreement.

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Agreenmeatcordance with Internal Revenue Service Guidamer Section 409A
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1.

2.

The last sentence of Section 6(b) is replac¢il thre following: “Amounts payable under Subsections (ii) and (iviha
Section 6(b) shall be paid as provided in Sectign’é

The last sentence of Section 6(c) is replacittd the following: “Amounts payable under Subsections (ii) and (iviha
Section 6(c) shall be paid as provided in Secti@n’6

The last sentence of Section 6(e) is repladddthe following: “Amounts payable under this Section 6(e) shall be as
provided in Section 6(i).”

The last sentence of Section 6(f) is replacét the following: “Subject to the delivery (and meevocation) of th
executed general release as provided for in Seéfipamounts payable under this Section 6(f) shallpaid in a sing
lump sum on the Bank's regular payroll date sigy) days after the date of Executive's death.”

Section 6(i) is replaced with the followit

“ (i) General Release and Time of Paymentln consideration of the Bank's agreements wisipeet to the monete
payments and other benefits provided for in Seddi@i this Agreement (which payments and benefiteed the natu
and scope of that to which Executive would havenblegally entitled to receive absent this Agreerjjeahd as
condition precedent to Executive's receipt of spahiments and other benefits, Executive (or in trentof Executive
death, Executive's executor, trustee, administratgrersonal representative, as applicable), shatute and deliver
the Bank a general release in favor of the Bankindffiliates (as defined below) releasing akhiohs, demands, cau:
of actions and liabilities arising out of this Agraent, Executive's employment or the terminati@reaf, including, bt
not limited to, claims, demands, causes of actiwhl@bilities for wages, back pay, front pay, at&y's fees, other sui
of money, insurance, benefits, or contracts; ahalaims, demands, causes of actions and liatsliigsing out of ¢
under the statutory, common law or other ruleserdor regulations of the United States or anyeStat politica
subdivision thereof, whether now existed or herdémaenacted or adopted, including the Age Disanaion ir
Employment Act and the Older Workers Benefit Pritec Act, and no further payments shall be due Hiee unti
such time as all applicable waiting or rescissiatiqrls thereunder shall have expired or shall hasen waivec
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to thaittary herein, the general release shall not relessd shall expres:
reserve, any unperformed obligations of the BanHeurthis Agreement. The general release shall Beuted an
delivered no later than twentwo (22) days after the effective date of termimat{or such longer period of time to
extent required by law) and, provided the genertase is not revoked, the amounts payable undeseStions 6(b)(i
and (iv), 6(c)(ii) and (iv), and 6(e) shall be paidequal installments over the period beginnington sixtieth (60th) de
following the effective date of termination and tioning through the Bank's first regular payroltelafter the date tl
Employment Period would have expired if Executiverisployment had not been sooner terminapedyided, howeve
that any such installments that would have beenl paithe sixty (60) day period following the effeet date o
termination but for the release requirement shellpaid on the date the first installment is paid &me remainin
installments shall be paid




over the balance of the period continuing through Bank's first regular payroll date after the déte Employmer
Period would have expired if Executive's employmiead not been sooner terminated. Provided, howekat,to th
extent any portion of the applicable payment ameunoter Section 6(c) or (e) exceeds the “safe hardmmount describe
in Treasury Regulation Section 1.40946)(9)(iii)(A), the Executive shall receive sucbrpion of the applicable payme
that exceeds the “safe harbarhount in a single lump sum payment on the firgr@adate following the sixtieth (60t
day after the Executive's termination.”

6. In all other respects, the Agreement shall rermachanged and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , BankFinancial, F.S.B. has caused this Agreememiet executed by its duly authorized officer
Executive has signed this Agreement as of the sitéorth below.

BANKFINANCIAL, F.S.B. EXECUTIVE
By:
Its:
Date: December , 2012
Date: December , 2012

Named Executive Officers who are parties to thigadment
Gregg T. Adams
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Exhibit 10.35
AMENDMENT NO. 1 OF THE
BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 1 of the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by anbletweenBankFinancial Corporation (the “Company ™) anc
Name (the “ Executive ") dated October 20, 2008 (theAgreement”), which amendment is effective on December 31, 2@he “Effective

Date™”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to and subject to Section 1hefAgreement, the parties may amend the Agreenyeatiritten agreement.

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Agreenimeatcordance with Internal Revenue Service Guidamwler Section 409A
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1.

The last two sentences of Section 6(b) are replagicthe following

“Amounts payable under Subsection (ii) and (iv)h$ tSection 6(b) shall be paid as provided in $ecth) and as may

2.

required to be deferred pursuant to Section 25.”

The last two sentences of Section 6(c) are repladthcthe following

“Amounts payable under Subsection (ii) and (iv)he$ Section 6(c) shall be paid as provided in $acth) and as may

3.

required to be deferred pursuant to Section 25.”

The last two sentences of Section 6(e) are replaithdhe following

“Amounts payable under this Section 6(e) shall bd pa provided in Section (h) and as may be reduicebe deferre

4.

pursuant to Section 25.”

The last sentence of Section 6(f) is replaced thighfollowing

“Amounts payable under this Section 6(f) shall b&mas provided in Section (h).”

5.

Section 6(h) is amended to read as follc

“(h) General Release and Time of Paymentin consideration of the Company's agreements vésipect to tr
monetary payments and other benefits providedrf@ection 6 of this Agreement (which payments agkefits excee
the nature and scope of that to which Executiveldvbave been legally entitled to receive absest Agreement), and
a condition precedent to Executive's receipt ohguyments and other benefits, Executive (or inetrent of Executive
death, Executive's executor, trustee, administratquersonal representative, as applicable), shatute and deliver
the Company a general release in favor of the Compad its Affiliates (as defined below) not latban twentytwo
(22) days after Executive's termination of emplogimeeleasing all claims, demands, causes of ataond liabilitie
arising out of this Agreement, Executive's emplogtmar the termination thereof, including, but nimited to, claims
demands, causes of action and liabilities for wabask pay, front pay, attorney's fees, other safrmaoney, insuranc
benefits, or contracts; and all claims, demandases of actions and liabilities arising out of aer the statutor
common law or other rules, orders or regulationthefUnited States or any State or political suis@tiwm thereof, wheth
now existed or hereinafter enacted or adoptedudiey the Age Discrimination in Employment Act atite Olde
Workers Benefit Protection Act, and subject to dipplicable waiting or rescission periods thereuntter Company shi
pay the amounts due under the applicable Section &), (e), or (f) in one (1) lump sum on thet&th (60th) da
following the date of Executive's termination of @oyment. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anythtogthe contrar
herein, the general release shall not release shalll expressly reserve, any unperformed obligatiohthe Compar
under this Agreement, or of the Bank under the ZDiF6or the Bank Agreement, to Executive.”

In all other respects, the Agreement shall rermachanged and in full force and effect.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , BankFinancial Corporation has caused this Agreentebe executed by its duly authorized officed
Executive has signed this Agreement as set fottiwbe

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION EXECUTIVE

By:

Its:

Date: December , 2012 Date: December , 2012

Named Executive Officers who are parties to thigadment
F. Morgan Gasior
Paul A. Cloutier
James J. Brennan



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No. 333-127737 and No.133®82 on Form 8- of
BankFinancial Corporation, of our report dated Mwatd, 2013, with respect to the consolidated financial staets of BankFinanci
Corporation and the effectiveness of the Compamyternal control over financial reporting, whiodport appears in this Annual Repor
Form 10-K of BankFinancial Corporation for the yeaded December 31, 2012 .

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 11, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, F. Morgan Gasior, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparaj

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareaegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the stegnts internal control over financial reporting thatcomred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrans' other certifying officer and | have disclosedsédxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdwer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbravel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditonsdathe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or perst
performing the equivalent functions):

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

c)

Date: March 11, 2013 /sl F. Morgan Gasior
F. Morgan Gasior

Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Paul A. Cloutier, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparaj

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareaegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the stegnts internal control over financial reporting thatcomred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrans' other certifying officer and | have disclosedsédxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdwer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbravel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditonsdathe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or perst
performing the equivalent functions):

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 11, 2013 /s/ Paul A. Cloutier
Paul A. Cloutier

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Aof 2002

F. Morgan Gasior, Chairman of the Board, Chief Exiwe Officer and President of BankFinancial Cogimm, a Maryland corporation (1
“Company”) and Paul A. Cloutier, Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer of the Company, each cgriif his capacity as

officer of the Company that he has reviewed theuahreport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerieR012 (the “Report"and that t
the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefctions 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934; an

2. the information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 11, 2013 /sl F. Morgan Gasior

F. Morgan Gasior

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and President

Date: March 11, 2013 /s/ Paul A. Cloutier

Paul A. Cloutier

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyall be retained by the Company
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commigsidts staff upon request.



